Forecasted Test Period Filing Requirements

Duke Energy Kentucky
Case No. 2009-00202
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Vol. | Tab Filing Description Sponsoring
# # Requirement Witness
] 1 KRS 278.180 30 days’ notice of rates to PSC. Julia S, Janson
] 2 807 KAR 5:001 Full name and P.O. address of appilicant and Julia S. Janson
Section 8 (1) reference to the particular provision of law
requiring PSC approval.
1 3 807 KAR 5:001 The original and 10 copies of application plus Julia S. Janson
Section 8 {2) copy for anyone named as interested party.
| 4 807 KAR 5:001 Reason adjustment is required. William Don Wathen
Section 10
(L)(b)(1)
1 5 807 KAR 5:001 Statement that utility’s annual reports, including Brenda R. Melendez
Section 10 the most recent calendar year, ave filed with PSC,
(1)(b)(2) 807 KAR 5:000, Section 3 (1).
1 6 807 KAR 5:001 If utility is incorporated, certified copy of articles Julia S. Janson
Section 10 of incorporation and amendments or out of state
(1)(b)(3)and (5) documents of similar import. If they have already
been filed with PSC refer to the style and case
number of the prior proceeding and file a
certificate of good standing or authorization dated
within 60 days of date application filed.
1 7 807 KAR 5:001 [f applicant is limited partnership, certified copy of Julia S. Janson
Section 10 limited partnership agreement. 1f agreement filed
(H{BY) with PSC refer to style-and case number of prior
proceeding and file a certificate of good standing
or authorization dated within 60 days of date
application filed.
I 8 807 KAR 5:001 Certified copy of certificate of assumed name Julia S. Janson
Section 10 required by KRS 365.015 or statement that
(1)(b)(6) certificate not necessary.
i 9 807 KAR 5:001 Proposed tariff in form complying with 807 KAR James E. Ziolkowski
Section 10 5:011 effective not less than 30 days from date
{(D(bY(T) application filed.
I 10 | 807 KAR 5:001 Proposed tariff changes shown by present and James E. Ziolkowski
Section 10 proposed tariffs in comparative form or by
(H)(b)(8) indicating additions in italics or by underscoring
and striking over deletions in current tariff.
| 11 | 807 KAR 5:001 Statement that notice given, see subsections (3) Julia S. Janson
Section 10 and (4) of 807 KAR 5:001, Section 10 with copy.
(H(®)®)
1 i2 | 807 KAR 5:001 [f gross annual revenues exceed $1,000,000, Julia S. Janson
Section 10 (2) written notice of intent filed at least 4 weeks prior
to application. Notice shall state whether
application will be supported by historical or fully
forecasted test period.
1 i3 | 807 KAR 5:001 Sewer utilities shall give the required typewritten Julia S. Janson
Section 10 (4) (a) | notice by mail to all of their customers pursuant to
KRS 278.185.
1 14 | 807 KAR 5:001 Applicants with twenty (20) or fewer customers Julia S. Janson
Section 10 (4)}(b) | affected by the proposed general rate adjustment
shall mail the required typewritten notice to each
customer no later than the date the application is
filed with the commission.
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807 KAR 3:001
Section 10 (4)(c)

Except for sewer utilities, applicants with more
than twenty (20) customers affected by the
proposed general rate adjustment shall give the
required notice by one (1) of the following
methods:
1. A typewritten notice mailed to all customers
no later than the date the application is filed
with the commission;
Publishing the notice in a trade publication or
newsletter which is mailed to all customers no
later than the date on which the application is
filed with the commission; or
3. Publishing the notice once a week for three (3)
consecutive weeks in a prominent manner in a
newspaper of general circulation in the utility’s
service area, the first publication to be made
within seven (7) days of the filing of the
application with the commission.

o

Julia S. Janson

16

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (4)(d)

If notice is published, an affidavit from the
publisher verifying that the notice was published,
including the dates of the publication with an
attached copy of the published notice, shall be
filed with the Commission no later than forty-five
(45) days of the filed date of the application.

Julia S. Janson

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (4)(e)

If notice is mailed, a written statement signed by
the utility’s chief officer in charge of Kentucky
operations verifying the notice was mailed shall be
filed with the Commission no later than thirty (30)
days of the filed date of the application.

Juhia S. Janson

18

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (4)(f)

All utilities, in addition to the above notification,
shall post a sample copy of the required
notification at their place of business no later than
the date on which the application is filed which
shall remain posted until the commission has
finally determined the utility’s rates.

Julia S. Janson

19

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (35)

Notice of hearing scheduled by the commission
upon application by a utility for a general
adjustment in rates shall be advertised by the
utility by newspaper publication in the areas that
will be affected in compliance with KRS 424.300.

Julia S. Janson

20

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (8)(a)

Financial data for forecasted period presented as
pro forma adjustments to base period.

Robert M. Parsons, Jr.

21

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (8)(b)

Forecasted adjustments shall be limited to the 12
months immediately following the suspension
period.

Robert M. Parsons, Ir.

22

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (8)(c)

Capitalization and net investment rate base shall
be based on a 13 month average for the forecasted
period.

Robert M. Parsons, Jr.
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807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (8){(d)

After an application based on a forecasted test
period is filed, there shall be no revisions to the
forecast, except for the correction of mathematical
errors, unless such revisions reflect statutory or
regulatory enactments that could not, with
reasonable diligence, have been included in the
forecast on the date it was filed. There shall be no
revisions filed within thirty (30) days of a
scheduled hearing on the rate application.

Robert M. Parsons, Ir.

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (8)(e)

The commission may require the utility to prepare
an alternative forecast based on a reasonable
number of changes in the variables, assumptions,
and other factors used as the basis for the utility’s
forecast.

Robert M. Parsons, Jr.

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (8)()

Reconciliation of rate base and capital used to
determine revenue requirements.

Robert M. Parsons, Jr.

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(a)

Prepared testimony of each witness supporting its
application including testimony from chief officer
in charge of Kentucky operations on the existing
programs to achieve improvements in efficiency
and productivity, including an cxplanation of the
purpose of the program.

All witnesses

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(b)

Most recent capital construction budget containing
at minimum 3 year forecast of construction
expenditures.

Gary J. Hebbeler

28

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(c)

Complete description, which may be in prefiled
testimony form, of all factors used to prepare
forecast period. All econometric models,
variables, assumptions, escalation factors,
contingency provisions, and changes in activity
levels shall be quantified, explained, and properly
supported.

Stephen R. Lee

29

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(d)

Annual and monthly budget for the 12 months
preceding filing date, base period and forecasted
period.

Stephen R. Lee

30

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(e)

Attestation signed by utility’s chief officer in

charge of Kentucky operations providing:

1. That forecast is reasonable, reliable, made in
good faith and that all basic assumptions used
have been identified and justified; and

2. That forecast contains same assumptions and
methodologies used in forecast prepared for use
by management, or an identification and
explanation for any differences; and

3. That productivity and efficiency gains are
included in the forecast.

Juha S. Janson

31

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(f)

For each major construction project constituting
5% or more of annual construction budget within 3
year forecast, following information shall be filed:
1. Date project began or estimated starting date;
2. Estimated completion date;

3. Total estimated cost of construction by year

Gary J. Hebbeler

271549
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exclusive and inclusive of Allowance for Funds
Used During construction (‘AFUDC”) or
Interest During construction Credit; and
4. Most recent available total costs incurred
exclusive and inclusive of AFUDC or Interest
During Construction Credit.
] 32 | 807 KAR 5:001 For all construction projects constituting less than Gary J. Hebbeler
Section 10 (9)(g) | 5% of annual construction budget within 3 year
forecast, file aggregate of information requested in
paragraph (f) 3 and 4 of this subsection.
l 33 | 807 KAR 5:001 Financial forecast for each of 3 forecasted years Stephen R. Lee
Section 10 (9)(h) | included in capital construction budget supported Stephen G De May
by underlying assumptions made in projecting
results of operations and including the following
information:
1. Operating income statement {exclusive of
dividends per share or earnings per share);
2. Balance sheet;
3. Statement of cash flows;
4. Revenue requirements necessary to support the
forecasted rate of return;
5. Load forecast including energy and demand
(electric); H6, #13, #16 & #17
6. Access line forecast (telephone); Not applicable
7. Mix of generation (electric);
8. Mix of gas supply (gas);
9. Employee level;
10.Labor cost changes;
I 1.Capital structure requirements;
|12.Rate base;
13.Gallons of water projected to be sold (water);
14.Customer forecast (gas, water);
15.MCF sales forecasts (gas);
16.Toll and access forecast of number of calls and
number of minutes (telephone); and
17.A detailed explanation of any other information
provided.
] 34 | 807 KAR 5:001 Most recent FERC or FCC audit reports. Brenda R. Melendez
Section 10 (9)(1)
| 35 | 807 KAR 5:001 Prospectuses of most recent stock or bond Stephen G. De May
Section 10 (9)(j) | offerings.
1 36 | 807 KAR 5:001 Most recent FERC Form 1 (electric), FERC Form Brenda R. Melendez
Section 10 (9)(k) | 2 (gas), or the Automated Reporting Management
Information System Report (telephone) and PSC
Form T (telephone).
2 37 | 807 KAR 5:001 Annual report to shareholders or members and Stephen G. De May
Section 10 (9)(1) | statistical supplements for the most recent 5 years
prior to application filing date.
2 38 | 807 KAR 5:001 Current chart of accounts if more detailed than Brenda R. Melendez
Section 10 (9)(m) | Uniform System of Accounts charts.
271549
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R I  « nd
VS

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(n)

Latest 12 months of the monthly managerial
reports providing financial results of operations in
comparison to forecast.

Stephen R. Lee

o
=N
<

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(0)

Complete monthly budget variance reports, with
narrative explanations, for the 12 months prior to
base period, each month of base period, and
subsequent months, as available.

Stephen R. Lee

41

(O]

807 KAR 3:001
Section 10 (9)(p)

SEC’s annual report for most recent 2 years, Form
10-Ks and any Form 8-Ks issued during prior 2
years and any Form 10-Qs issued during past 6
quarters.

Stephen G. De May

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(q)

Independent auditor’s annual opinion report, with
any written communication which indicates the
existence of a material weakness in internal
controls.

Stephen G. De May

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(r)

Quarterly reports to the stockholders for the most
recent 5 quarters.

David L. Doss

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(s)

Summary of latest depreciation study with
schedules itemized by major plant accounts,
except that telecommunications utilities adopting
PSC’s average depreciation rates shall identify
current and base period depreciation rates used by
major plant accounts. [f information has been
filed in another PSC case, refer to that case’s
number and style.

John J. Spanos

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(t)

List all commercial or in-house computer
software, programs, and models used to develop
schedules and work papers associated with
application. Include each software, program, or
model; its use; identify the supplier of each; briefly
describe software, program, or model;
specifications for computer hardware and
operating system required to run program

Robert M. Parsons, Jr.

807 KAR 5:001
Section 10 (9)(u)

1f utility had any amounts charged or allocated to

it by affiliate or general or home office or paid any

monies to affiliate or general or home office

during the base period or during previous 3

calendar years, file:

1. Detailed description of method of calculation
and amounts allocated or charged to utility by
affiliate or general or home office for each
allocation or payment;

2. method and amounts allocated during base
period and method and estimated amounts to be
allocated during forecasted test period;

3. Explain how allocator for both base and
forecasted test period was determined; and

4. All facts relied upon, including other regulatory
approval, to demonstrate that each amount
charged, allocated or paid during base period is
reasonable.

David L. Doss

271549
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4 47 | 807KAR 5:001 If gas, electric or water utility with annual gross Donald L. Storck
Section 10 (9)(v) | revenues greater than $35,000,000, cost of service
study based on methodology generally accepted in
industry and based on current and reliable data
from single time period.
4 48 | 807 KAR 3:001 Local exchange carriers with fewer than 50,000 Not applicable
Section 10 (9)(w) | access lines need not file cost of service studies,
except as specifically directed by PSC. Local
exchange carriers with more than 50,000 access
lines shall file:
I. Jurisdictional separations study consistent with
Part 36 of the FCC’s rules and regulations; and
2. Service specific cost studies supporting pricing
of services generating annual revenue greater
than $1,000,000 except local exchange access:
a.  Based on current and reliable data from
single time period; and
b.  Using generally recognized fully
allocated, embedded, or incremental cost
principles.
4 49 | 807 KAR 5:001 Jurisdictional financial summary for both base and Robert M. Parsons, Jr.
Section 10 (10)(a) | forecasted periods detailing how utility derived
amount of requested revenue increase.
4 50 | 807 KAR 5:001 Jurisdictional rate base summary for both base and Robert M. Parsons, Jr.
Section 10 forecasted periods with supporting schedules
(10)(b) which include detailed analyses of each
component of the rate base.
4 51 | 807 KAR 5:001 Jurisdictional operating income summary for both Robert M. Parsons, Jr.
Section 10 (10)(c) | base and forecasted periods with supporting
schedules which provide breakdowns by major
account group and by individual account.
4 52 | 807 KAR 5:001] Summary of jurisdictional adjustments to Robert M. Parsons, Jr.
Section 10 operating income by major account with
(10)(d) supporting schedules for individual adjustments
and jurisdictional factors.
4 53 | 807 KAR 5:001 Jurisdictional federal and state income tax Robert M. Parsons
Section 10 (10)(e) | summary for both base and forecasted periods with
all supporting schedules of the various components
of jurisdictional income taxes.
4 54 | 807 KAR 5:001 Summary schedules for both base and forecasted Robert M. Parsons, Jr.
Section 10 (10)(f) | periods (utility may also provide summary
segregating items it proposes to recover in rates) of
organization membership dues; initiation fees;
expenditures for country club; charitable
contributions; marketing, sales, and advertising;
professional services; civic and political activities;
employee parties and outings; employee gifts; and
rate cases.
4 55 | 807 KAR 5:001 Analyses of payrol! costs including schedules for Jay R. Alvaro
Section 10 wages and salaries, employee benefits, payroll
(10)(g) taxes, straight time and overtime hours, and
executive compensation by title.
271549
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4 56 | 807 KAR 5:001 Computation of gross revenue conversion factor Robert M. Parsons, Jr.
Section 10 for forecasted period.
(10)(h)
4 57 | 807 KAR 5:001 Comparative income statements (exclusive of Stephen R. Lee
Section 10 (10)(i) | dividends per share or earnings per share), revenue
statistics and sales statistics for 5 calendar years
prior to application filing date, base period,
forecasted period, and 2 calendar years beyond
forecast period.
4 58 | 807 KAR 5:001 Cost of capital summary for both base and Stephen G. De May
Section 10 (10)(j) | forecasted periods with supporting schedules
providing details on each component of the capital
structure.
4 59 | 807 KAR 5:001 Comparative financial data and earnings measures Stephen R. Lee
Section 10 for the 10 most recent calendar years, base period,
(o)) and forecast period.
4 60 | 807 KAR 5:001 Narrative description and explanation of all James E. Ziolkowski
Section 10 (10)(I) | proposed tariff changes.
4 61 | 807 KAR 5:001 Revenue summary for both base and forecasted James E. Ziolkowski
Section 10 periods with supporting schedules which provide
(10)(m) detailed billing analyses for all customer classes.
4 62 | 807 KAR 5:001 Typical bill comparison under present and James E. Ziolkowski
Section 10 proposed rates for all customer classes.
10)(n)
4 63 | 807 KAR 5:001 Amount of change requested in dollar amounts and James E. Ziolkowski
Section (10)(3) percentage for each customer classification to
which change will apply.
a. Present and proposed rates for each customer
class to which change would apply.
b. Electric, gas, water and sewer utilities-the effect
upon average bill for each customer class to
which change would apply.
c. Local exchange companies-include effect upon
average bill for each customer class for change
in basic local service,
4 64 | 807 KAR 5:001 [f copy of public notice included, did it meet Julia S. Janson
Section 10 requirements?
@) (e)(@)(eX(f)
4 65 | 807 KAR 5:001 Amount and kinds of stock authorized. Stephen G. De May
Section 6(1)
4 66 | 807 KAR 5:001 Amount and kinds of stock issued and outstanding. Stephen G. De May
Section 6(2)
4 67 | 807 KAR 5:001 Terms of preference of preferred stock whether Stephen G. De May
Section 6(3) cumulative or participating, or on dividends or
assets or otherwise.
4 68 | 807 KAR 5:001 Brief description of each mortgage on property of Stephen G. De May
Section 6(4) applicant, giving date of execution, name of
mortgagor, name of mortgagee, or trustee, amount
of indebtedness authorized to be secured thereby,
and the amount of indebtedness actually secured,
together with any sinking fund provisions.
271549
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4 69 | 807 KAR 5:001 Amount of bonds authorized, and amount issued, Stephen G. De May
Section 6(5) giving the name of the public utility which issued
the same, describing each class separately, and
giving date of issue, face value, rate of interest,
date of maturity and how secured, together with
amount of interest paid thereon during the last
fiscal year.
4 70 | 807 KAR 5:001 Each note outstanding, giving date of issue, Stephen G. De May
Section 6(6) amount, date of maturity, rate of interest, in whose
favor, together with amount of interest paid
thereon during the last fiscal year.
4 71 | 807 KAR 5:001 Other indebtedness, giving same by classes and Stephen G. De May
Section 6(7) describing security, if any, with a brief statement
of the devolution or assumption of any portion of
such indebtedness upon or by person or
corporation if the original liability has been
transferred, together with amount of interest paid
thereon during the last fiscal year.
4 72 | 807 KAR 5:001 Rate and amount of dividends paid during the five Stephen G. De May
Section 6(8) (5) previous fiscal years, and the amount of capital
stock on which dividends were paid each year.
4 73 | 807 KAR 5:001 Detailed income statement and balance sheet. Robert M. Parsons, Jr.
Section 6(9)
5 - 807 KAR 3:001 Schedule Book (Schedules A-K) Various
Sction 10(10) (a)
through (k)
6 - 807 KAR 5:001 Schedule Book (Schedules L-N) Various
Sction 10(10) (1)
through (n)
7 - - Work papers Various
8 - 807 KAR 5:001 Testimony (Volume 1 of 2) -
Section 10(9)(a)
9 - 807 KAR 5:001 Testimony (Volume 2 of 2) -
Section 10(9)(a)
10 - KRS 278.2205(6) | Cost Allocation Manual Brenda R. Melendez
- - 807 KAR 5:056 Coal Contracts Not Applicable-
Section 1(7)
271549




STANDARD FILING REQUIREMENT SCHEDULES

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
GAS CASE NO. 2009-00202
DATE: July 1, 2009
GENERAL APPLICATION FOR CHANGE IN
GAS RATES BEFORE KENTUCKY PUBLIC
SERVICE COMMISSION
NAME: DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY

ADDRESS: 1697-A MONMOUTH STREET
NEWPORT, KENTUCKY 41071

MAILING
ADDRESS: P.0O.BOX 960
CINCINNATI, OHIO 45201

TELEPHONE: AREA CODE 513 NUMBER 419-5908

COMPANY OFFICIAL TO BE CONTACTED
PERTAINING TO RATE CASE MATTERS William Don Wathen Jr.

FILING DATE: July 1, 2009

ATTORNEYS FOR APPLICANT:

NAME: Rocco D’Ascenzo

ADDRESS: P. O. Box 960
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

TELEPHONE: (513)419-1852

* * % FOR COMMISSION USE ONLY * * *

DATE RECEIVED BY COMMISSION

DOCKET NUMBER ASSIGNED

RECEIVED BY

DATE ACCEPTED

ACCEPTED BY




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF THE ADJUSTMENT
OF GAS RATES OF DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

CASE NO. 2009-00202

FILING REQUIREMENTS

VOLUME 1






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
KRS 278.180

KRS 278.180

Description of Filing Requirement:

Thirty-day notice of rates to Kentucky Public Service Commission.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson




J00% - 00207
Duke JULIE S. JANSON
ﬁ E nergy® President

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL 139 £ Fourth Street

EA503

Cincinnati, OH 45202

June 1, 2009
513-419-5757

EEVF D 513-419-5842 fax
RE@ . julie janson@duke-energy com

Mr. Jeff Derouen

Executive Director JUN© 1 2009
Kentucky Public Service Commission PUBLIC SERVICE
211 Sower Boulevard COMMISSION
P.O. Box 615

Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615

Re: Notice of Duke Energy Kentucky. Inc.'s Intent to File a General Natural
Gas Rate Case

Dear Mr. Derouen:

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc (“Duke Energy Kentucky” or the “Company”)
notifies the Commission that it will file a general natural gas rate case in four weeks or
reasonably soon thereafter.! Duke Energy Kentucky will use a forward-looking test
period for this case.

In Duke Energy Kentucky’s last general natural gas rate case, the Commission
ordered the Company to file its next gas rate case to coincide with the completion of the
Accelerated Main Replacement Program (“AMRP™). Duke Energy Kentucky’s AMRP is
scheduled to be completed in 2010 as anticipated, and within the forecasted test period
proposed in this case.

Duke Energy Kentucky is providing a copy of this notice to the Attorney
General's Utility Intervention and Rate Division. We will work diligently with the
Commission and our other stakeholders to seek a constructive resolution. Thank you for
your consideration.

Sincerely,

1
President, Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

JSJ/ ROD

! Duke Energy Kentucky provides this notice pursuant to Commission regulation 807 KAR 5:001

Section 10(2).
: In the Matter of: An Adjustment of the Gas Rates of The Union Light, Heat & Power Company,
Case No 2005-00042, (Order at 113) (December 22, 2005).

www duke-energy com



Mr. Jeff Derouen
June 1, 2009
Page 2 of 2

cc: Chairman David L. Armstrong (via overnight mail)
Vice Chairman James W. Gardner (via overnight mail)
Commissioner John W. Clay (via overnight mail)
Hon. Jack Conway (via overnight mail)
Hon. Dennis G. Howard (via overnight mail)

272183






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 8(1)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 8 (1)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Full name and P. O. address of applicant and reference to the particular provision of law requiring

Kentucky Public Service Commission approval.

Response:

See notice and statement.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 8(2)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 8 (2)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The original and 10 copies of application plus copy for anyone named as interested party.
Response:

Original and 10 copies filed with the Kentucky Public Service Commission. Copies provided to
interested parties listed on the Certificate of Service.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(1)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(1)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Statement of the reason the adjustment is required.

Response:

Please refer to the direct testimony of Duke Energy Kentucky witnesses Julia S. Jansen and William

Don Wathen Jr.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Jansen
William Don Wathen Jr.

Page 1 of 1






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(2)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(2)

Description of Filing Requirement:

A statement that the utility's annual reports, including the annual report for the most recent calendar

year, are on file with the commission in accordance with 807 KAR 5:006, Section 3(1)

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky certifies that its annual reports are on file with the Commission in
accordance with 807 KAR 5:006, Section (3)(1). Its most recent annual report for the year
ending 2008 was filed with the Commission in two separate filings on March 26, 2009 and April

29,2009 per an approved extension request.

6’(1/1/11& L. M%DZQ?

Brenda R. Melendez a/
Manager Accounting
Duke Energy Business Services







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(3)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(3)

Description of Filing Reguirement:

A certified copy of the utility’s Articles of Incorporation.

Response:

A certified copy of Duke Energy Kentucky’s Articles of Incorporation and amendments thereto is

attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson




CERTIFICATE OF ASSISTANT SECRETARY

I, RICHARD G. BEACH, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the Assistant
Secretary of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc., a Kentucky corporation (“Company”), and that
as such Assistant Secretary, I am authorized to execute and deliver this certificate and that

the information set forth herein is true and correct.

I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE Restated and Amended Articles
of Incorporation, duly adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors, effective July 24,
1997, and the Articles of Amendment by Shareholders, effective October 1, 2006, attached
hereto as Exhibit A are the current Articles of Incorporation of the Company and are in

full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 22nd day of

June, 2009.

Rnchg/d‘c’" B/ ch

Assistant Secretary




0052929.09 %A

Trey Grayson

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT gzzgf\f:;yazgsg‘“i
BY SHAREHOLDERS 09/18/2006 12:12:41 PM

Fee Receipt: $40.00
Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 271B of the Kentucky Revised Statutes,
the undersigned corporation hereby amends its Articles of Incorporation, and for that
purpose, submits the following statement:
1. The name of the corporation is The Union Light, Heat and Power Company.

2. On October 1, 2006 the sole shareholder of the corporation unanimously adopted
the following amendment of its Articles of Incorporation:

FIRST: The name of the corporation is Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”).

3. The date the amendment will be effective is October 1, 2006.

Date @Mmﬁf 4 . J00G6

The Union Light Heat and Powe: T »mpany

o KSHO

ach Assistant Secretary

KY006 — 5/13/03 C T System Online

193414



Restated and Amended
Articles of Incorporation

of

The Union Light, Heat and Power Company

Restated Effective May 7, 1976
Amended Effective July 24, 1997



RESTATED AND AMENDED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
of
THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT AND POWER COMPANY

The Union Light, Heat and Power Company, a corporation for profit, heretofore organized in the
year 1901 and now existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, adopts, makes and files,
pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statutes Section 271A.320, these Restated Articles of Incorporation to
supersede and take the place of its heretofore existing Articles of Incorporation and all previously adopted
Amendments thereto:

ARTICLE FIRST

The name of the corporation is The Union Light, Heat and Power Company (hereinafter referred to
as the “Company”).

ARTICLE SECOND

The Company commenced its existence on the Twentieth day of March, 1901, and shall have
perpetual duration.

ARTICLE THIRD

The place in the Commonwealth of Kentucky where the registered office is located is C T
Corporation System, ¢/o Kentucky Home Life Building, in the City of Louisville, and the County of
Jefferson, and the principal place of business of the Company is located at 107 Brent Spence Square, in the
City of Covington, and the County of Kenton.

ARTICLE FOURTH
The corporate purposes of the Company are as follows:

(a) The construction, operation and maintenance of works and plants for the manufacture,
generation, production, purchase, delivery and sale of steam, hot water, water, electricity and of gas, both
natural and artificial, and of their by-products, and for the production, delivery and sale of any other kind of
light; and the furnishing, supplying and selling said electricity and natural and artificial gas, or any kiad of
light for lighting the streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lands, squares, public places and building of cities,
villages, towns, districts, and counties, and, also furnishing, supplying and selling said steam, hot water,
water, and electricity, and natural and artificial gas, or any kind of light to said cities, villages, towns,
districts, and counties, and to the inhabitants thereof, for light, heat, water and power purposes, and for all
other purposes for which steam, hot water, water, electricity and natural and artificial gas, or any kind of
light, may be used; and to enable it to carry out said purposes, the Company is authorized and empowered
to construct, purchase or otherwise acquire, own, lease, operate and maintain all necessary plants,
buildings, pipes, wires, machinery, apparatus and appliances and other material and property, both real and
personal, necessary or convenient therefor, and to lease, let, sell, or otherwise dispose of the same, or any
part thereof; and to conduct, distribute and supply said steam, hot water, water, electricity and gas, or any
kind of light, both natural and artificial, by means of any material, pipes, conduits, apparatus, or other
devices, either on, above or under the ground;



(b) To subscribe for, or to purchase, or otherwise acquire the possession of , and sell shares
of stock or bonds, or other securities of any other company or corporation, resident or non-resident of the
State of Kentucky; and

(c) To do and perform all other matters and things which may be necessary or desirable to
carry out any or all of said objects or purposes.

ARTICLE FIFTH

The capital stock of the Company shall be Fifteen Million Dollars ($15,000,000) divided into
1,000,000 shares of the par value of Fifteen Dollars ($15) each.

The holders of Capital Stock shall not be entitled to subscribe for or purchase or receive any part
of any new or additional issue of, or any warrant, option or other right for the purchase of, stock of any class
or securities convertible into stock of any class whether now or hereafter authorized and whether issued for
cash, property, by way of dividends or otherwise, except as authorized by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE SIXTH

The Company shall have the poser to borrow money and to issue bonds, bills, promissory notes or
other evidences of indebtedness and to pledge or mortgage its property, real and personal, to secure the
same.

ARTICLE SEVENTH

The affairs of the Company shall be conducted by a Board of no fewer than five, nor more than
fifteen directors, who need not be stockholders in the Company, and by the officers who may be chosen by
said Board. The Board of Directors of the Company shall be chosen by the stockholders at the regular
annual meeting of the Company in each year, or at such other time and place as the stockholders may
designate. All directors shall continue in office until their successors are elected and have entered upon the
discharge of their duties.

Restated effective May 7, 1976
Amended effective July 24, 1997



Trey Gréyéon
Secretary of State

Certificate

I, Trey Grayson, Secretary of State for the Commonwealth of Kentucky, do
hereby certify that the foregoing writing has been carefully compared by me
with the original thereof, now in my official custody as Secretary of State and
remaining on file in my office, and found to be a true and correct copy of

RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT & POWER COMPANY FILED MAY 7, 1976;

STATEMENT OF CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE OR REGISTERED AGENT FILED
DECEMBER 27, 1983;

STATEMENT OF CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE OR REGISTERED AGENT FILED
DECEMBER 28, 1987;

STATEMENT OF CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE OR REGISTERED AGENT FILED
JULY 24,1997.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
Official Seal at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 1st day of August, 2006.

Tab :
o

Trey Grayson
Secretary of State

Commonwealth of Kentucky
vbennett /0052929 - Certificate 1D: 34761

Kentucky Secretary of State's Office Corporate Records 8/1/2006 - Page 10l 1
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&)“N OFFICE OF

SECRETARY OF STATE

.\ﬁ.la’ o,
/s t’e

DREXELL R. DAVIS

Secretary

FRANKFORT,
KENTUCKY

RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

UNION LIGHT, HEAT & POWER COMPANY

{, DREXELL R. DAVIS, Secretary of Staie of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, hereby
certify that triplicate originals of Restated Articles of Incorporation of

UNION LIGHT, HEAT & POWER COMPANY (COVINGTON, KENTUCKY)

duly signed and verified pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 2714 of the Kentucky
Revised Statutes, have been received in this office and are found to conform to law.
Therefore, as Secretary of State and by virtue of the authority vested in me by law,

I hereby issue this Restated Certificate of Incorporation of

UNION LIGHT, HEAT & POWER COMPANY (COVINGTON, KENTUCKY)

and attach hereto one of the originals of the Restated Articles of Incorporation.

Given under my hand and seal of Of]ice,‘qs Secretary of
State, at Frankfort, Kentucky, this T
day of . MAY , 1976

e - X
BLCRETARY OF GTATE

SECRETARY OF STATE

ASSISTANT GECRETARY OF STATE




%ﬂw OFFICE OF

SECRETARY OF STATE

2 ST
St :lt“‘1“ 'Urv S
DREXELL R. DAVIS FRANKFORT), 1+ {1151/ 1 )
Secretary KENTUCKYL( e g
T oAy 7 WIE T

Commoaweaith of Kermddy
RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION .

Pursuant to the'brovisions of Chapter 271A of the Kentucky Revised
Statutes, the undersigned 6orporation hereby adopts the attached Re- ?
stated Articles of Incorporatioi. as adopted by a resolution of its

Board of Directors.

Except for ARTICLE FIFTH thereof (previously Section 4 of thae Articles),

which was amended to read as shown through the adoption of an amendatory

resolution by the affirmative vote of a majority of the shareholders
at the Annual Meeting held on May 5, 1976, the attached Restated
Articles of Incarporatlon correctly set forth without change the

S b @ =
correspondlng prov*slons of the Articles of Incorporation as heretofore
amended, and supeféede the original Articles of Incorporation and all
amendments thereto.

patea May & , 1976 The Union Light, Heat and Power Company

Corporate Name

ORIGINAL COPY,
FILED
SECRETARY OF STATE OF KENTUCKY
FRANKFGRT, KERTUCKY . Pres ident

MAY - 1976

@ i ,(gi 2 ‘( Secre tarﬁy
(Verification

SECRECART OF ? everse s de)




May 07 1976 55

Commonwealth of Kthuck)f

#estated 18810

Actirles of Jucorporation

of

The Wnion Wight, Heat and Power Company

Effective
May L1976




RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
of
THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT AND POWER COMPANY
The Union Light, Heat and Power Company, a corporation for profit, heretofore organized in the year
1901 and now existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, adopts, makes and files, pursuant
to Kentucky Revised Statutes Section 271A.320, these Restated Articles of Incorporation to supersede and

take the place of its herctofore cxisting Articles of Incorporation and all previously adopted Amendments
thereto:

ARTICLE FIRST

. The name of the corporation is The Union Light, Heat and Power Company (hereinafter referred to
as the “Compuny”™).

ARTICLE SECOND

The Company commenced {ts existence on the Twentieth day of March, 1901, and shall have perpetual
duration.

ARTICLE THIRD

The place in the Commonwealth of Kentucky where the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company is located is 107 Brent Spence Square, in the City of Covingtan, and the County of Kenton.

ARTICLE FOURTH

The corporate purposes of the Company are as foliows:

{a) The construction, operation and maintenance of works and plants for the manufacture, gener-
ation, production, purchase, delivery and sale of steam, hot water, water, electricity and of gas, both natural
and artifical, and of their by-products, and for the productioun, delivery and sale of any other kind of light;
and the furnishing, supplying and selling said electricity and natucal and artificial gas, or any kind of light
for lighting the streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lands, squares, public places and buildings of cities, villages,
towns, districts, and countics; and, also furnishing, supplying and selling said steam, hot water, water, and




OFFICE OF
SECRETARY OF STATE

Frances Jones Mills FRAN&FORT - TATE
Secretary KENT[%FY. - ,‘\V/E@ |
DEC 27 1953 |

STATEMENT OF CHANGE Commonicaf o of Kentucky
OF REGISTERED OFFICE OR REGISTERED AGENT

326030
Pursuant to the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statutes Chapter 2714, the undersigned
corporation organized in the state of Kentucky submits the following

statement for the purpose of designating its registered office and registered agent in the
Commonwealth of Kentucky:

The name of the corporation The Union Light, Heat and Power Company

Address of its registered office __107 Brent Spenc g_Square.,.-Covington,—KY— 41011
Address of registered office is hereby changed to ___Not Applicable

Name of registered agent J2Ck J. Heupel

Name of registered agent is hereby changed to John T. Rasp

The address of its registered office and the address of the business of its registered agent
will be identical. Such change was authorized by resclution adopted by its Beard of

Directors.
Dated December 19 J9_ 83
The Union Light, Heat and Power Company
(Verification on CORPORATION
reverse side) /é f 22 . : :
By yZ
ORIGINAL COPY FiLED arricen
SECRETARY OF STATE OF KENTUCKY William H. Dickhoner
FRANKEOR President
€, KENTUCKY g
CEC 27 1332

2. Enclese fee of $10.00.

INSTRUCTIONS '
\w% %{ L mlto Secretary of State, Capitol Building, Frankfort, Kentucky
RECAEYARY ov% '




THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

DONALD R B8LUM

s€CcAacrany

December 22,

Honorable Frances Jones Mills

Secretary of State betl Tl :
Commonwealth of Kentucky o
P. O. Box 1150 foTTanreuc T A o ey 3

Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-3493

Dear Madam:

Re: Statement of Change of Registered Agent
KRS 271A.065

%
S

Enclosed in duplicate for filing in accordance with
KRS 271A.065 are statements of change of registered agent for
each of the following corporations:

The Union Light, Heat and Power Company
Miami Power Corporation

Tri-State Improvement Company

YGK Inc.

Also enclosed are the respective checks for each of the
above four (4) corporations payable to the Secretary of State in

the amount of $10.00 each, in remittance of the filing fee
prescribed by KRS 271A.630.

Very truly yours,
it ) g
Donald R. Blum
je

Encls.
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SLECRETARY OF STATE

DREXELL R. DAVIS

Secretary

FRANKFGRT,
KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF CHANGE
OF REGISTERED OFFICE OR REGISTERED AGENT

OR BOTH 503850y

Pursuant to the provisiuns of Keniueky Revised Statutes Cliapter 271 d, the under-

sicned corporation orgarized in the siute of Kenitucky _ submits the fol-
fowing statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent
or both in the Conunonwealth of Kentucly: ﬁ‘

The name of the corporation The Union Ljcht, Heat and Pover Companyj

Address of its present registered office _10] Brent Spence Square, Covington, KY 41012-0032

dddress of registered ofice is hereby changed to Not Applicable
Name of present registared agent Jahn T. Raso

Nume of registered agent is hereby changed to *he _Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company

c/o The Union Light, Heat sod Pover Company
The address of its registered office and the uddress of the business office of its regis-

tred agent, as changed will be identical. Such change swus autiiorized by resolution
adopted by its Bourd of Directors.

Dated _ _December 16, , 19 87 .

ORIGINAL COEYR
The Unlon Light, Heat and Powu: Compan:' FILED 0
7 uPcmATlSJL Py SECRETARY O SYATE OF KENTPowY G
/ / v / ERATORT Sanivey (’\ )
By k(Q' a5t A /f(;r/f f/f \/ \v
o #RETIDENT O VICE FAZSIDERT ONLY NS ) 6(>\

s Jackson H. Rangolph L VIRERS TN R \[

/ . President \ (VY
W TITLE \/

INSTRUCTIONS ‘-
Malt 10 Secretary of State, Cuplial Building, Frankiort, Kentucky 40601, PO ‘ i
+  Enclose fcc of $10.00. Muke check payable to **Kentucky State Treaseree, T ey,

3. Submit In dupiicate. Alt coples must bie originally signed.
4. A post office box number is not acceptable unless it is accompanled by a ctrect,
highway, apaciment, ctc.

5. Reglstcred agent must be a Ken %y resideat oc cerpoaration. Registerod address
ntust he n Keatucky,

Aot Aot o e o @ e 4t
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JOHN Y. BROWN III

SECRETARY OF STATE i ST
STATEMENT OF CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICEZ:
OR REGISTERED AGENT OR BOTH P <m
Pursuant to the peovisions of Chapters 1718 or 273 of ihe Kentucky Revised Statutes, the undersigned submits the
fallowing statemenis oa behall of the corporation which is organized in the state of __ KENTUCKY for the

purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent or both in the Commoawealth of Kentucky:

The name of the corporation is THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT &.POWER COMPANY

The complete address of the current registered office is:
107 BRENT SPENCE SQUARE, COVINGTON, KY 41611
Street City/Stace Zip

The complete address of the current registered office is hereby changed to: €/0 C T CORPORATION SYSTEM
Kentucky Home Life Building, Louisville, Kentuckv 40202
Street City/Swate Zip

The name of the current registered agent is:

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

The name ol the current registered agent is hereby chianged to:
C T CORPORATION SYSTEM

The address of the registered office and the addeess of the business office of the registered agent, as changed, will be

idzndcal.
Dated uly 14 . 1997
SIGNATURE & TITLE
Jerome A. Vennemann, Assistant Secretary
.- PRINT or TYPE NAME & TITLE
CONSENT OF NEW AGENT ]
1 C T CORPORATION SYSTEM conseat to serve as the new registered agent on behalfl of this
/

corparation. Sy Susan J. Metze

. a1 ; Crerard
By: Ay I Z,’? -Assistant Secretary

Signature of Ncw%gcm
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Trey Grayson
Secretary of State

Certificate

I, Trey Grayson, Secretary of State for the Commonwealth of Kentucky, do
hereby certify that the foregoing writing has been carefully compared by me
with the original thereof, now in my official custody as Secretary of State and
remaining on file in my office, and found to be a true and correct copy of

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC. FILED MARCH 30, 1901;

CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMED NAME OF CINERGY-ULH&P HAS BEEN ADOPTED BY
THE UNION LIGHT HEAT AND POWER COMPANY FILED NOVEMBER 17, 1997;

CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMED NAME OF THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT AND POWER
COMPANY HAS BEEN ADOPTED BY DUKE ENERY KENTUCKY, INC FILED
OCTOBER 12, 2006.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
Official Seal at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 6th day of May, 2009.

Taby-

Trey Grayson
Secretary of State

Commonwealth of Kentucky
khamilton/0052929 - Certificate ID: 80053

Kentucky Secretary of State’s Office Corporate Records 5/6/2009 - Page 1 of 1
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KNYOoOWwW ALT YFN RY “"HEXESE PRFEFSET®S
That €. ¥, Wetfnore, Jamea 0, Ernst, Charlesa R. Prior,
and J. Theadore Toniloana, fava tidsz o annoc iated tlenaalves
Lo thes Lo agtabldal i rorpore? Lon under the lawtp of 15
Comionv-dlth of Fentucky, upon .ne terms and co-ditions, and ‘or
the purros«s hereinafter rentioned, to-wid;

Section Y, “ha nuie of midd cor oration shall he The
Unlon Light Heat and “ower Conpany,

Section 2, Tie aripcipal 07" ice of sald carnorat lon
shall be locatad ir the it of Tavington, Yenton County, Vean-
tu&ky, W' sald corporation liar establish branch o7 fices nnd
conduct and carry on husiness at suci: other nlaces within or
without the “tate of Fentucky, 8 1its Tourd of Dirsctorsg may
from tire to tire 1> or designate, and an; business conducted
or carrisd en at sich other rlace o rlaces, shuall be ur binding

and effectual :@ if transacted at the prinecipul o7Ci-e of Baid

Com wny,

ﬁecéion 3, Tie natu-e of the business wn?' the objiects or
purnoges proposed to be transactsd, promoted orcarried on by
suid coryoration, are the construction, operation and rainte-
nunce of worka wand vlants for the marmifacture, generation, pro-
dur tion, vurchase, delivery and sale of steam, .07 water, water,
elagtricity and of gac, Lot natural and artificial, ond o7
treir by-nradicts, and Tor the praduction; e iverr nd sale
of any other kind o Light; and the furnishing, supplying and
aellin; said e’ectricity (a1 natural and art iticial g..&, or
any kind of 1ight for 14iphting the streets, roads, avenues,
alleys, ‘ands, squares, public places and bulldings of cities,
villapges, towns, dts'ric:s, and countles; &nd, alse fwnishing,
unplying and selling said steum, ¢- water, water, pnd electric-

ity, and narural and artificlad g5, or any kind of 1ight ro said
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~ities, villepen, towns, districts, and counties, and to the
inhahitants thereof, for licht, heat, water and power Purposes,
and for all other murposes Tor which steam, hot water, water,
electyricity and natural and artificial gas,or any kind of Iisht,
mA* he used; &nd to enable it to ca-ry ow! 6.1d purposes, sunid
corporation 18 aathorized sand empdwered to construct, purchase or
otherwise acquire, own, lease, operate andéd rimintain sl1l neceassary
plan's, buildings, pipes, wires, mahinery, apparatus and appli-
ances wnd oth&rnateriu%:;roperty, both real and ersonal,
necessury or convenient therefor, and to 'ease, let, sell, or
otherwi~e dlspose of the game, or any part thereof; and tn cone-
duct, distribute and supply said steam, hot water, water, elec-
trie tr and pus, or any kind of light, bhoth natural and art{fi-
cianl, Ly means of anr raterial, pipes, condults, apparatus, or
other devices, eitiier on, abovz or unde the ground.

And suid corporation ahall have full vowe * wnd authority
to aubscribe Tor, or to purchasw, or otlgrwise acquire the
yossession of, and sell shares of rntock or bonds, or other securw

ities of any otha Company or corporation, resident or non-resi-
dent. ~nf the State of Fentucky,

And said corporation is authorized and empowered to do und
rerforem all other nmatters und things which muy be neceasary or

desirable to ca '~y out, uny or all of siald ohjects or mirnoses,

Section 4, The canital stock of sald cor-oration sha?l e
be one midlion, five hundred thousind dollars (81,500,000.00)
divided inte Tiftean thousand (15,000) shares of the par valne i

of one hundred dollura [8$166.60) each.

Jectlon 5, The following persons ha-e subscribed to the

capital stock of anld cororation, In tie amounts set oprosite
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thair nives respectively:

. 2 shares
Chele-a ¥, Prior, : » Eégg shares
J. "heodore VonHoene, " (:EZAA;;[:k‘ 2 I ghares
C. ¥, ¥otmore, " Wg‘k ‘70({ shares

s ﬂhm-ea

James . Frmst.,

Section £, Said corporation ahall commence its existence

or the twentletlh day of March, 1 l, and shall dontinue for a

r riod of ninetv-nine vears.

Section 7, "he affulrs: of sald corporation shall be
conducted by » hoard of not fewer thun five or more than fifteen
disctors, who shidll he atockholders in the Companv, and by the
nfticars wio nay he ¢ osen by raid hoard. The first Roard of
Directors af suid Conmpan: shall he chosen b the stockholders at
4 meetin to he held at the principal office of sald Company
on the twenty-Tirst day of I'mrch 1901, and thereafter at such
t ime anid placa as the stockholders muy desirmate. All directors
shinll continue in office, until theair successors are elected

and bave entered upon tlie dischavge of tiweir dutles,

fection 8, "ie highest amount of Incebtedness whic’ the
Company 1 ¥ at w1y t e Ireur shull be an wmount not exceeding
douhle ti:e amount of the capital stock whicii the corporation

ig wt iy time wnmthorized to have; und to that extent said cor-

&

roration shall iuave power to horow money, uan ' to issue bondg,
hilla, jromissor:s notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, and
! to pleadpe or mortpagce ftruroperty, real .nd personal, to

secure the sume.
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Rection 9, The urivate or individual property of the

atockhalders of suald corporation ahall not be sul. legt to the

. o

——

pemsnt of the corporate debts.

£
-

In Titnesk Whereof, the said €, W, Votaore, Jamso Ce

Erwet, Charleo B, Prier and J. Tecodore Verlflomns,

-

4
have here:nto set thelr hands tl.is /S "qayr of .qrarch 1901.

PN

(314
;

pURm———— 4

W =

/
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)
)R8~
COTTY 6T PITTIA0)

Ty ’Q c /ftjﬂé“l"i y 8
NS 7 7

Notory Puibldie In an: fo safd Onunty ¢ Stute, do certify

that tie fore; 0dng Avticles of Trecorioration of The Unlon”

TApht Heat & Power Comnuny ware t:is day mroduced to ma

by the marties in  al¢ County s State, and then .nd thera

. . «
acknowledged hy 0, W, Wetriore, J.ass N, FBrnat, Charles 7. RN
Prior and J. Theadore Vonlloene to

be tieir act nd deed.

Given under mr hind oné seal of office t!is /J"“L(

By %ﬁ@ YR

die of Jiarch 1961, My Votarial Comadssion expires 24408

day of C‘?#___‘ 1902
Rty

\ e

e &

2L, Totery Publie

Familter Countd, Ghio,
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State of Kentucky, |

KENTCON COUNTY, }

Set.

e7ir M,l‘:}\ I’A\'FZAC, g/‘// y e gam// %‘r///, verlllon wnd //5,!
e %{m{y anid Stnte r;/n/f,,wrk/ e same 4/}:7 o Crwit / %fm{/{

| /{mwiy {z' ol and /m-/}y (ﬁ){k{/éﬁ&t/ y e DPovlortr / Vot and’

the aftfpocntment and qualfliation o Goreratons, tsnrnistintoss, %m-

dians and other Ficducrirtizs oo Aetelyy endgly thad the fotegang and
hoicte allaohed swtittng  contecsi @ 24 (mz/ aw/é/a by of se
Gl of P

ad /ﬁ/’/;l as e same ey/mld /(wz the Drowicts on /é e ey %fa.
in Testimony Whereol, 7 Ao Aotewnse
slcieted gy name and %fca:r/ e Seal

7/ “worid Coest al Ly 7///1}( o ng’ :
%M/M)ﬁl Hns V7 :za/z}zy’ - j:

" Koo f//. gl Y £

%%%;ézm? D E




0052929.04 °5
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY ;rey ?Zayi‘?"sme
TREY GRAYSON R:(c:;?vegy and Filed
10/12/2006 12:35:54 PM
Fee Receipt: $20.00

CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMED NAME

This certifies that the assumed name of

The Union Light, Heat and Power Company

{Name uader which the business wi be conducied]

has been adopted by Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc

[Real name - KRS 365.015(11]

which is the “real name” of [You MUST CHECK ONE]

_____aDomestic General Partnership ____aForeign General Partnership

__aDomestic Registered Limited Liability Partnership ______a Foreign Registered Limited Liability Partnership
—___aDomestic Limited Partnership _____aForeign Limited Partnership

____aDomestic Business Trust _____aForeign Business Trust

_X__aDomestic Corporation _____afForeign Corporation

—_aDomestic Limited Liability Company _____aForeign Limited Liability Company

__a Joint Venture

organized and existing in the state or country of Kentucky . and whose address is

221 East 4th St., Atrium II, 25th Floor, Cincinnati, OH 45202

Street sddress, it may Ciy State Zp Code

The certificate of assumed name is executed by

‘/ Binatire Signsture
R ~ Beach, Assistant Secretary
Print of type nama and ¥tia Print of typa name snd tide
Date Date
§8C-226 (7198) (See attached sheet for instructions)

KYO!l - 04/28/04 CT Sysiem Online



e

JOHN Y. BROWN IIX
SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMED NAME

THIS CERTIFIES THAT THE ASSUMED NAME OF

Cinergy - ULH&P

has been adopted by The Union Light Heat and Power Company

which is the REAL NAME of the

{Rca! Name - 365.015(1))

.. General Pactnership Corporation
Business Trust — Limited Partnership Joim Venture
[YOU MUST CHECK ONE]
***Sole proprictorships ARE NOT filed with the Secretary of State***
ovgavized and existing in the state of Kentucky and whose address is
107 Brent Spence Square, Covington, KY 41018
This Certificate of Assumed Name is Signed By:
Loy
Mame Rosemary Gfieme Nante
Tile Senlor Counsel Title
Narme Name
Tide Tite
Name Name
Tide Tide
Wi GEM

State of Ohio County of Hamilton

i, Ann M. Rulon notary public, do hereby certify that on this

3 V\d day of __November 19 personally appeared before me Rosemary E.
Grieme

5 hetthigis/drE the __Senior Counsel

of The Union Light Heat and Power

who bring by me first duly sworn, declared that

Company

corporation/parinership/irust/or joint venture.

My Commission Expires

{Sce Reverse side for Instructions)

$SC-226 (8-92) (KY. -

day of

she

July

and that RFEY signed the foregoing document on behalf of the

19 2002

Liom . fatr’

(Notary Public Signature)

8/16/96)



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(5)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(5)

Description of Filing Requirement:

If the utility is incorporated or is a limited partnership, a certificate of good standing or certificate of

authorization dated within sixty (60) days of the date the application is filed.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson




Commonwealth of Kentucky 5/6/2009
Trey Grayson, Secretary of State

Division of Comorations
Business Filings

P. O. Box 718 Certificate of Existence
Frankfort, KY 40602
(502) 564-2848
http://www.sos ky.gov

Authentication Number: 80051
Visit hitp://apps.sos.ky.gov/business/obdb/certvalidate.aspx to authenticate this certificate.

I, Trey Grayson, Secretary of State of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, do
hereby certify that according to the records in the Office of the Secretary of State,

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

is a corporation duly incorporated and existing under KRS Chapter 2718,
whose date of incorporation is March 20, 1901 and whose period of duration is
perpetual.

I further certify that all fees and penalties owed to the Secretary of State have
been paid; that articles of dissolution have not been filed; and that the most
recent annual report required by KRS 271B.16-220 has been delivered to the
Secretary of State.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
Official Seal at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 6th day of May, 2009.

“7716/5.

Trey Grayson
Secretary of State

Commonwealth of Kentucky
80051,/0052929



http://w.sos.ky.gov




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(4)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(4)

Description of Filing Requirement:

If the utility is a limited partnership, a certified copy of the limited partnership agreement and all
amendments thereto or out-of-state documents of similar import. If the utility's limited partnership
agreement and amendments have already been filed with the commission in a prior proceeding, the

application may state this fact making reference to the style and case number of the prior proceeding.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky is a corporation; therefore, this requirement does not apply.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(6)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(6)

Description of Filing Requirement:

A certified copy of a certificate of assumed name as required by KRS 365.015 or a statement that

such a certificate is not necessary.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson




Trey Grayson
Secretary of State

Certificate

I, Trey Grayson, Secretary of State for the Commonwealth of Kentucky, do
hereby certify that the foregoing writing has been carefully compared by me
with the original thereof, now in my official custody as Secretary of State and
remaining on file in my office, and found to be a true and correct copy of

CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMED NAME OF THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT AND POWER
COMPANY HAS BEEN ADOPTED BY
DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC. FILED OCTOBER 12, 2006.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
Official Seal at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 10th day of June, 2009.

T b~
o

Trey Grayson
Secretary of State

Commonwealth of Kentucky
khamilton/ 0052929 - Certificate [D: 81583

Kentucky Secretary of State's Office Corporate Records 6/10/2009 - Page 1 of 1
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY  Trey Grayson

ect te
TREY GRAYSON gege?\f:;yazfdsf:ti?ed
SECRETARY OF STATE 10/12/2006 12:35:54 PM

Fee Receipt: $20.00

CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMED NAME

This certifies that the assumed name of

The Union Light, Heat and Power Company

{Name under which the buskvess will be conducted]

has been adopted by Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc

[Real name - KRS 368 015(1)]

which is the “real name” of [You MUST CHECK ONE]

._.a Domestic General Partnership ___aForeign General Partnership

_—a Domestic Registered Limited Liability Partnership _____a Foreign Registered Limited Liability Partnership
—__.a Domestic Limited Partnership _____aForeign Limited Partnership

—._aDomestic Business Trust _____afForeign Business Trust

_X _aDomestic Corporation _____aForeign Corporation

___a Domestic Limited Liability Company _____aforeign Limited Liability Company

. a Joint Venture

organized and existing in the state or country of Kentucky . and whose address is

221 East 4th St., Atrium II, 25th Floor, Cincinnati, OH 45202

Streel addrasa. if any Ciy State Zip Code

The certificate of assumed name is executed by

W = e
R ~ Beach, Assistant Secretary

Prnt of type name and $ta Print of typa name snd tie

Date Oate

SSC-226 (7/98) (Seo attached sheet for instnuctions)
KYO! | - 04728/04 CT Sysem Online



Commonwealth of Kentucky 6/10/2009
Trey Grayson, Secretary of State

Division of Corporations
Business Filings

P. 0. Box 718 Certificate of Existence
Frankfort, KY 40602
(502) 564-2848
http://www.sos.ky.gov

Authentication Number: 81582
Visit hitp://apps.sos.ky.gov/business/obdb/certvalidate.aspx to authenticate this certificate.

I, Trey Grayson, Secretary of State of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, do
hereby certify that according to the records in the Office of the Secretary of State,

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

is a corporation duly incorporated and existing under KRS Chapter 271B,
whose date of incorporation is March 20, 1901 and whose period of duration is
perpetual.

I further certify that all fees and penalties owed to the Secretary of State have
been paid; that articles of dissolution have not been filed; and that the most
recent annual report required by KRS 271B.16-220 has been delivered to the
Secretary of State.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
Official Seal at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 10th day of June, 2009.

“7716'5_.

Trey Grayson
Secretary of State

Commonwealth of Kentucky
81582/0052929



http://www.sos.ky.gov




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(7)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(7)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The proposed tariff in a form which complies with 807 KAR 5:011 with an effective date not less

than thirty (30) days from the date the application is filed.

Response:

The proposed tariffs are at Schedule L-1.

Sponsoring Witness: James E. Ziolkowski







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(8)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(8)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The utility's proposed tariff changes, identified in compliance with 807 KAR 5:011, shown either
by:

a. Providing the present and proposed tariffs in comparative form on the same sheet side by
side or on facing sheets side by side; or

b. Providing a cop y of the present tariff indicating proposed additions by italicized inserts or
underscoring and striking over proposed deletions.

Response:

The proposed tariff changes are at Schedule L-2 (current tariffs with proposed additions in red-

line format).

Sponsoring Witness: James E. Ziolkowski







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(1)(b)(9)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(1)(b)(9)

Description of Filing Requirement:

A statement that customer notice has been given in compliance with subsections (3) and (4) of this

section with a copy of the notice.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson
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Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL 139 £ Fourth Street

EAS03

Cincinnati, OH 45202

June 1, 2009
513-419-5757

EQVED 513-419-5842 fax
RE@ julie janson@duke-energy com

Mr. Jeff Derouen

Executive Director JUNO 1 2003
Kentucky Public Service Commission PUBLIC SERVICE
211 Sower Boulevard COMMISSION
P.O. Box 615

Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615

Re: Notice of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.'s Intent to File a General Natural
Gas Rate Case

Dear Mr. Derouen:

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc (“Duke Energy Kentucky” or the “Company’)
notifies the Commission that it will file a general natural gas rate case in four weeks or
reasonably soon thereafter.’ Duke Energy Kentucky will use a forward-looking test
period for this case.

In Duke Energy Kentucky’s last general natural gas rate case, the Commission
ordered the Company to file its next gas rate case to coincide with the completion of the
Accelerated Main Replacement Program (“AMRP”). Duke Energy Kentucky’s AMRP is
scheduled to be completed in 2010 as anticipated, and within the forecasted test period
proposed in this case.?

Duke Energy Kentucky is providing a copy of this notice to the Attorney
General's Utility Intervention and Rate Division. We will work diligently with the
Commission and our other stakeholders to seek a constructive resolution. Thank you for
your consideration.

Sincerely,

i é

!
ilie S. Jan
President, Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

y]

JSI/ ROD

! Duke Energy Kentucky provides this notice pursuant to Commission regulation 807 KKAR 5:001

Section 10(2).
? In the Matter of> An Adjustment of the Gas Rates of The Union Light, Heat & Power Company,
Case No 2005-00042, (Order at 113) (December 22, 2005).

www duke-energy com



Mr. Jeff Derouen
June 1, 2009
Page 2 of 2

cc: Chairman David L. Armstrong (via overnight mail)
Vice Chairman James W. Gardner (via overnight mail)
Commissioner John W. Clay (via overnight mail)
Hon. Jack Conway (via overnight mail)
Hon. Dennis G. Howard (via overnight mail)

272183



NOTICE

Duke Erergy Kentucky, Inc. (Duke Energy Kentucky) hereby gives notice that it seeks approval by the
Kentucky Public Service Commission {(Commission) of an adjustment of gas rates to become effective on and
after July 31, 2009. The Commission has docketed this proceeding as Case No. 2009-00202.

The proposed gas rates are applicable to the following communities:

Alexandria
Bellevue

Boone County
Bromley

Butler

Campbell County
Cold Spring
Covington
Crescent Park
Crescent Springs
Crestview
Crestview Hills
Crittenden
Dayton

Dry Ridge
Edgewood
Elsmere

Erlanger
Fairview
Falmouth
Florence

Fort Mitchell
Fort Thomas
Fort Wright-Lookout Heights
Gallatin County
Glencoe

Grant County
Highland Heights
Independence
Kenton County
Kenton Vale
Lakeside Park
Latonia Lakes
Ludlow

Melbourne
Newport

Park Hills
Pendleton County
Ryland Heights
Silver Grove
Southgate
Taylor Mill
Union

Villa Hills
Visalia

Walton
Warsaw
Wilder
Woodlawn
Williamstown

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY PRESENT AND PROPOSED RATES

The present and proposed rates charged in all territories served by Duke Energy Kentucky are as follows.
The current GCA Rate in effect as of July 1, 2009, is $0.5690 per Ccf.

Rate

Present Rates
Monthly Customer Charge:
All Cef

Proposed Rates
Monthly Customer Charge:
All Cef

Present Rates

Monthly Customer Charge:

All Cef

Proposed Rates

Monthly Customer Charge:

All Ccf

Present Rates
Administrative Charge:
All Ccf

Base Rate + GCA = Total Rate
Residential Service - Rate RS

$12.00 $12.00

$0.26687 $0.5690 $0.83587

$30.00 $30.00

$0.19966 $0.5690 $0.76866

General Service - Rate GS

$30.00 $30.00

$0.20949 $0.5690 $0.77849

$47.50 $30.00

$0.22786 $0.5690 $0.79686
Interruptible Transportation

Service - Rate IT
$430.00 $430.00
$0.076260 $0.076260



Proposed Rates

Administrative Charge: $430.00 $430.00
All Cef $0.1015 $0.1015
Firm Transportation Service-
Large - Rate FT-L
Present Rates
Monthly Customer Charge: $430.00 $430.00
All Cef $0.17713 $0.17713
Proposed Rates
Monthly Customer Charge: $430.00 $430.00
All Cef $0.19252 $0.19252

Rate MPS, Meter Pulse Service

Proposed Rates
Monthly Charge: Variable

Rate MPS is an optional program available to customers that request the Company to install gas meter pulse
equipment, a meter-related service not otherwise provided by the Company. (Gas meter pulse equipment connects
the Company’s gas meter (used for billing) to the customer’s energy management system and provides an input
data signal that is proportional to the amount of gas consumed during a specific time interval. Duke Energy
Kentucky proposes to charge a basic one-time fee of $500 for the installation of the gas meter pulse equipment.
The Company may also charge to recover certain incremental costs, such as index replacement, meter replacement
if necessary or additional service calls, as outlined in the proposed tariff sheet. The customer must provide either
a regulated 24 volts DC, or 120 volts AC electric supply, to an area 2’ x 2’, approximately 20" away from any gas
pipeline flanges or gas pressure relief devices.

In addition, Duke Energy Kentucky proposes to change the text of the following tariffs:

Rider AMRP
Accelerated Main Replacement Program Rider
Proposed Rate
This tariff is hereby cancelled and withdrawn. Any references on individual tariffs were deleted.

Rider MSR-G
Merger Savings Credit Rider-Gas

Proposed Rate
This tariff is hereby cancelled and withdrawn. Any references on individual tariffs were deleted.

Gas Cost Adjustment Clause
Present Rate
DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this tariff:

(A) "Average Cost" means the cost of gas supplies, including associated transportation and storage charges
and propane, which results from the application of suppliers' rates currently in effect, or reasonably
expected to be in effect during the three-month period, on purchased volumes during the twelve-month
period ending with the reporting period, divided by the corresponding sales volume. This includes the
cost of all gas supplies acquired through hedging instruments, including the cost of the hedging



instruments themselves, acquired under a hedging plan approved by the Commission and under the terms
and conditions of this tariff.

Proposed Rate
DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this tariff:

(A) "Average Cost" means the cost of gas supplies, including associated transportation and storage charges
and propane, which results from the application of suppliers' rates currently in effect, or reasonably
expected to be in effect during the three- month period, on purchased volumes during the twelve-month
period ending with the reporting period, divided by the corresponding sales volume. This includes the
cost of all gas supplies acquired through hedging instruments, including the cost of the hedging
instruments themselves, acquired under a hedging plan approved by the Commission and under the terms
and conditions of this tariff. Also included are carrying costs for gas stored underground. [n addition net
charge offs and collection fees less late payment charges related to gas costs billed to customers are
included.

Rate AS, Pooling Service For Interruptible Gas Transportation

Present Rate
LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the
bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due
and payable.

Proposed Rate
LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the
bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due
and payable.

IMPACT OF PROPOSED RATES

The foregoing proposed rates designed to recover Duke Energy Kentucky’s revenue deficiency reflect an
increase in electric revenues of approximately $17.5 million or 14.03% to Duke Energy Kentucky. The estimated
amount of this increase per customer class is as follows:

Rate RS — Residential Service $14,811,787 18.38%
Rate GS — Commercial Service $ 1,904,380 6.13%
Rate GS - Industrial Service $ 117,142 3.19%
Rate GS — Other Public Authority Service $ 172,893 3.42%
Rate FT-L — Firm Transportation Service § 178314 7.16%
Rate IT - Interruptible Transportation Service § 309,820 29.23%

The average monthly bill for each customer class to which the proposed rates will apply will increase
approximately as follows:

Rate RS — Residential Service $ 1329 16.2%
Rate GS — Commercial Service $ 2468 6.1%
Rate GS — Industrial Service $ 4267 31.2%
Rate GS — Other Public Authority Service § 38.83 3.4%



Rate FT-L - Firm Transportation Service $ 174.81 1.2%
Rate [T — Interruptible Transportation Service $1,075.75 29.2%

The rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by Duke Energy Kentucky; however, the
Commission may order rates to be charged that differ from the proposed rates contained in this notice. Such action
may result in rates for consumers other than the rates in this notice.

Any corporation, association, or person may, by written request, within thirty (30) days after publication
of this notice of the proposed rate changes, request to intervene; intervention may be granted beyond the thirty
(30) day period for good cause shown. Requests to intervene should be submitted to the Kentucky Public Service
Commission, P. O. Box 615, 211 Sower Boulevard, Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615, and shall set forth the
grounds for the request including the status and interest of the party.

Intervenors may obtain copies of the application and other filings made by the Company by contacting
Ms. Dianne Kuhnell of Duke Energy Kentucky at 139 East Fourth Street, Rm 2500, AT II, Cincinnati, OH 45202
or by telephone at (513) 419-1837. A copy of the application and other filings made by the Company is available
for public inspection at the Commission's office in Frankfort, Kentucky, and at the following Company offices:
1697 A Monmouth Street, Newport, KY 41071.

For further information contact:

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 1697 A MONMOUTH STREET
P. 0. BOX 615 NEWPORT, KENTUCKY 41071
211 SOWER BOULEVARD (513)287-3842

FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40602-0615
(502) 564-3940






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(2)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(2)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Notice of intent. Utilities with gross annual revenues greater than $1,000,000 shall file with the
commission a written notice of intent to file a rate application at least four (4) weeks prior to
filing their application. The notice of intent shall state whether the rate application will be
supported by a historical test period or a fully forecasted test period. This notice shall be served

upon the Attorney General, Utility Intervention and Rate Division.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson
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Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL 139 £ Fourth Street

EAS03

Cincinnati, OH 45202

June 1, 2009
513-419-5757

EEVED 513-419-5842 fax
R E Q julie janson@duke-energy com

Mr. Jeff Derouen

Executive Director JUNO 1 2009
Kentucky Public Service Commission pUBLIC SERVICE
211 Sower Boulevard COMMISSION
P.O. Box 615

Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615

Re: Notice of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.'s Intent to File a General Natural
(Gas Rate Case

Dear Mr. Derouen:

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc (“Duke Energy Kentucky” or the “Company”)
notifies the Commission that it will file a general natural gas rate case in four weeks or
reasonably soon thereafter.’ Duke Energy Kentucky will use a forward-looking test
period for this case.

In Duke Energy Kentucky’s last general natural gas rate case, the Commission
ordered the Company to file its next gas rate case to coincide with the completion of the
Accelerated Main Replacement Program (“AMRP”). Duke Energy Kentucky’s AMRP is
scheduled to be completed in 2010 as anticipated, and within the forecasted test period
proposed in this case.?

Duke Energy Kentucky is providing a copy of this notice to the Attorney
General's Utility Intervention and Rate Division. We will work diligently with the
Commission and our other stakeholders to seek a constructive resolution. Thank you for
your consideration.

Sincerely,

(¢

Julie S. Jangox
President, Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

JSJ/ ROD

: Duke Energy Kentucky provides this notice pursuant to Commission regulation 807 KAR 5:001

Section 10(2).
: In the Matter of> An Adjustment of the Gas Rates of The Union Light, Heat & Power Company,
Case No 2005-00042, (Order at 113) (December 22, 2005).

www duke-energy com



Mr. Jeff Derouen

June 1,

2009

Page 2 of 2

CC:

272183

Chairman David L. Armstrong (via overnight mail)
Vice Chairman James W. Gardner (via overnight mail)
Commissioner John W. Clay (via overnight mail)

Hon. Jack Conway (via overnight mail)

Hon. Dennis G. Howard (via overnight mail)






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(4)(a)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(4)(a)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Sewer utilities shall give the required typewritten notice by mail to all of their customers

pursuant to KRS 278.185.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky is not a sewer utility; therefore, this section does not apply.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(4)(b)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(4)(b)

Description of Filing Reguirement:

Applicants with twenty (20) or fewer customers affected by the proposed general rate adjustment
shall mail the required typewritten notice to each customer no later than the date the application

is filed with the commission.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky has more than 20 customers; therefore, this section does not apply.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(4)(c)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(4)(¢c)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Except for sewer utilities, applicants with more than twenty (20) customers affected by the
proposed general rate adjustment shall give the required notice by one (1) of the following
methods:

1. A typewritten notice mailed to all customers no later than the date the application is filed
with the commission;

2. Publishing the notice in a trade publication or newsletter which is mailed to all customers
no later than the date on which the application is filed with the commission; or

Publishing the notice once a week for three (3) consecutive weeks in a prominent manner
in a newspaper of general circulation in the utility's service area, the first publication to
be made within seven (7) days of the filing of the application with the commission.

LI

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky delivered to the local newspapers the notice to customers in the manner
required by this section. Within forty-five (45) days of this application, Duke Energy Kentucky

will file an affidavit of publication as required.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson




NOTICE

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (Duke Energy Kentucky) hereby gives notice that it seeks approval by the
Kentucky Public Service Commission (Commission) of an adjustment of gas rates to become effective on and
after July 31, 2009. The Commission has docketed this proceeding as Case No. 2009-00202.

The proposed gas rates are applicable to the following communities:

Alexandria
Bellevue

Boone County
Bromley

Butler

Campbell County
Cold Spring
Covington
Crescent Park
Crescent Springs
Crestview
Crestview Hills
Crittenden
Dayton

Dry Ridge
Edgewood
Elsmere

Erlanger
Fairview
Falmouth
Florence

Fort Mitchell
Fort Thomas

Fort Wright-Lookout Heights
Gallatin County
Glencoe

Grant County
Highland Heights
Independence
Kenton County
Kenton Vale
Lakeside Park
Latonia Lakes
Ludlow

Melbourne
Newport

Park Hills
Pendleton County
Ryland Heights
Silver Grove
Southgate
Taylor Mill
Union

Viila Hills
Visalia

Walton
Warsaw
Wilder
Woodlawn
Williamstown

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY PRESENT AND PROPOSED RATES

The present and proposed rates charged in all territories served by Duke Energy Kentucky are as follows.

The current GCA Rate in effect as of July 1, 2009, is $0.5690 per Ccf.

Rate

Present Rates
Monthly Customer Charge:
All Ccef

Proposed Rates
Monthly Customer Charge:
All Cef

Present Rates

Monthly Customer Charge:

All Ccf

Proposed Rates

Monthly Customer Charge:

All Ccf

Present Rates
Administrative Charge:
All Cef

Base Rate +

Residential Service - Rate RS

$12.00
$0.26687

$30.00
$0.19966

General Service - Rate GS

$30.00
$0.20949

$47.50
$0.22786

Interruptible Transportation

Service - Rate IT

$430.00
$0.076260

GCA = Total Rate
$12.00
$0.5690 $0.83587
$30.00
$0.5690 $0.76866
$30.00
$0.5690 $0.77849
$30.00
$0.5690 $0.79686
$430.00

$0.076260



Proposed Rates

Administrative Charge: $430.00 $430.00
All Ccef $0.1015 $0.1015
Firm Transportation Service-
Large - Rate FT-L
Present Rates
Monthly Customer Charge- $430.00 $430.00
All Ccf $0.17713 $0.17713
Proposed Rates
Monthly Customer Charge: $430.00 $430.00
All Cef $0.19252 $0.19252

Rate MPS, Meter Pulse Service

Proposed Rates
Monthly Charge: Variable

Rate MPS is an optional program available to customers that request the Company to install gas meter pulse
equipment, a meter-related service not otherwise provided by the Company. Gas meter pulse equipment corszot

the Company’s gas meter (used for billing) to the customer’s energy management system and provides o inp
data signal that is proportional to the amount of gas consumed during a specific time interval. Duke Enery,
Kentucky proposes to charge a basic one-time fee of $500 for the installation of the gas meter pulse equipment
The Company may also charge to recover certain incremental costs, such as index replacement, meter replacement
if necessary or additional service calls, as outlined in the proposed tariff sheet. The customer must provide ey
a regulated 24 volts DC, or 120 volts AC electric supply, to an area 2’ x 2°, approximately 20° away from any a3
pipeline flanges or gas pressure relief devices.

In addition, Duke Energy Kentucky proposes to change the text of the following tariffs:

Rider AMRP
Accelerated Main Replacement Program Rider
Proposed Rate
This tariff is hereby cancelled and withdrawn. Any references on individual tariffs were deleted.

Rider MSR-G
Merger Savings Credit Rider-Gas

Proposed Rate
This tariff is hereby cancelled and withdrawn. Any references on individual tariffs were deleted.

Gas Cost Adjustment Clause
Present Rate
DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this tariff:

(A) "Average Cost" means the cost of gas supplies, including associated transportation and storage charges
and propane, which resuits from the application of suppliers’ rates currently in effect, or reasonably
expected to be in effect during the three-month period, on purchased volumes during the twelve-month
period ending with the reporting period, divided by the corresponding sales volume. This includes the
cost of all gas supplies acquired through hedging instruments, including the cost of the hedging



instruments themselves, acquired under a hedging plan approved by the Commission and under the terms
and conditions of this tariff.

Proposed Rate
DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this tariff:

(A) "Average Cost" means the cost of gas supplies, including associated transportation and storage charges
and propane, which results from the application of suppliers' rates currently in effect, or reasonably
expected to be in effect during the three- month period, on purchased volumes during the twelve-month
period ending with the reporting period, divided by the corresponding sales volume. This includes the
cost of all gas supplies acquired through hedging instruments, including the cost of the hedging
instruments themselves, acquired under a hedging plan approved by the Commission and under the terms
and conditions of this tariff. Also included are carrying costs for gas stored underground. In addition net
charge offs and collection fees less late payment charges related to gas costs billed to customers are
included.

Rate AS, Pooling Service For Interruptible Gas Transportation

Present Rate
LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown ¢ ¢
bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is dus
and payable.

Proposed Rate
LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the
bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due
and payable.

IMPACT OF PROPOSED RATES

The foregoing proposed rates designed to recover Duke Energy Kentucky’s revenue deficiency reflect an
increase in electric revenues of approximately $17.5 million or 14.03% to Duke Energy Kentucky. The estimated
amount of this increase per customer class is as follows:

Rate RS ~ Residential Service $14,811,787 18.38%
Rate GS — Commercial Service $ 1,904,380 6.13%
Rate GS - Industrial Service $ 117,142 3.19%
Rate GS ~— Other Public Authority Service $ 172,893 3.42%
Rate FT-L —~ Firm Transportation Service § 178,314 7.16%
Rate IT - Interruptible Transportation Service § 309,820 29.23%

The average monthly bill for each customer class to which the proposed rates will apply will increase
approximately as follows:

Rate RS ~ Residential Service $ 1329 16.2%
Rate GS - Commercial Service $ 2468 6.1%
Rate GS - Industrial Service $ 4267 3.2%
Rate GS ~ Other Public Authority Service $ 3883 3.4%



Rate FT-L — Firm Transportation Service 5 174.81 7.2%
Rate IT - Interruptible Transportation Service $1,075.75 29.2%

The rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by Duke Energy Kentucky; however, the
Commission may order rates to be charged that differ from the proposed rates contained in this notice. Such action
may result in rates for consumers other than the rates in this notice.

Any corporation, association, or person may, by written request, within thirty (30) days after publication
of this notice of the proposed rate changes, request to intervene; intervention may be granted beyond the thirty
(30) day period for good cause shown. Requests to intervene should be submitted to the Kentucky Public Service
Commission, P. O. Box 615, 211 Sower Boulevard, Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615, and shall set forth the
grounds for the request including the status and interest of the party.

Intervenors may obtain copies of the application and other filings made by the Company by contacting
Ms. Dianne Kuhnell of Duke Energy Kentucky at 139 East Fourth Street, Rm 2500, AT II, Cincinnati, OH 45202
or by telephone at (513) 419-1837. A copy of the application and other filings made by the Company is available
for public inspection at the Commission's office in Frankfort, Kentucky, and at the following Company offices:
1697 A Monmouth Street, Newport, KY 41071.

For further information contact:

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 1697 A MONMOUTH STREET
P.O.BOX 615 NEWPORT, KENTUCKY 41071
211 SOWER BOULEVARD (513)287-3842

FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40602-0615
(502) 564-3940






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(4)(d)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(4)(d)

Description of Filing Requirement:

If notice is published, an affidavit from the publisher verifying that the notice was published,
including the dates of the publication with an attached copy of the published notice, shall be filed

with the Commission no later than forty-five (45) days of the filed date of the application.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky delivered to the local newspapers the notice to customers in the manner
required by this section. Within forty-five (45) days of this application, Duke Energy Kentucky

will file an affidavit of publication as required.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(4)(e)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(4)(e)

Description of Filing Requirement:

If notice is mailed, a written statement signed by the utility’s chief officer in charge of Kentucky
operations verifying the notice was mailed shall be filed with the Commission no later than thirty

(30) days of the filed date of the application.

Response:

The customer notice was published; therefore, this section does not apply.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(4)(f)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(4)(f)

Description of Filing Requirement:

All utilities, in addition to the above notification, shall post a sample copy of the required
notification at their place of business no later than the date on which the application is filed

which shall remain posted until the commission has finally determined the utility’s rates.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky has posted a sample copy of the required notifications at its place of

business, as required. The locations of the Company’s offices are at 1697-A Monmouth,

Newport, Kentucky.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson




CERTIFICATE OF NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC OF CHANGE

IN TARIFF WHICH RESULTS IN INCREASED RATES

To the Public Service Commission, Frankfort, Ky.

Pursuant to 807KAR 5:011, Section 8, Rules Governing Tariffs, I hereby certify that I am
President of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc., a utility furnishing gas
and electric service within the Commonwealth of Kentucky, which on or about the [*' day of July
2009 issues its Gas Tarift K.Y.P.S.C. No. 2, cancelling its former Gas Tariff K.Y.P.S.C. No. 2,
to become effective July 31, 2009 and that notice to the public of the issuing of the same is being
given in all respects as required by Section 8 of said administrative regulation, as follows:

On the 1™ day of July, 2009, the same will be exhibited for public inspection at the office and
place of business of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. in the territory affected thereby. Such notice
will be exhibited at 1697A Monmouth Street, Newport, Kentucky 41071, or any subsequent
office and place of business and that the same will be kept open to public inspection at said
office and place of business in conformity with the requirements of Section 8§ of said
administrative regulation.

That more than 20 customers will be affected by said change by way of an increase in their rates
or charges, and on or about the 1™ day of July, 2009 there will be delivered to the Kentucky
Enquirer newspaper of general circulation in the communities in which the customers affected
reside, for publication therein once a week for three consecutive weeks prior to the effective date
of said change, a notice of the proposed rates or administrative regulations, a copy of said notice
being attached hereto. A certificate of the publication of said notice will be furnished to the
Public Service Commission upon the completion of the same in accordance with Section 9(2), of
said administrative regulation.

Given under my hand this 2 day of July, 2009

/Jm. U&%*/"\(H”M“
fu ia S. J@m
esident, eNEnergy Ohio, Inc.

President, Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
139 East Fourth Street

P.0O. Box 960

Cincinnati, OH 45201-0960







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(5)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(5)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Notice of hearing scheduled by the commission upon application by a utility for a general
adjustment in rates shall be advertised by the utility by newspaper publication in the areas that

will be affected in compliance with KRS 424.300.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky will publish notice of hearing after the Commission has established the

schedule for the hearing.

Sponsoring Witness: William Don Wathen Jr.







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(8)(a)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(8)(a)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Financial data for the Forecasted Period shall be in the form of adjustments to the Base Period.

Response:
See Schedules D-2.1 through D-2.14.

Sponsoring Witness: Robert M. Parsons







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(8)(b)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(8)(b)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Adjustments limited to twelve months immediately following the suspension period.

Response:

See Schedules D-2.15 through D-2.28 for adjustments to the forecast period.

Sponsoring Witness: Robert M. Parsons







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(8)(c)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(8)(c)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Capitalization and Net Investment Rate Base shall be based on a thirteen-month average for the

Forecasted Period.

Response:

Capitalization and Net Investment Rate Base for the Forecasted Period are based on a thirteen-

month average.

Sponsoring Witness: Robert M. Parsons







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(8)(d)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(8)(d)

Description of Filing Requirement:

After an application based on a forecasted test period is filed, there shall be no revisions to the
forecast, except for the correction of mathematical errors, unless such revisions reflect statutory
or regulatory enactments that could not, with reasonable diligence, have been included in the
forecast on the date it was filed. There shall be no revisions filed within thirty (30) days of a

scheduled hearing on the rate application.

Response:

The Company will comply with this requirement.

Sponsoring Witness: Stephen R. Lee







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(8)(e)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(8)(e)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The commission may require the utility to prepare an alternative forecast based on a reasonable
number of changes in the variables, assumptions, and other factors used as the basis for the

utility's forecast.

Response:

The Company will prepare an alternative forecast if requested by the Commission.

Sponsoring Witness: Stephen R. Lee







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(8)(f)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(8)(f)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The utility shall provide a reconciliation of the rate base and capital used to determine its revenue

requirements.

Response:

See attached.

Capitalization exceeds rate base by $624,269 for the forecasted period, which is a difference of
0.25%. One reason for the difference is that, per commission precedent, the annualized
depreciation adjustment is reflected as a rate base adjustment but is not included in the
calculation of the gas rate base ratio. The remaining difference between the rate base and
capitalization is also due to the fact that rate base is financed with certain balance sheet accounts
in addition to the sources of financing for capitalization, which consist of long-term debt,
preferred equity, common equity, and capital made available in the form of accumulated deferred
income taxes. This difference in sources of financing cannot be attributed to any one particular
item.

To the extent that balance sheet accounts such as cash, accounts payable, taxes payable, eic.,
have balances greater than zero, these items would finance a portion of rate base but would not
be included in capitalization. Some of the difference between rate base and capitalization is
attributable to these sources of capital which finance rate base (e.g., cash, accounts payable, etc.)

but which are not included in capitalization.

Sponsoring Witness: Robert M. Parsons




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC
CASE NO. 2009-00202
RECONCILIATION OF CAPITALIZATION AND RATE BASE
AS OF JANUARY 31, 2011

DATA: BASE PERIOD "X" FORECASTED PERIOD FR #8f
TYPE OF FILING: "X" ORIGINAL UPDATED REVISED PAGE 1 OF 1
WORK PAPER REFERENCE NO(S).: WITNESS RESPONSIBLE:
R.M PARSONS
Gas
Line Gas Rate Base Capitalization Total
No. ASSETS {Schedule B-1) {Schedule J-1) Other DE-Kentucky
$ $ 3 $
i UTILITY PLANT:
2 UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE 392,763,459 1,214,087,755 1,606,851,214
3 LESS: ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION 106,403,989 577,372,888 683,776,877
4 NET UTILITY PLANT 286,359,470 0 636,714,867 923,074,337
5
& OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS
7 NONUTILITY PROPERTY - NET 24,088,348 24,088,348
8 LESS: ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPR & AMORT (8,370,916) (8,370,916)
9 OTHER INVESTMENTS 0 0 1,500 1,500
10 SPECIAL FUNDS 0 [¢]
11 TOTAL OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 0 o 15,718,932 15,718,932
12
13 CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS:
14 CASH 2,371,198 14,761,374 17,132,572
15 SPECIAL DEPOSITS g 0
16 WORKING FUNDS 2,500 2,500
17 TEMPORARY CASH INVESTMENTS ] 0
18 NOTES AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - NET (11.642,400) 16,691,404 5,049,004
19 5,026,021 5,026,021
20 (466,486) (466,486)
21 NOTES RECEIVABLE FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 24,853,360 24,853,360
22 RECEIVABLES FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 0 0
23 MATERIALS, SUPPLIES AND FUEL 260,110 35,194,899 35,455,009
24 4,252,584 4,252,584
25 GAS STORED - CURRENT 0 2,308,330 2,308,330
26 PREPAYMENTS 0 2,080,109 2,080,109
27 MISCELLANEQUS CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS 1,658,117 1,558,117
28 RENTS RECEIVABLE 0 0
29 TOTAL CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS 2,631,308 {11,642,400) 106,262,212 97,251,120
30
31 DEFERRED DEBITS:
32 UNAMORTIZED DEBT EXPENSE 1,959,989 1,959,989
33 OTHER REGULATORY ASSETS 0 18,684,720 18,684,720
34 987,066 987,066
35 CLEARING ACCOUNTS 0 0
36 (28,193) (28,193)
37 MISCELLANEOUS DEFERRED DEBITS 32,858,559 32,858,559
38 UNAMORTIZED LOSS ON REACQUIRED DEBT 3,211,524 3,211,524
39 ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 12,309,448 12,308,448
40 UNRECOVERED PURCHASED GAS COSTS [t} 9]
41 TOTAL DEFERRED DEBITS 0 0 69,983,113 69,983,113
42 TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 288,990,778 (11,642 400) B28,679,124 1,106,027,502
43
44 LIABILITIES
45
46 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL 0 126,083,527 356,891,263 482,974,790
47
48 LONG TERM DEBT 0 112,661,144 192,866,378 305,517,522
49
50 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 4] 29,075,915 29,075,915
51
52 CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES:
53 NOTES PAYABLE 2,290,250 {2,290,250) 0
54 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM DEBT 0 0
55 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 25,444,888 25,444,888
56 NOTES PAYABLE TO ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 2,646,577 2,646,577
57 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TO ASSOGIATED COMPANIES 19,025,056 19,025,056
58 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 6,653,180 6,653,180
59 TAXES ACCRUED 8,128,168 8,128,168
60 INTEREST ACCRUED 4,876,537 4,876,537
61 TAX COLLECTIONS PAYABLE 1,608,520 1,608,520
62 MISCELLANEOUS CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 4,904,914 4,904,914
63 2,431,116 2,431,116
64 34,758 34,758
65 0 a
66 TOTAL CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 0 2,290,250 73,463,464 75,753,714
67
68 DEFERRED CREDITS:
69 CUSTOMER ADVANCES FOR CONSTRUCTION 1,638,646 0 1,638,646
70 ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INVESTMENT TAX CREDITS 8,280 1,082,914 1,864,474 2,955,668
KAl OTHER DEFERRED CREDITS 25,809,668 25,809,668
72 OTHER REGULATORY LIABILITIES 1,061,671 1,061,671
73 ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 34,217,886 147,022,022 161,239,808
74 TOTAL DEFERRED CREDITS 35,864,812 1,082,914 175,757,835 212,705,561
75 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS 35,864,812 242 107,835 828,054,855 1,106,027 502
76
7 Total 253,125 966 (263,750,235) 624 269 0







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(9)(a)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(a)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The prepared testimony of each witness the utility proposes to use to support its application
which shall include testimony from the utility's chief officer in charge of Kentucky operations on
the existing programs to achieve improvements in efficiency and productivity, including an

explanation of the purpose of the program.

Response:

All Testimony is provided under separate cover.

Sponsoring Witness: All Witnesses







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(9)(b)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(b)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The utility's most recent capital construction budget containing at minimum a three (3) year

forecast of construction expenditures.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Gary J. Hebbeler




Filing Requiremet. { 9(b)

Page 1 of 1
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Case No. 2009-00202
Capital Expenditure Budget
Years 2009 - 2011
CWIP
Line Balance Projected Expenditures
No. Project |D/Description @ 12/31/08 2009 2010 2011
1 NORMAL RECURRING CONSTRUCTION 3,644,252 4,390,726 2,067,672
2
3 KYCIBS09 - CI&BS 2009 KY 501,927 20,416,320 0 0
4 KYCIBS10 - KENTUCKY CAST IRON BARE STEEL 35,992 0 8,278,918 0
5 G7SERVMC - SERVICES MC 0 3,588,721 4,885,812 3,638,493
6 G7MAINS - MAINS 292,452 1,689,405 1,573,032 2,048,025
7 G7PUINMR - GAS METERS AND REGULATORS 0 1,268,864 4,086,166 1,569,962
8 G7RISER - RISER REPLACEMENT 0 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
9 G7PUBIMP - PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 488,408 1,601,500 1428,972 1,650,242
10
11 TOTAL 1,318,779 34,209,062 26,643,626 12,874,395

FR 10(9)(b)(H)(g).XIsx 6/25/2009






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(9)(c)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(c)

Description of Filing Requirement:

A complete description, which may be filed in pre-filed testimony form, of all factors used in
preparing the utility's forecast period. All econometric models, variables, assumptions, escalation
factors, contingency provisions, and changes in activity levels shall be quantified, explained, and

properly supported.

Response:

Attached are a copy of the Budget Guidelines for 2009 and a summary of the assumptions used
in developing the projected data in the base and forecasted test periods. Descriptions of the
factors used in preparing the forecasted test period are also incorporated in each witness’ pre-

filed testimony.

Sponsoring Witness: Stephen R. Lee
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May 30, 2008

Revision Number: 1

Business Confidential & Proprietary



Table of Contents

1.1 DOCUMENT STRUCTURE .....c.cvuoervenereeceeesrecusnsesesasesseesseasnsssas s ess 140550805810 42001800
1.2 REFERENCE MATERIAL .....ovooovuevesceeoseeeerear s orse e sssesessess st a e et ae oo e se s eenesensne s ems e
1.3 REQUIRBMENTS. ... .oo-occoco.oo e oscesosserecosssrss 045
1.4 BUDGET DEVELOPMENT ..o ierreceveeaesoeeessooresssmasssssssasasssss s sss s h e
1.5 LEVEL OF BUDGET DETAIL ......crvvoonccauenaccmenremsseemisss e sssssss s st s

1.6 BUDGET SYSTEMS. ... veoeneeeesessssessessencsomsessasasessinssssesssms s sshessssess s nss s acissonson

1.7 BUDGETING PROCESS DATA FLOW .......ccccooncvrrenn.

1.8 KEY ‘CHANGES FOR 2009 BUDGETING

41 HEADCOUNT BUDGET[NG ................................................................................................................................... 6
4, 2 LABOR INFLATION RATES AND LABOR LOADING RATES .................................................................................... 6
4. 3 INCENTIVES .........................................................................................................................................................

4.4 BUDGETING FOR MANAGERS ..............................................................................................................................
4.5 BUDGETING FOR BI-WEEKLY EMPLOYEES
4 6 TRANSITION POOL AND UNION REDEPLOYMENT POOLS
4 7 COMMERCIAL ASSOCIATE PROGRAM

5.1 NON-LABOR INFLATION RATES AND NON-LABOR LOADING RATES........crvruireeiierasenisessemscseesnessassessneansnsnsnenss 8
5.2 FACILITY COSTS ................................................................................. e e et e r et s nnAr ettt raanenas 9
5.3 TRANSPORTATION COSTS ....orivreeesversasssassssssessessssessssasesaesasssseessessacecaseesmsseassans soasssanietasssemasnssesssssssssssssssssnnas 9

6.1 1T GUIDELINES..

2 Business Confidential & Proprietary



1.1 Document Structure

This document is organized into two sections:

¢ Planning and budgeting assumptions and guidelines applicable to the eatire company;

e  An Appendix with relevant reference material,

1.2 Reference Material

A Budgeting Finance Quick Link will be established on the Finance Portal which will house various budgeting
reference materials. Below are some screen shots to illustrate how to navigate to this information.

1. From the main page of the Portal, navigate to My Sites 2 Finance > Finance.
2. In the Finance Quick Links section at the left, click on Budgeting to access this 2009 Budget Guidelines and
Assumptions document.
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1.3 Requirements

For the 2009 plan year, you are required to prepare a one-year detailed departmental expense budget. Forecasts for
2010 thru 2013 will be developed jointly with the forecasting and the budgeting teams.

1.4 Budget Development

Budgets should be prepared on an accrual basis. This should include an increased focus on accurate budgeting by
month. The goal is to reduce actual versus budget timing variances for 2009 reporting by placing budget dollars in
the months they are expected to be spent or accrued.

1.5 Level of Budget Detail

All O&M and capital budgets must be associated with a responsibility center. From a responsibility center
perspective, it is strongly encouraged that budgets be entered at a higher level. However, this is a determination to
be made based on the facts and circumstances surrounding each area of the business (for example, Fossil/Hydro,
Power Delivery, Non-Regulated Generation, etc.). The level of accountability for managing actual versus budget
variances should be considered when determining the level of budget detail. The recommended approach is to
budget no lower than the group VP minus 2 level.

See Appendix - Section A for a high level list of Resource Types.

Please contact your Financial Coordinator with any questions. (See Appendix — Section B for a detailed contact
listing)

1.6 Budget Systems

With the exception of the International group, all O&M budgets will be entered via the Budget Entry Tool. Capital
budgets will be entered via PowerPlant for Midwest and the Budget Entry Tool for the Carolinas

If you do not have access to the BET, the appropriate electronic form will need to be completed, approved and
submitted to the Financial Functional Production Support group (Kevin King’s team). Please make sure you have
submitted these requests as soon as possible to avoid delays. Please access the attached document below for the
Budget Entry Tool Users Manual.

Budget Entry Tool Users Manual Final.doc

Both Carolinas and Midwest O&M and Capital budgets will reside in the FIHUB, which is where aggregated
reporting should be performed if applicable. For access to the FIHUB, please contact your Financial Coordinator.

1.7 Budgeting Process Data Flow

(1) The BET Tool is the O&M budget input tool. The BET Tool opens for input on July Ist and is available daily
for input from 6am until 6pm.

(2) All data entered in the BET is fed to PeopleSoft. Budget allocations are scheduled to run every Tuesday,
Thursday, and Saturday. (If there is a deviation from this schedule, a message will be posted to the Finance

Top Stories and Announcements section of the Finance Portal.) After data flows through PeopleSoft, users
can view their fully allocated/cost assigned data the following day. A complete schedule is attached below;

2009_Planning_Forecasting_Schedule.xls

4 Business Confidential & Proprietary



1.8 Key Changes for 2009 Budgeting

In addition to a shortened timeline compared to previous budget cycles, key changes for the 2009 budgeting process

are outlined below.

e The BET will replace the RC Budget Tool in the Midwest.

¢ Business Objects will replace Hyperion Intelligence as the reporting tool in the Midwest.
e Midwest incentives will be budgeted at a responsibility center level rather than by Corporate HR.
e Al labor will be budgeted as direct/productive. (Historical Midwest budgets had a split between productive and

unproductive labor.)

e  Migration to use of enterprise codeblock.

Below is a summary of the key dates for the 2009 budgeting process. Please note that the deadlines indicated are for
final signoffs. Any internal department reviews must be completed prior to these final signoff dates.

Milestone

Completion Date

Headcount Budgeting Tool Distributed
Initial Strategic Plan Submission

Headcount Budgets Complete in Headcount Budgeting Tool

Detailed Budget Guidelines Distributed
5&7 Detail Forecast (based on strategic plan)

587 Forecast Submission

Preliminary 2009 rates communicated

Budget Systems Open for Input

Pre-Board Review of Strategic Plan

Preliminary Benefits budget loaded into system
Budget Systems Closed for Input

Final 2009 rates established and loaded into system
Strategic Plan Review and Approval

Approval for 8&4 Detail Level Budget submission
Monthly Detail Allocation Budget Complete

9& 3 Detail Forecast (updated based on final budget)
Comprehensive Approval of Budget

05/05/2008
05/05/2008
05/23/2008
05/30/2008
06/16/2008
06/16/2008
07/01/2008
07/01/2008
07/14/2008
07/25/2008
08/15/2008
08/22/2008
08/25/2008
09/10/2008
09/19/2008
10/22/2008
12/16/2008

i ECERer

Overall guiga;;ég is flat with 2008 Budget. 2009 FE&G O&M and Capital targets are listed below (8 in mm's);

“Function (Oper Unit View)

Capital
603

Nuclear (Jamil)

FOSSil-Hydr 0 (Pulskamp)

2,229

Power Delivery (Holeman)

Gas Delivery (Walker)

Customer Service (4rnold)

Storm Contingency (Turner)

Remaining FE&G

JSFE&G Tota
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‘Function (Resp Center View) o O&M | iCapital
Chief Administrative Officer (Rolfe) $ 5019 253
Chief Financial Officer (Hauser) 157 17
Chief Strategy & Policy Officer (Corporate Groups) (Tren) 100 30
Chief Strategy & Policy Office (BU Presidents) (Tren) 47 0
Chief Legal Officer (Manly) 144 6
Chief Executive Officer (Rogers) 9 0
Executive Benefits 120 0

Corporate Center Total incl Exec Benefits: $ 1,077 | $ 306

4.1 Headcount Budgeting

Headcount budgeting information for the enterprise was sent out via an email on May 5™ with a requested
completion date of 5/23/2008. Further information is available on the instructions posted on the share drive.

See Appendix — Section D for a list of workforce planning contacts by function.

4.2 Labor Inflation Rates and Labor Loading Rates

The table below contains the labor inflation and loading rates that will be used to begin the 2009 budgeting process.
These rates will be adjusted throughout the budgeting process as deemed necessary. It should be noted that these
labor inflation rates are assumed for planning purposes only and are not meant to be interpreted as the labor rate
increase for 2009. Please be sure to budget the effects of labor inflation in the appropriate periods.

Labor Inflation
Non Union employees 4.0%
Represented {Union)
employees* See below
Fringe Benefits
Duke Energy Carolinas 22%
Duke Energy - CG&E 45%
Duke Energy - ULH&P 46%
Duke Energy - PSI 47%
Duke Energy Business Services 18%
Payroll Tax 7.54%
HR provides
department specific
Incentive rates
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Union Employees UnionRates | Labor -|  Dateof =
(tegacy Cinergy) inflation | Increase -
= , Rate S
IUOE 399 $.55/hr November
USW 13-1 $3.75% January
UWUA, 1UU Local 600 3.00% April
IBEW 1347 4.00% April
IBEW 1393 4.00% May
ERA 3.00% October
IBEW 352 3.00% February
USW 12049 3.50% May
USW 5541 3.50% May
UNITE 2024 3.00% June

Note: Employees in the UWUA and IBEW 1347 unions receive one week of prepaid sick time in the month of
January. Please be sure to calculate this amount and add it to January labor budgets if applicable.
4.3 Incentives

All incentives will be budgeted through incentive loading rates (this is a change for Midwest). HR will provide
incentive loading rates for the following plans:
e Duke Energy STIP

e UEIP
e  Discretionary Pool Plans
s LTI

e  Stock Options
The loading rates will be calculated at target performance and based on FRe responsibility center conversion of
employees at current salary inflated by the 2009 labor inflation rate. Plant specific plans (Commercial Businesses
specific) and call center specific plans which are paid quarterly should continue to be budgeted at the responsibility
center level.

4.4 Budgeting for Managers
Budgeters need to decide if a manager’s costs will be budgeted and charged to the responsibility center with his/her
direct reports or to a staff responsibility center with other managers. Consistency is needed within each department

and function so that budget omissions and variances to actuals are avoided. Function owners should ensure that
departmental practices reflect such consistency.

4.5 Budgeting for Bi-Weekly Employees

When budgeting for bi-weekly employees, please note that the months of January, July & December include three
pay periods. All other months will have two pay periods.

4.6 Transition Pool and Union Redeployment Pools
Costs for transition pool and union redeployment pools will be managed by Human Resources. These estimates will

be captured, estimated, and budgeted appropriately for these costs. Estimates will come through the current HR
process where tracking of ali transition pool/union redeployment is identified and approved.
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4.7 Commercial Associate Program

The Corporate Development function will budget most costs for the Commercial Associate Program in 2009,
However, if a Commercial Associate is currently assigned to your area or if you anticipate having one work in your
area next year, you should budget for any expenses that are not related to labor or IT while the Commercial
Associate is working in your area (for example, travel expenses, training costs, etc.).

If you have any questions regarding the Commercial Associate program, including the availability of Commercial

Associate employees, timing of rotational assignments, or costs of the program, please contact Jeff Gates at (704)
382-7268.

4.8 Military Leave Pay

All responsibility centers with employees incurring military pay should budget for those employees at 100% pay for
156 weeks.

4.9 Education Reimbursement (Tuition Refund) Expenses

All education reimbursement will be budgeted within the employee benefit rates. The approval process will be
communicated to all employees at a later date. No tuition refund expenses should be budgeted within the business
unit budgets UNLESS the business unit plans to exceed established limits on graduate education reimbursement.

4.10 Dependent Care and Short Term Disability Accruals

Based upon new audit requirements as well as changes to programs, accruals will be established at the enterprise
level as appropriate and as directed by the Accounting Research Group. These will be calculated and provided to
the business units to the extent they are required.

4.11 Service and Retirement Awards

All service and retirement award gifts will be budgeted by HR and included in the employee benefits load rate.

5.1 Non-Labor Inflation Rates and Non-Labor Loading Rates

The table below contains the non-labor inflation rates and non-labor loading rates that will be used to begin the 2009
budgeting process. These rates will be adjusted throughout the budgeting process as deemed necessary.

_Category | Carolinas Rates .| Midwest Rates

Non-Labor Inflation* 2.3% 2.3%

Stores, Freight & Handling
Fossil/Hydro 8.0% 8.0%
Power Delivery 9.5% 8.0%
Gas Operafions 8.0% 8.0%
Nuclear - Catawba 15.5%
Nuclear - McGuire 19.0%
Nuclear - Oconee 14.0%

Helicopter N/A $1,274/hr

* Non-Labor Inflation (still under evaluation for 2009) rates are for employee expenses, office supplies, efc. and are based on Consumer Pricing
Index.
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Each department is respounsible for projecting their respective contractor costs including inflation rates, along with
increases in material coasts, etc. which are not listed in the table above.

5.2 Facility Costs

Real Estate Services (RES) Facilities Management (FM) will budget all facility costs (i.e., janitorial services,
cleaning supplies, lease payments, parking, utilities) for the corporate offices and T&D facilities.

Personnel moves that involve the movement of boxes and computers will be budgeted by FM. Personnel moves by
a department or group as part of a customer requested renovation should be budgeted within the department's
budget. In addition, new facilities, renovation projects, and fumiture replacement should be budgeted by the
business segment requesting the work.

To obtain pricing estimates in order to budget these upgrades, or for general facility planning or space needs, please
contact Benny Biddix at (704) 382-3221. For facility management needs, please contact Tim Beeker at (704) 382-
4118.

Facility projects are charged to the appropriate accounting as provided by the customer. In-house labor and
materials are used to the extent possible and are budgeted in RES Project Management. However, special projects
that require outside contractors are charged directly to the customer’s responsibility center. In circumstances that
require a direct charge to the customer, the customer will be informed and provided an estimate of the charge prior
to agreeing to provide the service. For all project management issues, please contact Martha Purser at (704) 382-
4075.

5.3 Transportation Costs

A direct charging process is being used for costs associated with all assigned vehicles and equipment.
This enables Fleet Services’ customers to (1) see actual costs associated with owning their vehicle and
to more appropriately show the costs associated with how a particular vehicle or piece of equipment is
used in their daily work, (2) create awareness of the total costs to the company for owning and
operating vehicles and equipment, and (3) provide an effective management tool to use in the decision
making process regarding vehicle and equipment purchases. The Carolinas are already using this
direct charging process. It will be implemented in the Midwest once the new Fleet Management
System, which is associated with EAM, is implemented in September.

For 2009 budgeting purposes, all assigned vehicles and equipment will be budgeted to Resource Type
50000 by Fleet Services’ customers. Fleet Services’ personnel will assist their customer departments
with determining what this budgeted amount should be for 2009.

6.1 IT Guidelines

The budgeting guidelines provided by the Information Technology group are attached below, followed by a high
level summary. Please review the full IT guidelines for additional information.

See Appendix — Section E for a list of key IT Contacts.

2009 IT Planning Assumptions for Bus Unit IT Budgets.doc

Responsibility centers are responsible for budgeting the following:
e  Workstations
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Servers dedicated to a specific function (nuclear IT servers, SOC servers) and supported by that function
Apache/Tomcat code releases, security patches, and support desk

Scanner maintenance

Purchase of new printers, plotters, stand-alone scanners, and related supplies

Lease of multifunction devices in Carolinas field locations (at generating stations, for example). Maintenance
and consumables (toner, drum kits, etc.) are included in the lease cost for Canon devices. However,
consumables must be budgeted by responsibility centers for HP devices and fax machines.

Replacement of legacy Blackberry devices not in the current 8xxx series (regardless of vendor —only exception
is for Nextel 7520 with Push to Talk)

Software license fees associated with dedicated message servers

National pagers

New user licenses and first year of maintenance for any of the Enterprise IT Standard Developer or Testing
tools

Information Technology will budget the following:

L]

©
®
L
L]

Server hardware and software leases/purchases/maintenance

Server software maintenance/licenses

Server database maintenance/licenses

WebLogic maintenance/licenses

Workstation software (Microsoft operating system, Microsoft Office Professional, license costs, Tier 3
applications)

Most network printer maintenance

Most leased multifunction devices in the Carolinas general office (downtown)

Leased multifunction equipment throughout the Midwest (leased copiers, fax machines, multifunctional
products, etc.), including maintenance, consumables, and paper.

CG&E private paging units

Cell phones

Workstations

Existing Workstation Lease Costs -
For information on current workstation lease costs, budgeters should contact the applicable IT support personnel
(outlined in Appendix E).

New or Lease Replacement Workstations

Please budget the amounts below for new workstations or lease replacement workstations in 2009. Note that these
are 3-year lease costs (i.e., you must divide by 36 to calculate the monthly lease cost). Carolinas budgeters should
add 7% to these amounts to cover sales taxes. Midwest budgeters should add 8% to these amounts to cover
sales/use taxes.

Type of Workstation 3-Year Lease Cost

General Purpose Desktop $§736

High-End Desktop $1,269
General Purpose Laptop $1,119
High-End Laptop 51,646
UltraLight Laptop $1,526
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[f you have questions regarding the capitalization policies, please contact John Pyrtle at (980) 373-3824 or Jim Dean
at (513) 287-2332.

A link to the complete Duke Energy capitalization guidelines can be found below:

http://dewww.duke-

enerey.com/cntridpt/finance reference material/Duke%20Energy%20Capitalization%20Guidelines%20Jan%201%
202007%20-%20FINAL.pdf

7.1 Budget Systems

Capital budget dollars will be entered via BET or PowerPlant.

7.2 Capital vs. Expense

All property will be considered as consisting of:
e  Units of property (or retirement units)
e  Minor items of property

New Acquisition or Addition to Existing Property
e Addition of a property unit — all related costs are capitalized and accounted for through the appropriate plant
account.
o  Addition of a minor item of property that did not previously exist — all related costs should be:
o Expensed, with the costs accounted for through the appropriate expense account, unless a substantial
addition results )
o Capitalized if a substantial addition results, with the costs accounted for through the appropriate plant
account.
= A substantial addition occurs when the new minor item being added to the property unit costs
at least 25% of the current price for that property unit or, using an appropriate and reasonable
functional metric, there is at least a 25% addition.

Repair or Maintenance

e  Expense the cost of repair and maintenance for a property unit or minor item of property and account for the
cost through the applicable maintenance expense account, unless a substantial betterment occurs.

o Capitalize if a substantial betterment occurs. Capitalize the excess cost of the actual expenditure over the
estimated expenditure needed to maintain normal operation without the betterment, adding the cost to the
appropriate plant account.

o A substantial betterment occurs when there is an improvement to a property unit though replacement
of a minor item of property that makes the unit more useful or more efficient or that increases capacity.
Capitalize only the portion that adds at least 25% betterment. (Subtract the current cost of the original
minor item from the betterment.)

Replacement
o  When replacing a retirement unit with another retirement unit:
o Retire the old unit
o Deduct the cost from the applicable plant account
o Capitalize the new unit
o Add the new unit cost to the appropriate plant account

11 Business Confidential & Proprietary



e When replacing a minor unit of property with an identical one, expense the cost of the replacement using the
appropriate maintenance expense account.

Reinstallation or Rearrangement
o Follow repair or maintenance steps.

Relocation
o Expensed.

Retirement
o A unit of property, or retirement unit, is the level at which utilities set items to be capitalized.

e When a property unit is removed from service, retire the unit and deduct the cost from the appropriate plant
account.

e When a minor item of property is removed and not replaced, capitalize the removal and salvage costs.
Nonregulated plant cost of removal should be expeunsed. Retirement of the minor item of property is not
required. Retirement of the minor item of property will occur at such time when the retirement unit of which it
is a part is retired.

7.3:Capitalized Computer Software
Duke Energy software guidelines reflect instruction provided in Statement of Position (SOP) 98-1.

Eligible Projects

¢ Software acquired, internally developed, or modified solely to meet internal needs (during software
development or modification, no plan exists or is being developed to market the software externally).

e  Software whose total cost is $100,000 or more after the preliminary project stage, excluding AFUDC,
allocations, etc. All eligible capital costs are capitalized, not just the portion exceeding $100,000.

e Software with an expected life of 3 years or more.

Capitalization begins when both of the following have occurred:
e  Preliminary project stage is completed. All preliminary stage costs are expensed. The preliminary project stage
may include the foliowing types of tasks.
o Make strategic decisions to allocate resources between alternative projects.
Determine performance requirements and system requirements for the new software.
Vendor software demonstrations.
Explore alternative means of achieving specified performance requirements.
Determine that the technology needed to achieve performance requirements exists.
Select a consultant for development and installation of software.
o Select a vendor if purchasing software.
e Project funding for application development stage (purchase/development and implementation) are approved by
management. (e.g., 201 approval, work order authorization).

00 000

Costs to capitalize:
e  Application Development Stage costs. Costs for this stage include but are not necessarily limited to the
following:
o Internal and external costs incurred to develop internal-use software. Examples of these costs include:
= Payroll and payroll-related costs (fringes & taxes, employee incentive plan, unproductive
labor, etc.) for employees charging project directly for designing, coding, testing of software.
= Materials and contractor services.

= AFUDC.
= All costs incurred by systems that feed data to new system so that new system may receive
data.
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= Costs incurred in providing basic outputs to other systems (e.g., a new payroll system
providing labor distribution to the general ledger).

= Costs to develop software specific training instructions/procedures. The period benefited by
development of these instructions/procedures should be the same as the life of the software
being developed. Costs of actually training employees are not included here.

= Costs to develop or obtain software that allows for access or conversion of old data by new
systems.

Costs not eligible for capitalization:

Post-implementation / Operation Stage costs should be expensed as incurred. These costs include but may not
be limited to:

o Actual data conversion costs.

o Internal or external training of employees. SOP 98-1, paragraph 71, states that “training costs are not
software development costs and should be expensed as they are incurred because entities do not
control the continued employment of the trained employees, are not able to identify the specific future
period benefited, and amortization periods would be arbitrary”.

o Internal or external maintenance costs. When external maintenance costs are combined with software
development costs in contracts, the maintenance costs must be separated and charged to expense.

o Al departmental allocations and overheads (e.g., functional and administrative overheads, computer
chargebacks, building space allocations, etc.).

o Costs incurred by other systems to extract data from new system for use in such other systems.

o All costs relating to re-engineering of functional processes rather than software development.

Asset Accounting should receive a project in-service notification when the software has been loaded into production
for use. AFUDC ceases when the project is placed in service.

Capitalization stops when:

Software is substantially complete and ready for its intended use. Computer software is ready for its intended
use after all “substantial testing” is completed.

When no longer probable that software will be completed and placed in-service. All costs incurred to date will
be expensed unless the company can recoup costs as a regulated asset.

Upgrades/Enhancements

Upgrades and enhancements are defined as modifications to existing internal-use software that result in
additional functionality. Additional functionality is defined as modifications to enable software to perform
tasks that it was previously incapable of performing. Upgrades and enhancements normally require new
software specifications and may also require a change to all or part of the existing software specifications.
Upgrades and enhancements which provide a “new look™ or “different presentation” of information are not
considered additional functionality.

Upgrades and enhancements must meet the $100,000 cost minimum for each software program/functionally
independent module.

All guidelines stated above for purchase, development/implementation of new internal-use software are also
applicable to upgrades/enhancements.

When external maintenance costs are combined with software development costs in contracts, the maintenance
costs must be separated and charged to expense.

When obtaining new releases for existing software, those costs directly attributable to new functionality are
eligible for capitalization if the cost is $100,000 or more.

Additional licenses obtained subsequent to initial installation may be capitalized if the cost is $100,000 or
greater.

Amortization Period

When determining the amortization period, entities should consider the effects of obsolescence, technology,
competition, and other economic factors. Consideration should be given to rapid changes that may be occurring
in the development of software products, software operating systems, or computer hardware and whether
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management intends to replace any technologically inferior software or hardware. Given the history of rapid
changes in technology, software often has had a relatively short useful life.

»  Amortization of functionally independent modules should begin when the software/module is ready for its
intended use, regardless of whether the software/module will be placed in service in planned stages that may
extend beyond a reporting period. Computer software is ready for its intended use after all “substantial testing”
is completed.

e  Will write off entire unamortized balance in final year of productive life.

Retirement

e  Business units should notify Asset Accounting when software is replaced or otherwise retired from service.

e  Per FERC Account 111, Accumulated Provision for Amortization of Electric/Gas Utility Plant, “when any
property to which this account applies is sold, relinquished, or otherwise retired from service, this account shall
be charged with the amount previously credited in respect to such property. The book cost of the property so
retired less the amount chargeable to this account and less the net proceeds realized at retirement shall be
included in account 421.1, Gain on Disposition of Property, or account 421.2 , Loss on Disposition of Property,
as appropriate.”

8.1 Service Companies

The service company is Duke Energy Business Services (DEBS). Upon the MW Conversion in July, its activity will
be recorded to one business unit — 20013. The operating unit used with the service company transaction will
distinguish whether it is a governance, enterprise, or utility charge.

8.2 Definitions

Allocations — Allocations are the process by which governance and shared services costs are spread across the
enterprise. Allocations also include the process by which certain costs are spread between reporting segments (for
example, across FE&G).

Allocation Basis — An allocation basis is an approved methodology for how costs can be charged out from the
service company.

Governance — Activities performed, and related costs incurred, that support the entire Duke Energy enterprise.
Activities generally cannot be performed on a “per unit” basis and are considered “corporate” in nature. Examples
include filing the Duke Energy tax return or communicating with Duke Energy’s shareholders.

Shared Services — Activities performed specifically on behalf of more than one business unit/operation. Activities
can generally be performed on a “per unit” basis. Examples include use of computers, use of office space, and
payroll check processing.

Service Company Agreements — These agreements outline 23 different functions that can be performed by the
service company. These functions include but are not limited to:

e Information Systems

e Meters

Transportation

Electric System Maintenance

Marketing & Customer Relations

Electric Transmission and Distribution Engineering and Construction
Power Engineering and Construction
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¢ © & o

Human Resources
Materials Management
Facilities

Power Planning and Operations
Public Affairs

Legal

Rates

Finance

Rights of Way

Internal Audit
Environmental Affairs
Fuels

Investor Relations
Planning

Executive

Specific methodologies have been approved in the service company agreements for allocating costs to the
appropriate legal entities and business units, including:

e © & o © © © © & © o © © o6 & 8 e & o

Three-Factor Formula (1/3 gross margin, 1/3 labor, 1/3 property, plant, and equipment)
Sales Ratio

Electric Peak Load Ratio

Number of Customers Ratio

Number of Employees Ratio

Construction Expenditures Ratio

Circuit Miles of Electric Distribution Lines Ratio
Circuit Miles of Electric Transmission Lines Ratio
Number of Central Processing Unit Seconds Ratio
Revenues Ratio

Number of Personal Computer Workstations Ratio
Labor Dollars Ratio

Electric Peak Load Ratio

Number of Customers Ratio

Generating Unit MW Capability Ratio

Total Property, Plant, and Equipment Ratio
Inventory Ratio

Procurement Spending Ratio

Square Footage Ratio

8.3 Charging Guidance

Costs should be directly charged to the legal entity (Duke Energy Carolinas, Duke Energy Ohio, etc.) benefiting
from the services to the extent it is feasible. Otherwise, the service company allocations should be utilized. If you
have questions, please contact your financial coordinator.

There are three types of service company allocation pools:

Governance ~ Corporate departments with accountability for the management of the overall function and
respective issues within Duke Energy; responsible for the governance, compliance, oversight, control, audit, and
strategic program design of corporate-wide activities. These costs are charged to Other segment EBIT instead
of functional EBIT.

Enterprise — Support departments implementing the policies set forth, providing day-to-day services to all lines
of business (e.g., IT, Corporate Facilities, Accounts Payable, HR Services); the execution of the governance
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process which benefits all business units. These are costs which are driven by and support the business, but for
simplification are allocated by the service company. These costs are charged to functional EBIT.

o  Utility - Expenses associated with work processes which support utilities only. The execution of the
governance process which only benefits the regulated utilities. These are costs which are driven by and support
the utility businesses, but for simplification are allocated by the service company. These costs are charged to
functional EBIT.

An updated reference document with the service company allocation codes (operating units) will be provided at a
later date, prior to the opening of the budget tools.
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A. Resource Types

This is a summary list of the most commonly used resource types.

Expense Type - | Resource Type | Deseription - -0 o0
Labor 11000 Used for straight time labo
12000 Overtime
Direct Purchases 30000 Purchases — office supplies/equipment, advertising, corporate
association and industry dues, postage, subscriptions, etc.
Employee Expenses | 40000 Travel Expenses — Transportation & lodging costs (airfare, car

rental, taxi fares, parking fees, etc), Meals/entertainment costs for
group meetings for the benefit of employees (in the absence of
customers), professional fees, tuition refund expenses, employee
meals and expenses associated with moving.

41000 Meals & Entertainment — employee meals incurred when
traveling or attending approved seminars, conferences, etc. Meals
& entertainment expenses incurred entertaining external or
prospective customers or company guests.

42000 Mileage — expenses for using an employee’s personal vehicle for
business purposes.
Vehicles 50000 Vehicle charges — expenses for assigned vehicles.
Contract Services 60004 Contract Services — charges from contractors and others for labor

and related materials & expenses associated with providing goods
& services. (See Portal for more detailed list of contract service
resource types)

B. Financial Coordinator List
If you have a question that is not answered in these guidelines, please call your Financial Coordinator;

Organization Contact Number

Fossil Hydro (Barry Blackwell)

Midwest O&M - Debbie Sims Lo (317) 838-1010

Carolinas O&M —~Bob Nelson (704) 382-7266
Portfolio Optimization (Hal Neely) (704) 382-2167
Project Development and Services (Bob Nelson) (704) 382-7266
Power Delivery (Beth Clippinger)

Brian Price e (513) 287-3248
Gas Operations (Beth Clippinger)

Doug Schwerman (513)287-3865
Customer Service (Marshall Pettit)

ChristaGraft (317) 838-2193
Eng & Tech Services (Barry Blackwell)

Midwest - Debbie Sims (317) 838-1010

Carolinas - Mary Jane Beatty (704) 382-6449

Counstruction & Major Projects (Barry Blackwell)
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Rebecca Gearing
Enterprise Asset Management (Barry Blackwell)
Debbie Hatley
Nuclear (David Patton)
Oconee — David Derrick
McGuire - Steve McFadden
Catawba ~ Sharyn Darden
Nuclear Support
Tammy Cole
Zandria Turner
Janice Mansfield
Jacque Young
Lee Nuclear - Abbe Bryan
DE-Remaining FE&G (Marshall Pettit)
DE Carolinas — Marty Schwartz
DE Midwest - Robin Barton
Commercial Businesses (Keith Baldwin)
DE Ohio - Todd Lovegrove
DE Carolinas - Jacqueline Calloway
Corporate Center (Jan Yeargin)
Chief Administrative Officer - Karen Brown
Chief Financial Officer - Ricky Bollinger
Chief Strategy & Policy Officer - William 'Neal’ McGinn
Chief Legal Officer - Jamie Wooton
Consolidation (Marshall Pettit)
Operations & Maintenance
Jeannie Dunn
Olivia Linkel
Capital
Tom Suddreth (Carolinas)
Carol Case (Carolinas)
Susan Miller (Midwest)

C. Financial Contacts for Key Initiatives

Below is a listing of financial contacts for key company initiatives and projects:

Jan Yeargin
Neal McGinn

Energy Efficiency -
Utility of the Future -

Enterprise Asset Management (EAM)

(704) 382-8739
(704) 382-6116

(513)287-5771

(704) 382-0473

(864) 885-4077
(704) 875-4527
(803) 831-3512

(704) 382-9891
(704) 382-3349
(704) 382-4828
(704) 373-7212
(704) 373-3874

(704) 382-3685
(317) 838-4684

(513)419-5079
(513) 419-5077

(704) 382-5817
(704) 382-5885
(704) 382-6116
(704) 373-8343

(704) 382-6419
(704) 382-5439

(704) 373-6548
(704) 382-4686
(513)287-4181

Please contact Nancy Hollkamp at (513) 287-5943 prior to budgeting anything for the EAM project.
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D. Workforce Planning Contacts

» Nuclear Generation — David Ward
» Franchised Electric & Gas
e Regulated Fleet Operations — Sharon Clegg
e New Generation Projects — Denise Boggs
e Engineering & Tech Svcs — Denise Boggs
e Portfolio Optimization & Fuels — Denise Boggs
e  Supply Chain — Tommie Keasler
e  Project Development & Svecs — Denise Boggs
e  Gas Operations- Gerri Garmon
e  Power Delivery — Tony Adcock, Gerri Garmon
o  Customer Service — Becky Brunner, Nikki Majestic
o  Customer Origination — Lisa Shefte
> Commercial Businesses — Jean Dieudonne, David Crail
> Finance — Gayle Long, Janelle Moffett
» General Counsel — Peggy Grobusky
» Strategy, Policy & Communications — Antheny Rose

e Duke Energy — Carolinas — Dave Hardin
e Duke Energy - OH & KY - Diane Smiley
e Duke Energy — Indiana — Becky Brunner

» Corporate Administration

e Information Technology — Terri Alsop

¢« & o o

Human Resources — Peggy Grobusky

HR Business Support — Peggy Grobusky
Enterprise Operations Svcs — Sharon Brooks
Enterprise Field Services ~ Carla Deck, Dan Fleck

E. Key Information Technology Contacts
The following IT personnel have been assigned to work with you to determine what IT costs will need to be

included in your budgets.

CAROLINAS CONTACTS
Finance

Supply Chain

General Counsel

Commercial Businesses
Corporate HR

HR Business Support

Enterprise Field Services
Enterprise Ops Services
Strategy, Policy & Reg

Duke Power

Customer Service

New Generation Projects
Project Development & Services
Fossil-Hydro Generation
Nuclear (Contact your NIT consultant}
Customer Origination & Retention
Power Delivery

IT Contact

Jim Tisdale
Elaine Bailey
Elaine Bailey
Elaine Bailey
Tim Pace

Tim Pace

Elaine Bailey
Teresa Taylor
Tommie Pfeifer
Mike Booth
Daniel Johnson
Mike Booth
Christy Wiseman
Christy Wiseman
John Mitchell
Tim Pace

Jody Mease

19

Phone

(704) 382-7466
(704) 382-6565
(704) 382-6565
(704) 382-6565
(704 382-9682
(704) 382-9682
(704) 382-6565
(704) 382-7541
(704) 382-1714
(704) 382-8461
(704) 484-5081
(704) 382-8461
(704) 382-4912
(704) 382-4912
(704) 382-9804
(704 382-9682
(704) 382-0907
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Portfolio Optimization
Enterprise Asset Mgt
Engineering & Tech Sves
Generation Applications

IT Ops

IT Strategy & Compliance

IT Strategy Arch & Standards
IT Data Center Ops

Trading & Marketing Apps
IT Business Apps

HR & Corp Apps

Financial Apps Integration
Supply Chain & Work Mgmt Apps

MIDWEST CONTACTS

Customer Applications

Power Delivery and Gas Operations

HR and Corporate Apps

Fossil Hydro Generation (FE&G)
Commercial Asset Management (NANRG)
Celiular Services

Server Hardware/Software

Workstations

Phone Systems

F. Code Block

Laura Heavner
Mike Booth
Christy Wiseman
Ray Fink
Tommie Pfeifer
Elaine Bailey
Laura Heavner
Laura Heavner
Laura Heavner
Ray Fink

Ellen Lankford
Mike Booth
Mike Booth

Chris Sechrest
Mike Strahan
Shirley Brown
Cheryl Brooks
John Moeller
Mark Voris
Shirley Brown
Tim Thomas
Melissa Ohmer

CODE BLOCK Conversion MW to SE.PPT

20

(704) 382-4634
(704) 382-8461
(704) 382-4912
(704) 382-9573
(704) 382-1714
(704) 382-6565
(704) 382-4634
(704) 382-4634
(704) 382-4634
(704) 382-9573
(704) 382-9555
(704) 382-8461
(704) 382-8461

(704) 382-9633
(513)287-2125
(513) 287-3649
(704) 382-7034
(513) 419-5131
(317) 838-2635
(513) 287-3649
(317) 838-1737
(513) 287-1032

Business Confidential & Proprietary



The Duke Energy Kentucky Company FR10(9)(C)

Case No. 2009-00202

Assumptions
Forecasted Base Period Months (October 1, 2008 - September 30, 2009)
Forecasted Test Period (February 1, 2010 - January 31, 2011)

General Assumptions/Guidelines:

1. Duke Energy uses a “bottom up” budgeting approach. The budget information is
provided by over 400 “centers” or management teams that prepare detailed
budgets for their individual areas of responsibility, consisting of expense items,
certain types of revenues, and capital spending. The budgets prepared by these
individual centers (also referred to as “budget centers”) are reviewed and
approved by Duke Energy management. The Duke Energy Board of Directors
ultimately approves the Duke Energy consolidated annual budget. If any changes
occur during the review and approval process, the changes are communicated to
the appropriate center, and this center submits a revised budget through the same
review and approval process.

2. Each year, Duke Energy prepares a five-year forecast of operating revenues and
expenses, which is the starting point for preparing the annual budget. Along with
the annual operating budget, additional years are added to develop a five year
forecast.

Specific Assumptions/Guidelines:

1. Revenues

a. The first step in preparing the operating revenues is to obtain a forecast of
the projected gas and electric sales. As described by Duke Energy
Kentucky witness Mr. Timothy A. Phillips, Duke Energy’s Customer
Market Analytics Department prepares these load forecasts on a monthly
basis for each customer class over a ten-year period. The forecasts are
updated at least annually. The Customer Market Analytics Department
also provides the number of customers for each customer class. The
projected revenues for the annual budget and the five-year forecast for gas
and electric sales were calculated by applying the tariff charges to these
sales forecast numbers for gas customers and for residential electric
customers. The projected revenues for non-residential electric customers
were calculated by using average realizations.

b. As discussed by Mr. Phillips, a weather normalization forecast was used.
This is the same methodology that management incorporates for preparing
its budgets and forecasts and for presentations of financial projections to
the Board of Directors, credit ratings agencies and the investment
community.
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The Duke Energy Kentucky Company
Case No. 2009-00202

C.

To obtain the remaining revenues in the forecast, we analyzed historical
trends of other revenues and receive information from the business groups
supporting the forecast in order to obtain the other revenues for the five-
year period.

2. Expenses

a.

C.

Fuel & Purchased Power

The level of fuel, purchased power and purchased gas expense are derived
from the projected cost per unit of the fuel consumed and the volume of
the consumption determined by the gas and electric sales forecasts. The
Business Development and Analytics Department provided the electric
fuel and purchased power expense by combining forecasted sales and
pricing of various inputs and simulating generation output and associated
costs with their business model. Duke Energy Kentucky witness Mr. Gary
J. Hebbeler provided the gas supply mixture and purchased gas expense.
Both Mr. Hebbeler and the Business Development and Analytics
Department also provided this information for the five-year forecast.

Operating Expenses

The individual budget centers provide the operation and maintenance
(O&M) expenses, including payroll taxes and other revenue taxes, for all
of Duke Energy Kentucky. Duke Energy Kentucky was also allocated
Administrative and General (A&G) expenses and O&M expenses from
Duke Energy Business Services, LL.C. and other affiliates, as discussed by
Duke Energy Kentucky witness Mr. David L. Doss. The regulatory assets
were amortized using the amortization schedules approved by the
Commission.

Depreciation
The forecasted depreciation for current and projected new gas plant was

calculated by multiplying the original cost of current and projected new
gas plant by the composite depreciation rates. This calculation was
performed for the base and forecasted periods. Duke Energy Kentucky
witness Ms. Brenda Melendez provided me with the original cost of the
current gas and electric plant along with the current depreciation rates.
Then various groups within the Company supply budgeted capital
expenditures for all types of property held by Duke Energy Kentucky. A
similar process was used to obtain the depreciation expense for the five-
year forecast, using budgeted capital expenditures.

Property Taxes

Duke Energy Kentucky’s Property tax expense is calculated in the budget
by applying current property tax rates and a projected assessment ratio to
projected plant in service balances for the year. The projected plant in
service values are supplied to the tax department that, in turn, applies the

Page 2 of 4



The Duke Energy Kentucky Company
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projected assessment ratios and estimated property tax rates by class of
property.

e. Other Income and Expense

The “other income and expense” is a below-the-line item and is derived
from a combination of sources. The amount of funds for the Allowance
for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) was obtained from the
five-year gas and electric capital forecasts. AFUDC rates were developed
based on historical and forecasted debt financing and returns on equity.
Miscellaneous revenues and expenses, such as gas jobbing revenues and
expenses and rent on non-utility property, were obtained from the annual
budget.

f. Interest Expense

The interest levels are a product of the debt rates, the long-term debt
outstanding, any redemptions or issuances and the short-term financing
needs as determined by the cash inflows and cash outflows for the test
period. The financing results were reviewed by Duke Energy Kentucky
witness Mr. Stephen G. De May to determine whether any adjustments to
Duke Energy Kentucky’s financing plan were necessary. Stephen G. De
May provided the long-term debt balances and long and short-term interest
rates for the annual budget and the five-year forecast. The amount of
short-term debt balances and associated interest expense were calculated
using our forecasting tools.

g. Income Taxes

Income taxes were calculated using the forecasting model. The
calculation was performed for each month of the forecasted period by
applying existing statutory income tax rates to applicable taxable book
income and adjusting the resulting applicable income taxes by the ITC
amortization amounts. Duke Energy Kentucky witness Mr. Parsons
provided the appropriate state and federal income tax rates. He also
supplied me with book/tax temporary difference amounts and the
amortization of investment tax credit (ITC) used to reduce the income tax
expense.

3. Balance sheet assumptions

a. Balances
The actual November 2008 balances from the balance sheet were the
starting point for this forecast.

b. Regulatory Assets
The adjustments to the regulatory assets were obtained from schedules
produced by the Company’s Accounting Department, reflecting
amortization rates previously approved by the Commission.
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The Duke Energy Kentucky Company
Case No. 2009-00202

C.

d.

Dividends

Dividends or equity funding for Duke Energy Kentucky are determined to
the extent they are required to maintain the appropriate capitalization
ratios as outlined by Mr. De May.

Financing
Mr. De May provided the projected changes in long-term debt. He also

supplied me with the amount of meter lease payments and regulator lease
payments. He supplied this information for the annual budget and the
five-year forecast.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income taxes were calculated based on current book and tax
deprecation rates and other applicable factors used to calculate federal
income taxes. Deferred income taxes was reviewed and approved by Mr.
Parsons. The accumulated deferred income tax balance was derived using
the beginning accumulated deferred income tax balance, plus the deferred
income tax expense. Mr. Parsons provided the amount of tax depreciation
and other book/tax temporary differences for this calculation.
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DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(9)(d)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(d)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Annual and monthly budget for the 12 months preceding the Filing Date, the Base Period, and

Forecasted Period.

Response:

See the attached for the Company’s official 2008 and 2009 operating budgets which include the
12 months preceding the Filing Date (July 2008 - June 2009) and the Base Period (October 2008
- September 2009). The requested annual budget for the 12 months of the forecasted test period
is provided in Schedule C-1. The monthly revenue and monthly O&M amounts are shown in
workpapers WPC-2¢ and WPC-2.1a, respectively. This data is comprised of Duke Energy
Kentucky’s 2009 annual budget and extended through January 2011 as described in the

testimony of Mr. Lee.

Sponsoring Witness: Stephen R. Lee




Duke Kentucky
{ncome Statement - Months

2008 Budget
Jun Feb Mar Apr. May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YearTotal
Utility Operatiog lncome:
Revenues
Total Electric Revenue 23,563,243 22,087,935 24,081,928 20,455,678 22,570,801 31,249,528 25367591 28,456,652 25,259,106 22,237,021 22,100,143 25,811,435 293,241,060
Total Gas Revenue 24,349,560 15,569,148 16,003,352 7,064,766 5,348,739 4,380,957 5,068,079 5,057,843 6,073,309 10,775,340 19,752,715 25,626,784 145,070,587
Total Other Revenue 136,578 136,578 136,578 136,578 136,578 136,578 145,138 136,578 136,578 136,578 136,578 153,699 1,664,613
Operating Revente 48,049,380 37,793,660 40,221,857 27,657,021 28,056,118 35,767,062 30,580,807 33,651,072 31,468,992 33,148,938 41,989,435 51,591,917 439,976,259
Cust of Gouds Suld
Cost of Fuel 6,819,347 6,606,123 6,764,413 4,166 430 6,935,506 6,849,023 8,277,191 8,093 966 6,699,573 5,356,767 6,484,536 7,033,513 80,086,788
Purchased Power 807,718 1,012,190 1,705,149 2436498 985,738 6,846,350 (1,301,.215) 2,081,408 3,203,244 2,645939 1,130,739 2,210,495 23,764,274
Gos Purchased 18,324,563 10,644,357 11,467,953 3,934,706 2,829,008 2,078,284 2,736,670 2,765,866 3,596,120 7,653,361 15,556,001 19,727,390 101,314,279
Totat COGS 25,951,628 18,262,670 19,931,515 10,538,034 10,750,252 15,773,657 9,712,646 12,941,240 13,498,937 15,656,088 23,171,276 28,971,398 205,165,341
Operation & Maintenance Expense 9,548,263 10,221,336 10,386,767 11,697,063 11,298,184 10,818,509 10,328,390 10,818,125 9,987,897 9,939,794 9,997,793 12,528,284 127,570,408
Depreciztion and Amortization 2,947,659 3,006,290 3,110,316 3,303,264 3,466,841 3,686,438 3,738,864 3,749,420 3,743,677 3,712,385 3,748,003 3,873,038 42,087,195
Payroll Tax Expense 209,768 212,521 215912 216,391 214,525 212,237 197,909 212,544 207,386 215,027 212,308 206,650 2,533,170
Property Tax Expense $10,320 810,320 810,320 810,320 810,320 810,320 810,320 $10,320 810,320 810,320 810,320 810,341 9,723,862
Revenue Tax Expensc 1,950 - - 1,950 - - 1,950 - - 1950 - - 7,800
Other Tax Expense 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 13,079 156,950
Non-Income Taxes 1,035,117 1,035,921 1,039,311 1,041,740 1037924 1,035,636 1,023,259 1,035,943 1,030,785 1,040,376 1,035,700 1,030,070 12421782
‘Total Operatiog Expenses 39,482,667 32,526,216 34,473,909 26,580,102 26,553,202 31,314,640 24,803,159 28,544,728 28,261,295 30,348,643 37952174 46,403,390 387,244,727
Utility Income Before Income Taxes 8,566,712 5267444 5,747,948 £ 076919 1,502916 4,452,423 5,777,648 5,106,344 3,207,697 2,800,295 4,036,661 5,188,527 52,731,533
income Taxes - Federal 2,178,451 1,108,959 1,292,176 (‘l61,444) 12,300 1,043,787 1,505,698 1,285,309 637,325 493,945 913,674 1323272 11,633,453
Income Taxes - State 384,938 196,732 228,717 27,267y 3,134 184,702 266,053 227,433 113,467 88,170 162,117 234,367 2,062,564
Income Taxes - Deferred 174,882 129,643 105,629 35,063 (86,457) (131,868) (153,498) (159,254) (172,188) (159,420) {150,324} (204,208) {772,001)
Total Utility Income Taxes 2,733271 1,435,334 1,626,522 (153,647 (71,023 1,096,620 1,618,253 1,353,487 578,604 422,695 925,467 1,353,431 12,924,016
Total Utility Operating Expenses 42220939 33,961,551 36,100,431 26,426,455 26,482,179 32,411,260 26,421,412 29,898,215 28,839,899 30,771,338 38,878,242 47,756.821 400,168,743
Net Utility Operating lncome 5828441 3,532,109 4,121,426 1,230,566 1,573,93% 3,355,802 4,159,395 3,752857 2,629,093 2377600 3,111,193 3,835,096 39,807,517
Other Income nnd Deductivnst
Non-Utility Revenue - - - - - - - . - - - - -
{nterest and Dividend Income 375,239 356,061 284,016 208,024 155,811 178,706 208,298 248,161 246,794 212,527 235,141 326,114 3,034,392
AFUDC Equity 9,838 15,860 22,481 27,998 34,352 35,076 34,389 40,756 47,516 53,866 60,167 33,306 415,604
Miscellancous [ncome 101,502 101,502 101,503 101,502 101,502 101,503 101,502 101,502 101,503 101,502 104,502 101,503 1,218,030
Other Opernting Gams and Losses - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total Other Income 486,579 473,423 408,000 337,524 291,665 315,285 344,190 390419 395,813 367,895 396,810 460,923 4,668,526
Other Deducuions 7670 12,250 15813 19,966 19,983 12,462 15,409 19,572 17,631 10452 8,655 18315 178,174
Other Income and Deductions Before Income Taxes 478,909 461,173 392,187 317,559 271,682 302,823 328,781 370,848 378,182 357444 388,155 442,608 4,490,352
Income Taxes - Federal 167,618 161,411 137,266 111,146 95,089 105,988 115,073 129,797 132364 123,105 135,854 154913 1,571,623
{ncome Taxes - State 27,777 26.748 22,747 14,418 15,758 17,564 19,069 21,509 21,935 20.732 22,513 25,671 260,440
‘Total Other income Taxes 195,395 188,159 160,012 129,564 110,846 123,552 134,143 151,306 154,298 145,837 158,367 180,584 1,832,004
Net Other lncome and Deductioos 283,514 273,015 232,175 187,995 160,836 179271 194,638 219,542 223,884 211,607 229,788 262,024 2,658,288
{nterest Charges:
Interest on LT Notes 1,248,866 1,248,866 1,248,866 1,140,533 1,140,533 1,140,533 1,140,533 1,140,533 1,140,333 1,140,533 1,140,533 1,140,533 13,011,392
$31X - Amoruzation of DDE 30,607 30,607 30,607 30,607 32,446 32,4406 32,446 32,446 32,446 32,446 32,446 29,305 378,861
8311 - Amortuzaton of Debt Disc 6,202 6,202 6,202 4,830 4,799 4,790 4,790 4,790 4,790 4,790 4,790 4,790 61,757
0431020 - Interest Exp - Cust Service Dep 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 26,063 312,750
0431130 - Interest Exp - Caputal Lease 57,555 56,960 56,362 55,761 55,157 54,550 53,940 53327 52,712 51,019 50,448 49,874 647,662
8510 - Interest Costs on Capital Debt Expense (36,277 (56,474) (66,296) (76,637) (85,837) (68,235) 49737 (57,000} {67.993) {79,898) (87,164) {59,109) (790,657
0431002 - interest Expense 200,063 186,122 202,990 232,553 287,627 346,932 343378 341,002 397,384 389,093 376,661 444,853 3,748,661
Other - - - - - - - - . - - - .
Total Interest Income and Expense 1,533,079 1,498,345 1,504,794 1,413,709 1,460,778 1,537,079 1,551,413 1,541,161 1,585,934 1,564,048 1,543,777 1,636,309 18,370,427

Net lncome 4,578,876 2,606,779 2,848,806 4,852 273,996 1,997,995 2,802,621 2,431,237 1,267,042 1,025,159 1,797,204 2,460,811 24095378




Duke . Kentucky
Income Statement ~ Months
2009 Budget

Jag Feb Mar Apr May Jup Jul Aug Sep Oct Noy Dec YearTotal
Utility Operating Income:
Revenues
Total Electric Revenue 31,538,150 27,965,694 28,556,385 26,025,279 26,543,709 31,498,106 37,744,502 34,031,012 29,351,197 28,768,191 26,224 384 31,283,192 359,529,902
Total Gas Revenue 27,292,192 15562,813 £6,644,922 7.230,569 5,411,457 3992184 4,858,282 4,989,303 6,139,687 11,724 850 19,667 487 26,608,242 150,521,989
Total Other Reveoue 184,813 184813 184,813 184,813 184,813 184 813 184813 184.813 184,813 184,813 184,813 184,813 2217755
Operating Revenue £9,015,156 44,113,320 45,386,120 33,440,661 32,140,039 35,675,104 42,787,598 39,205,228 35,675,697 40,677,855 46,076,684 58,076,247 512269,706
Cost of Goods Sold
Cost of Fuel 11,960,261 10,686,483 11,744,289 9,455,637 4,349,453 11,636,562 13,006,408 12,844,117 10,498,867 11,088,235 9,961,663 11,434,530 128,668,104
Purchased Power 2641114 2,132,225 1,541,684 2,582 689 7,026,023 2.901,501 5,975,826 2,150,225 3,878,666 2,896,175 1,701,478 2,467,665 37895271
Gas Purchased 20,282,522 10,807,191 11,838,039 4,049,395 2,929,019 1,998,571 2,675,550 2,777,200 3,674,804 8,443,386 15,578,349 20,892,523 105,946,551
Total COGS 34,583,898 23,625.898 25,124,012 16,087,720 14,304,495 16,536,634 21,657,784 17,772,142 18,852,337 22,427,796 27242490 34,794,720 272,509,926
Operation & Mamienance Expense 10,115913 10,416,598 11,856,869 10,675,533 11,732,787 12,054,349 11,186,292 11,375,551 10,857,466 11,058,352 10,774,040 10,898,485 133,002,333
Depreciauon and AmortiZauon 3,361,955 3,367,689 3377760 3386947 3,401,968 3,409,685 3415473 3,422,165 3,428 420 3,432,218 3,436,314 3,440,077 40,880,672
Payroll Tax Expensc 213919 213919 213519 213919 213919 213919 213919 213919 213919 213919 213919 214,627 2,567,732
Property Tax Expense 830,091 880,091 880,091 280,091 880,091 880,091 430,091 880,091 880,091 880,091 830,091 880,091 10,561,097
Revenue Tax Expense 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 5,100
Other Tax Expense 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 17,670 212,040
Nen-Income Taxes 1,112,108 1,112,105 1,112,108 1,112,105 112,105 1,112,105 1,112,105 1,112,105 1,112,105 {112,105 1,112,108 1,112,844 13,345969
Total Operating Expenses 49,473,870 38,522,289 41,470,746 31,262,305 30,551,354 33,112,873 37.371,655 33,681,964 33,450,327 38,030,471 42,564,949 50,246,096 459,738,900
Utility income Before income Taxes 9,541,286 5,591,031 3915373 2,178,356 1,588,685 2,562,227 5415943 5,523,264 222531 2,647,384 3511,735 7,830,151 52,530,806
Income Taxes - Federal 2803773 1,500,338 942,543 377445 182,838 351,809 1,282,696 1,309,946 246,179 385,582 672,897 2,107,618 12,163,705
ncome Taxcs - State 485,579 260,392 163,835 66,054 32,308 61,527 222,523 227,350 43,654 67,614 117,281 365,231 2113389
income Taxes - Deferred (257,252) {246,646) (244,734) (241,762) (226,196) (225374) (235,001} (223,720} (197,610) {196,629) (202,892) (252,526) {2,750.342)
Total Utility Income Taxes 3,032,100 1,514,085 861,644 204,737 {11,050y 187,962 1,270,218 1,313,657 92,224 256,567 587,286 2,220,323 11,526,752
Total Utility Operating Expenses 52,505,970 40,036,374 42,332,390 31,464,042 30,540,304 33,300.836 38,641,872 34,995,620 33,542,552 38,287,038 43,152,235 52,466,419 471,265,652
Net Utility Operating Income 6,509,186 4,076,946 3,053,730 1,976,619 1,599,735 2,374,265 4,145,725 4,209,608 2,133,146 2,390,817 2,924,449 5,609829 41,004,054
Other lacome and Deductioos:
Non-Utility Reveaue 463 463 463 463 463 463 463 463 463 463 463 463 5,500
Interest and Dividend Income 394,815 369,336 300,856 241,535 195,343 200,040 260313 297987 288,036 250471 261,137 335,634 3395502
AFUDC Equity 4,127 5901 9,000 13,834 19.957 26,240 33,130 40,068 45,572 49,629 52,845 28,301 324,604
Miscellancous Income 7,720 7,720 7,720 7,720 7.720 7,720 7,720 7,720 7,720 7,720 7720 7,720 92,640
Other Operatng Gains and Losses - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total Other Income 407,125 383,420 318,039 263,552 223,484 234,464 301,627 346,238 341,79t 308,284 322,166 3018 3,822,307
0426508 - Inc Deducuon-Other Inc & Exp 11,357 11,357 11,357 11357 11,357 11,358 11357 11,357 11,357 11,357 11,357 11,358 136,280
Other Income and Deductions Before income Taxes 395,768 372,063 306,683 252,196 212,128 223,106 290,270 334,88} 330,434 296,927 310,809 360,761 3,686,027
Income Taxes - Federal 138,519 130,222 107,339 88,269 74,245 78,087 101,598 117,209 115,652 103,924 108,783 126,266 1,290,109
income Taxes - State 22,559 21,208 17,481 14,375 12,091 12,717 16,545 19,088 18,835 16,925 17,716 20,563 210,104
Total Other Income Taxes 161,078 151,430 124,820 102,644 86,336 90,804 118,140 136,297 134,487 120,849 126,499 146,830 1,500,213
Net Other Income and Deductions 234,691 220,634 181,863 149,552 125,792 132,302 172,130 198,585 195,947 176,078 184,310 213934 2,185814
1nterest Charges:
interest on LT Notes 1,432,199 1,432,199 1,432,199 1,432,199 1,432,199 1,838,449 1,438,449 1,833,449 1,707,199 1,707,199 1,707,199 1,707,199 19,505,142
831X - Amortization of DDE 33472 33472 33472 33472 33472 39,722 39,722 39,722 33,994 38,266 38,2606 38266 440,320
8311 - Amoruzation of Debt Dise 4,790 4.790 4.790 4,790 4,790 4.790 4,790 4,750 4575 4,360 4360 4360 55,976
0431020 « Interest Exp - Cust Service Dep 28,757 28,757 28,757 28,757 28,757 28,757 28,757 28,757 23,757 28,757 28,757 28,757 345,080
0431130 - Interest Exp - Caprtal Lease 61,399 60,737 60,071 59,402 58,731 58,056 57378 56,696 56,012 51,080 50,576 50,070 650,207
8510 - Interest Costs on Caputal Debt Expense (70,960} (773749 (78,618) {68,565) (61,965} (67.015) (75,570) (83,659 {91,154y (97.160) (100,993) (70.805) (944,378)
0431002 - Interest Expense 104 i9 22,730 (2,867) {2.520) 52312 59,660 58,163 110,060 109,625 102,836 135,878 645997
Qther - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total Interest Income and Expense 1,489,759 1,482,100 1,503,400 1,487,189 1,493,464 1,955,071 1,953,186 1,942,878 1854444 1,842,127 1,831,001 1,893,724 20,728,345

Net lacome 5,254,079 2,815,442 1,732,154 638,944 232,024 551,457 2,364,631 2,465,277 474,611 724,729 1,277,720 3,929,997 22,461,063




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(9)(¢)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(e)

Description of Filing Requirement:

A statement of attestation signed by the utility’s chief officer in charge of Kentucky operations which

shall provide:

1. That the forecast utilized in Case No. 2009-00202 by Duke Energy Kentucky is, in my

opinion, reasonable, reliable, made in good faith and that all basic assumptions used in
the forecast have been identified and justified; and

2. That the forecast contains the same assumptions and methodologies as used in the
forecast prepared for use by management of Duke Energy Kentucky; and

3. That productivity and efficiency gains are included in the forecast.

Response: See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Julia S. Janson







AFFIDAVIT OF JULIA S. JANSON

State of Ohio )

)
County of Hamilton )

Now comes Julia S. Janson, President of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and Duke Energy
Kentucky, Inc. and as required by 807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(9)(e), hereby attests as follows:

1. the forecast used in Case No. 2009-002002 by Duke Energy is reasonable, reliable,
made in good faith and that all basic assumptions used in the forecast have been
identified and justified; and

2. the forecast contains the same assumptions and methodologies as used in the forecast
prepared for use by management, or an identification and explanation for any
differences that exist; and

3. productivity and efficiency gains are included in the forecast; and

4. merger savings are reflected in Duke Energy Kentucky’s proposed rates through base

rates, consistent with Commission’s November 29, 2005 Order in Case No. 2005-
00228.

Further affiant sayeth naught.

e

J uha S. Janso ffiant
\f

th

Sworn and subscribed before me by Julia S. Janson on this [ day of June 2009.

e, Q.S

Notary Public

PATTY A. SELM
Notary Public, State of Qhio
Wy Commission Expires 09-15-2014

My Commission Expires:

280268






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(9)(F)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(f)

Description of Filing Requirement:

For each major construction project which constitutes five (5) percent or more of the annual

construction budget within the three (3) year forecast the following information shall be filed:

1. The date the project was started or estimated starting date;
2. The estimated completion date;

3. The total estimated cost of construction by year exclusive and inclusive of allowance for
funds used during construction ("AFUDC") or interest during construction credit; and

4. The most recent available total costs incurred exclusive and inclusive of AFUDC or interest
during construction credit

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Gary J. Hebbeler




Filing Requirement FR 9(f)

Page 1 of 1
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Case No. 2008-00202
Major Construction Projects
Constituting 5% or More of Annual Budget
Actual or Projected Actual Costs  Actual Costs
Line Projected Comptetion Estimated Costs Including AFUDC Estimated Costs Excluding AFUDC To Date To Date
No. Project ID/Description Start Date Date 2009 2010 2011 2008 2010 2011 incl AFUDC excl AFUDC
1 KYCIBS09 - CI&BS 2009 KY 1/1/2009 12/31/2009 20,416,320 0 0 20,113,286 0 [¢] 3,089,090 3,081,896
2 KYCIBS10 - KENTUCKY CAST IRON BARE STEEL 1/142010 12/31/2010 0 8,278,918 0 0 8,149,952 0 - 0
3 G7SERVMC - SERVICES MC Various Various 3,588,721 4885812 3,638,493 2,788,682 4,885,812 3,638,493 384,366 382,236
4 G7MAINS - MAINS Various Various 1,689,405 1,673,032 2,048,025 1,384,600 1,573,032 2,048,025 143,880 143,716
s G7PUINMR - GAS METERS AND REGULATORS Various Various 1,268,864 4,086,166 1,569,962 1,206,672 4,086,166 1,569,962 84 444 84 444
6 G7RISER - RISER REPLACEMENT Various Various 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 17474 17,474
7 G7PUBIMP - PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS Various Various 1,601,500 1,428,972 1,550,242 1,591,088 1,428,972 1,650,242 174,638 177,995
FR 10(9)(b)(H)(g).xlsx 6/23/2008






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 1009)(g)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(g)

Description of Filing Requirement:

For all construction projects which constitute less than five (5) percent of the annual construction
budget within the three (3) year forecast, the utility shall file an aggregate of the information

requested in paragraph (£)3 and 4 of this subsection

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Gary J. Hebbeler




Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Case No. 2009-00202
Major Construction Projects
Constituting Less than 5% of Annual Budget

Filing Requirement FR 9(g)
Page 1 of 1

Actual Costs  Actual Costs

Actual or Projected
Line Projected Completion Estimated Costs Including AFUDC Estimated Costs Excluding AFUDC To Date To Date
No. Project |D/Description Start Date Date 2009 2010 2011 2008 2010 2011 incl AFUDC _excl AFUDC
1 Sum of all projects not included on 9(f} Various Various 3,644,252 4,390,726 2,067,672 4,828,139 4,367,706 2,067,672 1,049,573 1,093,441
6/23/2009

FR 10(9)(b){(f}{g).xisx






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(9)(h)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(h)

Description of Filing Requirement:

A financial forecast corresponding to each of the three (3) forecasted years included in the

capital construction budget. The financial forecast shall be supported by the underlying

assumptions made in projécting the results of operations and shall include the following

information:

1.
2.

I = R P N

1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

Operating income statement (exclusive of dividends per share or earnings per share);
Balance sheet;

Statement of cash flows;

Revenue requirements necessary to support the forecasted rate of return;

Load forecast including energy and demand (electric);

Access line forecast (telephone);

Mix of generation (electric);

Mix of gas supply (gas);

Employee level;

Labor cost changes;

Capital structure requirements;

Rate base;

Gallons of water projected to be sold (water);

Customer forecast (gas, water);

MCEF sales forecasts (gas);

Toll and access forecast of number of calls and number of minutes (telephone); and

A detailed explanation of any other information provided;



Response: Items 6, 13, 16, and 17 are not applicable to Duke Energy Kentucky. For all other

items see attached.

Sponsoring Witnesses:

Stephen R. Lee, Items 1,2,3,4,5,7,8,9,10, 12, 14 and 15
Stephen G. De May, Item 11

Timothy A. Phillips, Item 15



Duke Energy Kentucky
Case No. 2009-00202

Projected Income Statement 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(1)

Line
No. | | Description 1 2009 | | 2010 | | 2011 |
1 Operating Revenue
2 Electric Revenue $353,966 $355,064 $378,735
3 Gas Revenue 126,671 122,914 130,304
4 Other Revenue 6,792 2,228 2,251
5 Total Operating Revenue $487,429 $480,206 $511,290
6 Operating Expenses
7 Fuel & Purchased Power $162,511 $163,293 $177,758
8 Gas Purchased 80,958 78,050 85,210
9 Operation & Maintenance 136,701 139,825 149,151
10 Depreciation & Amortization 42,170 43,653 44 588
11 Taxes Other Than Income 13,515 14,385 16,640
12  Operating Expenses before Income Tax $435,855 $439,206 $473,347
13 Pre-Tax Operating Income $51,574 $41,000 $37,943
14  Other Income $3,060 $3,816 $4,258
15 Interest Expense $16,323 $17,564 $18,272
16  State Income Taxes $2,054 $1,306 $1,117
17 Federal income Taxes 11,954 8,390 7,417
18 Total Income Taxes $14,008 $9,696 $8,534
19 Income Available for Common Dividends $24,303 $17,556 $15,395
20 Average Common Equity $398,176 $419,106 $439,082
21 Earned Return 6.10% 4.19% 3.51%



Duke Energy Kentucky

Case No. 2009-00202
Projected Balance Sheet 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(2)

Line
No. Description 2009 | [ 2010 ][ 2011 |

1 Assets
2 Utility plant in service $1,563,347 $1,608,328 $1,687,871
3 Construction work in progress 3,927 20,385 12,611
4  Total Utility Plant $1,667,274 $1,628,713 $1,700,482
5 Non-regulated property, plant, and equipment $24,088 $24,088 $24,088
6 Accumulated depreciation 684,413 710,284 735,404
7 Net Property, Plant, and Equipment $906,949 $942,517 $989,166
8 Current Assets $114,139 $119,046 $118,525
9 Other Assets $68,338 $68,199 $67,800

10 Total Assets $1,089,426 $1,129,762 $1,175,491

Liabilities

11 Total Current Liabilities $91,672 $77,413 $193,074

12  Long-term debt $353,799 $377,171 $302,189

13 Accumulated deferred income taxes 177,568 176,500 175,636

14  Unamortized investment tax credits 3,711 3,009 2,435

15 Other 60,348 59,785 59,877

16 Total Non-Current Liabilities $595,426 $616,465 $540,137

17  Total Common Stock Equity $402,328 $435,884 $442,280

18 Total Liabilities $1,089,426 $1,129,762 $1,175,491




Duke Energy Kentucky
Case No. 2009-00202
Projected Cash Flow Statement 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(3)

Line
No. | | Description 11 2009 | | 2010 || 2011 ]
1 Net Income $24,302 $17,496 $15,216
2 Other Operating Activities 44 486 39,681 42,410
3 Cash from Operating Activities 68,788 57,177 57,626
4  Financing Activities
5 Change in contributed capital ($16,000) $16,000 ($9,000)
6 Change in short-term debt 15,779 (12,492) 42,142
7 Issuance of long-term debt 40,000 25,000 -
8 Change in non-current capital leases (2,424) {1,680) (1,517)
9 Redemption of long-term debt (20,088) - -
10 - - -
11 Dividends on common stock (3,282) - -
12 Cash from Financing Actitivies 13,985 26,828 31,8625
13 Investing Activities
14 Construction Expenditures (net of AFUDC) ($75,028) ($84,005) ($89,251)
15 Acquisitions and other investments (4,943) - -
16 Cash from investing Actitivies (79,971) (84,005) (89,251)
17  MNet Increase/(Decrease) in Cash $2,802 $0 30




Duke Energy Kentucky
Case No. 2009-00202

Revenue Requirements 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(4)

Line
No.

Description [ |

2009

|

2010

11

2011

Refer to FR 10(9)(h)(1) for revenue requirements.



FR 10(9}h)(5)

Duke Energy Kentucky

Case No. 2009-00202
f.oad Forecast 2009-2011

Line
No. { [ Description | | 2009 | [ 2010 || 2011 |
1 KW Demand - Coincident Peak
2
3 January 721 718 739
4  February 682 679 698
5 March 666 663 681
6 April 598 595 613
7 May 676 672 687
8 June 800 798 815
9 July 855 851 870
10  August 855 850 870
11 September 758 754 772
12 October 618 615 630
13 November 626 623 642
14 December 696 694 714
15
16 KWH Sales
17
18 January 381,816 379,736 391,990
19 February 326,312 324,596 335,157
20 March 322,827 321,107 331,449
21 April 294,166 292,727 302,322
22  May 305,832 304,301 314,157
23 June 356,723 354,630 366,159
24 July 399,197 396,526 409,359
25 August 399,975 397,332 410,215
26  September 338,780 336,583 347,507
27 October 312,777 310,992 321,146
28 November 303,380 301,573 311,310

29 December 359,204 356,632 368,045



Duke Energy Kentucky

Case No. 2009-00202
Mix of Generation 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(7)

Line

No. | | Description ][ 2009 ][ 2010 ]| 2011 |
1 Coal 3,282,826 3,404,377 3,203,426
2 Natural Gas 27,125 26,856 35,774
3 Oil 0 0 0
4 Total Generation (MWH) 3,309,951 3,431,233 3,239,200



Duke Energy Kentucky
Case No. 2009-00202
Mix of Gas Supply 2009-2011

10(9)(h)(8)

Line
No. | | Description 1 2009 I 2010 | 2011}
1 Columbia Gas Trans - No Notice 1,075,729 1,051,765 1,051,765
2 Undetermined 9,967,377 9,771,530 9,761,608
3 Propane - Air 20,638 16,000 16,000
4 Total Supply - MCF 11,063,744 10,839,295 10,829,373
5
6
7
8
9 Columbia Gas Trans - No Notice $ 9,749,597 3 6,683,509 $ 6,898,148
10 Undetermined 57,944,841 64,167,082 71,403,296
11 Propane - Air 107,727 82,560 82,560
12 Demand Costs 6,458,913 6,130,246 6,201,234
13 Total Cost $ 74,261,078 $ 77,063,397 $ 84,585,238



Duke Energy Kentucky

Case No. 2009-00202
Number of Employees 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(9)

Line
No.

[ Description | {2009 ][ 2010 ||

2011

.

1

Number of employees 248 243

This count includes only direct employees of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc..

238



Duke Energy Kentucky

Case No. 2009-00202
Labor Cost Changes 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(10)

Line
No. | | Description i 2009 ][ 2010 || 2011 ]
1 Total Labor Costs:
2
3 Gas O&M Expense $8,829,176 $9,182,343 $9,549,636
4  Electric O&M Expense 29,417,974 30,594,693 31,818,481
5 Total O&M 38,247,150 39,777,036 41,368,117
6
7 Gas Capital 3,601,582 2,822,150 1,682,787
8 Electric Capital 7,485,923 7,817,933 7,028,607
9 Non-jurisdictional Capital 0 0 0
10 Total Capital 11,087,505 10,640,083 8,711,394
11
12 Total $49,334,655 $50,417,119 $50,079,512

" Includes direct and indirect labor costs.




Duke Energy Kentucky
Case No. 2009-00202
Capital Structure Requirements 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(11)

Line
No.

l

Description

11

2009 ||

2010

| |

2011

Refer to FR 10(9)(h)(2) and 10(8)(h)(3).



Duke Energy Kentucky
Case No. 2009-00202
Rate Base 2009-2011

FR 10(9)(h)(12)

Line
No.

[ Description

IL

2009

JL

2010

l

L

2011

]

1

Rate Base at December 31, __

$249,205,673

$265,860,533

$265,658,612




FR 10(9)(h)(14)

Duke Energy Kentucky

Case No. 2009-00202
Customer Forecast 2009-2011

Line
No. | | Description | 2009 || 2010 | | 2011 |
1 Residential 119,173 120,045 121,298
2 Commercial 13,353 13,519 13,689
3 Industrial 383 386 388
4  Other 1,356 1,366 1,392
5 Total Electric Retail 132,947 134,655 135,922
6
7 Residential 87,737 88,485 89,627
8 Commercial 7,234 7,269 7,345
9 Industrial 225 228 231
10  Other 371 371 371
" Total Fuli Requirements 95,567 96,353 97,474
12
13 Transportation
14 Commercial 21 21 21
15 Industrial 39 41 41
16 Other 47 47 47
17 Total Transportation 107 109 109
18
19 Total Gas Retail 95,674 96,462 97,583




Duke Energy Kentucky
Case No. 2009-00202
MCF Sales Forecast 2009-2011

10(9)(h)(15)

Line

No. | | Description ] 1 20090 || 2010 2011 |
1 Residential 6,636,290 6,460,177 6,477,120
2 Commercial 3,254,844 3,254,581 3,256,739
3 Industrial 423,003 384,204 361,598
4 Other 523,268 518,472 509,856
5 Interdepartmental 4,552 4,552 4 552
6 Total Retail 10,841,957 10,621,986 10,609,865
7 Transportation
8 Commercial 145,228 145,213 145,312
9 Industrial 868,868 789,168 742,737
10 Other 1,391,867 1,452,519 1,486,779
11 Total Transportation 2,405,963 2,386,900 2,374,828
12 Total Sales 13,247,920 13,008,886 12,984,693







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE No. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 10(9)(i)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(i)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or Federal Communications

Commission audit reports

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Brenda R. Melendez




il REGEIVED
p. R. HERCHE
FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMTSSION 1 QCT o1 1o5¢
. i
WASHINGTAN, D.C. 20426 LS
KETURA YO

In Reply Refer To:
3 . OCA‘DOA
Docket No. FAS3~64-000

66T 17 1994

The Union Light, Heat and Power Company
Attention: ¥Mr. Daniel R. Herche
Controller
139 Bast Fourth Street
Cincimnmati, OH 45202

!

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Thae Division of Audits of the Office of Chief Accountant  -has
exanined the books and records of The Union Light, Heat and Power
Company for the period January 1, 19390 through Decembar 31, 19$2.
The purpose of the examination was to evaluate your Company’s
compliance with Cémmission accounting and reporting regulations
contained in the Uniform System of Accounts, Anmial Report FERC
Form No. 1, -and the related regulations. The examination
included selective tests of the s&counting records, resview of the
internal control structurs, and other tests and procedures
cons;dered ‘gecessary .under the circumstances.

The Diwision of. Aud;ts recommendeéd corrective actions on
certain f£indings of noncempliance with the Commission’s
accounting; financial reporting, and/or related regulations. The
enclosed .apdit report describes the findings, recomilendations,
and correcting entries. By letter &dated September 20, 1954, your
Company agpeed to adopt the recommended corrective actions. I
hereby apprcve and direct the recommended corrective actions.

The Kentucky Puhlxc Service Commission did not respond with
any objections to the foregoing matters.

The Commission dglegated authority o act in this matter to
the Director, Division of Audits under 18 C.F.R. § 375.303. This
letter ordar constitutes final agency action on the corrective
actions approved and direscted in this report. Within 30 days of
the date &f this order, your Company may file a request for
rehearing by the Commission under 18 C.F.R. § 385.713.




The Union Light, Heat and Power ccunpa'rxy . . —F

This letter order is without prejudice to the Commission's
right te regquire hereafter any adjustments it may consider proper

from additienal in

Enclosure

formation that may come to its attention.

Sincerely,
£ A '
Joge A é' 3 ane .

Director, Division of Audits




Results of the Examination
of the
Books and Records
of

The Union Light, Heat and Power Company
Docket No. FA93-64~000
For the Period
1/1/90 through 12/31/92

Conducted by

Divigion of Audits
Office of Chief Accountant
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
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The Bnion Light, Heat and Power Cmnf:any ’ wije~ -
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The Union ILight, Heat and Power Company -

COMPLIANCE . BXCE?TIDNS

The Union Light, Heat and Power Company (Company) agreed to
adopt the recommended corrective actions in the followinq
.‘ cmnpliance matters:

1. Accounting for PCB Dispesal Coats

The Conpany improperly acccunted for costs associated with
the dispesal pf Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) -»contamina:ted
materials removed from plant eguipment. - -

Background af Issue

The Company undertookX a program toc dispese of

- PcB-contaminated materials and equipment (transformers,
‘capacitors, étc.) in accordance with guidelines issued by the
Envirormental Protection Ageéncy. 2as a result, the Company
retired certain of:the PCB-contaminated equipment. Alse, it
retrofilled 1/ other equipment and later reussd the equipment.

For accpunting purposes, the Company . classified the expenses
related to PGB cleanup and disposal either in maintenance ekpense
accounts or a8 cost of removal in Accdunt 108, Accumulated
Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant. During the
period 1990 through 1992 the Company recorded in Account 108
about $82, 564 incurred in the PCB disposal progran, for cleanup
and d:.sposal costs related to certain equipment that was not
retired, but held for subseguernt use.

Digcussion of Accounting Requirements

Electric Plant Instruction No. lo(c) of the Unifom System
of Accounts states, in part:

(3) When-a minor item of depreciable property is replaced
independently of the retirement unit of which it is.a part,
the cost of replacement shall be charged to the maintenance
account appropriate for the item . . . .

i Ratrcrillmg essent:.ally consists of draining all PCP
contaminated dielectric fluids from installed equipnment,
flushing the equipment with a non-~PCB contaminated fluid,
and refilling the equipment with a non-l>¢8 dielectric
coolant.




The Uniog_Light, Heat and Power Company S

hlso, Qparatlng Expanse Instruction No. 2A provides a list
of maintenance work operations applicable generally te utility
plant. Tws. .of the items on the list are as follows:

‘3. Work performed specifically for the purpose of preventing
failure, restoring serv1ceabllity or maintaining life of the
plant.

8. Replacing or adding minor items of plant vhich do not
cnnst&tnte a retirement unit. -

The mstr'uct:.ans to Account 570 Ma:.ntenance af Station
Equipmeant, state in part:

ThisJ;ccount shall iriclude the cost of labcr, materials used
and expenses incurred in maintenance of station eguipment
the Ypok cost of which is includibla in account 353; Station
Egulpmaﬂt. :

The instructions to Account S95, Maintenance of Line
Transformers, prov1de similar raquirements related to line )
\transfczmsr aquiymant.“ ]

-Onder the circumstances presant here, the costs incurred to -
retrolel the equipment were praperly assigned to maintenance
expanse. ﬂherefore, the Company should have recorded thé costs
incurred in the retrofilling of certaln aqulpment in Accounts 570
and 595, as appropriate.

Recommendations ﬂ
We recommend the Company:

(1) revise accounting procedures to ensure it accounts for
the cost of future PCB cleanup operations in accordance
- with the reguiremants of the Uniform System of
Accounts;

(2) review its records of PCB disposal costs incurred prior
: to 1990 for similar amounts improperly charged to
Account 108; and

(3) record a correcting entry by charging maintenance
' exgense and crediting Account 108 with any costs
related teo retrofilling of PCB contaminated eguipmant.

The Company shall submit a copy of the correcting entry to the
orfice of Chief Accountant.




The Uhion Light, Heat and Power Ccmpény ~3—

2. Accou;ﬁ:in’g for Deferred Income Taxes

The Coppany did not record certain deferred income taxes in
its accounts related to bock/tax differencaes collected in '
vholesale rate levels. '

Background of Issue

The Company did not record deferred income taxes related to
book/tax differences covering the following items:

- Rental income
« Giff certificates
+ Othgr swall items

The Company did not receive provisions for normalized income
taxes for ths previocusly mertioned items in establishing retail
rates. Howdver, the Company's rates subject to the Jurisdiction
of FERC inciuded a provisien for income taxes based on
normalization for all book/tax differences.

puriiig 1993 the Company adopted the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard [SFAS) No. 109, Accdunting for
Income faxes. Upon adoption of SFAS 109, the Company establisghed
deferred incdme taxes f£or the praviously mentioneéd book/tax
differehces.. At the same time it recorded a regulatory asset in

Account 182.3, Other Regulitory Assets, for the bodk/tax effects

subject to ‘BERC jurisdiction.

Discus,sicﬁ of Accounting Reguiren,t‘ents

Generdl Instruction No. 18, Comprehensive Interperiod Income
Tax Allocafien, of the Uniform System of Accounts requires a
utility to -establish deferred income taxes to the extent that
normalized income taxes are provided in the rate levels - -
established by each regulatory jurisdiction.

Pricr to 1993, the Company should have applied comprehensive
interpericd income tax allocation procedures for the effect of
any book/tax differences ralated to rates subject to FERC
jurisdiction. Upon adoption of SFAS 109, the Company should not
have estahlished a regulatory asset for the tax eéffacts of any
amounts previously subjected to FERC rates.

Recommendations

We recommend the Campany:




Thea Union LiLght, ‘Yeat and Power Company -
(1) revise procedures to ensure that it records deferred

(2)

_income taxes consistent with the provisions of Ceneral
Instruction No. 18; and ' )

The Company :ghall subm.t a copy of the corracting entry to the

office of Chief Accountant.







DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 1009)())

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(j)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Prospectuses of the most recent stock or bond offerings.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Responsible: Stephen G. De May




New Issue-—Book-Entry-Only

In the opinion of Frost Brown Todd LLC, Bond Counsel, under existing federal statutes, decisions, regulations and rulings, the interest on the
Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners for federal income tax purposes (except for interest on any Bond for any period during which
such Bond is held by a person who is a “substantial user™ of the Project or a “reluted person”). Such exclusion is conditioned on continuing
compliance with the Tax Covenants (hereinafter defined). Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal
alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, but such interest is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating the
federal altemative mininuan tax imposed on certain corporations. In the opinion of Frost Brown Todd LL.C, under existing statutes, decisions,
regulations and rulings, the interest on the Bonds is exempt from income taxation in the Commonwealih of Kentucky. See “TAX MATTERS”
herein.

$50,000,000
County of Boone, Kentucky
Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2008A
(Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. Project)

Dated: Date of Issuance Due: August 1, 2027

The Series 2008A Bonds (the “Bonds™) will be issued to refund certain outstanding bonds which were issued to refinance a portion of
the costs of acquisition, construction, improvement and equipping of certain air and water pollution control facilities and solid waste disposal
facilities for Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

The Bonds will be special and limited obligations of the County of Boone, Kentucky (the “Issuer™), a de jure county and political subdivision
of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and will be payable solely from and secured exclusively by payments, revenues and other amounts pledged
thereto pursuant to an Indenture (described herein). The Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit or taxing
power of the Issuer or the Commonwealth of Kentucky (the “State”) or any political subdivision thereof and the holders and owners of the Bonds
will have no right to have any taxes levied by the Issuer or the State or any political subdivision or other taxing authority of the State for the payment
or redemption price of, and interest on, the Bonds. See “THE ISSUER" herein. The Bonds will be payable solely, except to the extent paid out
of moneys attributable to proceeds thereof, from and secured by an assignment by the Issuer of loan payments to be received under a Loan
Agreement with Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (the “Company™).

From the date of original issuance of the Bonds through September 12, 2011 (subject to extension or earlier termination), the Bonds
also will be payable from funds drawn under an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit issued by Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the
“Bank’"),

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association

The Letter of Credit will permit the Trustee to draw with respect to the Bonds up to (i} an amount sufficient to pay the principal
thereof (or that portion of the purchase price corresponding to principal) plus (ii} interest thereon {or that portion of the purchase price
corresponding to interest) at an assumed rate of 13% for at least 48 days.

Interest on the Bonds will accrue initially at the Weekly Rate and will be payable on the first Business Day of each month, commencing
January 2, 2009. The Bonds will continue to bear interest at the Weekly Rate until converted to a different Variable Rate or the Auction
Rate or until the maturity of the Bonds. Deutsche Bank National Trust Company will serve as Trustee, Paying Agent and Registrar under the
Trust Indenture, Wachovia Bank, National Association will serve as Remarketing Agent.

The method for determining the interest rate to be borne by the Bonds may be changed from the Weekly Rate to a Daily Rate,
Commercial Paper Rate, an Auction Rate or a Term Rate at the times and in the maaner set forth in this Official Statement.

The Bonds will be subject to optional, extraordinary optional and mandatory redemption and optional and mandatory tender prior to
maturity, in each case at the price, in the manner and at the time set forth in this Official Statement.

Because the Bonds are secured by the Letter of Credit, this Official Statement does not contain information relating 1o the Company or its
ability to pay principal and purchase price of and interest on the Bonds. The investment decision to purchase the Bonds should be made solely on
the busis of the creditworthiness of the Bank, as issuer of the Lester of Credit, from which all principal and purchase price of and interest on the
Bonds will be paid.

The Bonds will be issued only as fully registered bonds and initially will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC™). DTC will act as a securities depository for the Bonds. Purchases of beneficial
interests in the Bonds while bearing interest at the Weekly Rate will be made in book-entry-only form (without certificates) in denominations
of $100,000 or any integral mu)tipﬁ: of $5,000 in excess thereof and under certain circumstances are exchangeable as more fully described
herein. Principal of and any premium on the Bonds will be payable upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the corporate trust
office of the Registrar. So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co,, is the registered owner of the Bonds, payments of the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be made directly to Cede & Co. See “THE BONDS — Book-Entry-Only System” herein,

Price: 100%

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued by the Issuer and accepted by the Underwriter, subject to prior sale, withdrawal or modification of the
offer without notice, the approval of legality by Frost Brown Todd LLC, as Bond Counsel, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will
be passed upon for Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. by Robert T. Lucas 111, Esq., Associate General Counsel of Duke Energy Corporation, and Richard
G. Beach, Esq., Assistant General Counsel of Duke Energy Corporation, as counsel to the Company; for the Issuer by Robert D. Neace, Esq.,
County Auorney of the Issuer; and for the Underwriter by Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.E It is expected that delivery of the Bonds in
book-entry-only form will be made on or about December 11, 2008 in New York, New York, against payment therefor.

Wachovia Securities

Dated: December 3, 2008



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Issuer, Duke Energy
Kentucky, Inc. (the “Company”’) and Wachovia Bank, National Association (the “Underwriter”) to give
any information or to make any representation with respect to the Bonds, other than those contained in
this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representation must not be relied
upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. Certain information contained herein has been
obtained from the Issuer, the Company, the Underwriter and the Bank and other sources which are
believed to be reliable.

The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and
neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the parties referred to
above since the date hereof. Any statements in this Official Statement involving estimates, assumptions
and matters of opinion, whether or not so expressly stated, are intended as such and not as representations
of fact.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.
The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part
of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and
circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of
such information.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE BONDS, THE UNDERWRITER
MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE
MARKET PRICES OF SUCH BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE
PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE
DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

Neither the Issuer, its counsel, nor any of its members, agents, employees or representatives
have reviewed this Official Statement or investigated the statements or representations contained herein,
except the Issuer has reviewed the statements relating to the Issuer set forth under the caption “THE
ISSUER.” Except with respect to the information contained under such caption, neither the Issuer, its
counsel (provided that such counsel has not independently investigated the statements contained under
such caption), nor any of its officials, agents, employees or representatives makes any representation as to
the completeness, sufficiency and truthfulness of the statements set forth in this Official Statement. The
officials of the Issuer and any other person executing the Bonds are not subject to personal liability by
reason of the issuance of the Bonds. This Official Statement is not to be construed as an agreement or
contract between the Issuer and the purchasers or holders of any Bonds.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$50,000,000
County of Boone, Kentucky
Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2008A
(Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. Project)

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Official Statement, including the cover page and Appendices, is provided to
furnish information in connection with the offer and sale by the County of Boone, Kentucky (the
“Issuer’) of $50,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its Pollution Control Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2008A (Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. Project) (the “Bonds"”). The
Bonds will be issued under a Trust Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2008 (the “Indenture”),
between the Issuer and Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The
Registrar and Paying Agent will be Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, located in Chicago,
Illinois. Terms used as defined terms and not otherwise defined herein are used as defined in the
Indenture.

The proceeds of the Bonds will be loaned by the Issuer to Duke Energy Kentucky,
Inc. (formerly The Union Light, Heat and Power Company), a public utility and corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Kentucky (the “Comparny”), pursuant to a
Loan Agreement dated as of December 1, 2008 (the “Loan Agreement”), between the Company
and the Issuer. The Bonds are being issued to refund certain outstanding revenue bonds (the
“Refunded Bonds ") originally issued by the Issuer to refinance the Company’s portion of the
costs of certain air and water pollution and solid waste disposal facilities (the “Project Facilities”
or “Project”) located at the East Bend Generating Station (the “Generating Station”) within the
boundaries of the Issuer, now owned by the Company. See “APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS.”
The Company will agree in the Loan Agreement to make payments sufficient to pay when due
the principal of and interest and any premium on the Bonds and any other amounts relating
thereto, including payments of the purchase price. See “THE LOAN AGREEMENT.”

The Company's obligations under the Loan Agreement will be unsecured. There is
no requirement in the Indenture for the Company to provide or deliver any security for its
obligations under the Loan Agreement. All references in this Official Statement to “Credit
Facility” and “Credit Facility Issuer” apply only if a Credit Facility is then in effect.

The Bonds will be dated the date of their original issuance, will mature on the date set
forth on the cover page of this Official Statement, will be subject to optional and mandatory
tender for purchase, and will be subject to optional, extraordinary optional and mandatory
redemption, as provided in the Indenture and as further described in this Official Statement. The
Bonds will bear interest initially at Weekly Rates and will continue to bear interest at Weekly
Rates until the conversion of the Bonds to a different Rate Period or until the maturity of the



Bonds. The Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on any Conversion Date.
The method for determining the interest rate to be borne by the Bonds may be changed from the
Weekly Rate to a Daily Rate, Commercial Paper Rate, Term Rate or Auction Rate at the times
and in the manner set forth in this Official Statement.

Concurrently with, and as a condition to, the issuance of the Bonds, the Company will
cause to be delivered an irrevocable, direct-pay letter of credit (the “Letter of Credit’), issued by
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the “Bank”™), to provide for the timely payment of
principal of and interest (calculated for at least 48 days at the maximum rate of 13% per annum) on,
and purchase price of, the Bonds. The Company will be required to reimburse the Bank for all
amounts drawn by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit pursuant to the terms of the Letter of
Credit Agreement, dated as of September 19, 2008 (the “Credit Agreement’), between the
Company, Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. and the Bank, as a participating bank and as issuer of the
Letter of Credit, and certain other participating banks. The Letter of Credit will expire on
September 12, 2011, subject to automatic extension, unless terminated or extended.

Upon expiration of the Letter of Credit or any Alternate Credit Facility (see “THE
INDENTURE - Cancellation of Credit Facility; Delivery of Alternate Credit Facility”), the Bonds
will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase. See “THE BONDS — Mandatory Tenders — Upon
Delivery, Cancellation or Expiration of Credit Facility or Replacement with Alternate Credit
Facility.” As used in this Official Statement, “Bank” or “Credit Facility Issuer” refers to the Bank
as the issuer of the Letter of Credit and the issuer of any Alternate Credit Facility delivered in
accordance with the Indenture; “Letter of Credit” means the Letter of Credit delivered under the
Indenture and, as applicable, any Alternate Credit Facility which may be subsequently delivered in
accordance with that Indenture; and “Credit Agreement” refers to the initial Credit Agreement under
which the Letter of Credit was issued and any subsequent agreement entered into between the
Company and the Bank in connection with the delivery of any Alternate Credit Facility.

The Bonds are special and limited obligations of the Issuer and will be payable
solely from and secured exclusively by payments, revenues and other amounts pledged
thereto pursuant to the Indenture. The Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt or
pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the Issuer or the Commonwealth of
Kentucky (the “State”) or any political subdivision thereof and the holders and owners of
the Bonds will have no right to have taxes levied by the Issuer or the State or any political
subdivision or other taxing authority of the State for the payment or redemption price of,
and interest on, the Bonds.

Brief descriptions of the Issuer, the Bonds, the Letter of Credit, the Credit Agreement,
the Loan Agreement, and the Indenture are included in this Official Statement. Certain limited
information with respect to the Company is included in Appendix A hereto. Appendix B sets
forth certain information with respect to the Bank. Appendix C sets forth Certain Definitions.
Appendix D contains the proposed form of the opinion of Bond Counsel to be delivered in
connection with the issuance and delivery of the Bonds.

All references herein to the documents are qualified in their entirety by reference to
such documents, and references herein to the Bonds are qualified in their entirety by reference to
the definitive forms thereof included in the Indenture. Copies of certain of the financing



documents will be available for inspection at the corporate trust office of the Trustee and, until
the issuance of the Bonds, may be obtained from the Underwriter. Appendix A to this Official
Statement and all information contained under the heading “APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS”
has been furnished by the Company. The information contained under the heading “THE
BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” has been furnished by DTC, and none of the Issuer, the
Company, the Underwriter or Bond Counsel assumes any responsibility for the accuracy or
completeness of such information.

As indicated above, payment of the principal and purchase price of and interest on
the Bonds will be supported by the Letter of Credit. An investment decision to purchase the
Bonds should be made solely on the basis of the creditworthiness of the Bank. This Official
Statement does not contain any financial or operating information relating to the Company or
its ability to make payments sufficient to pay the principal and purchase price of or interest on
the Bonds. Prospective investors should look solely to the Bank and the Letter of Credit for
payments of the principal and purchase price of or interest on the Bonds.

THE ISSUER

The Issuer is a body corporate and politic duly created and existing as a de jure
county and political subdivision under the constitution and laws of the State. The Issuer is
authorized by Section 103.200 to 103.285, inclusive, of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (the
“det”)y (i) to issue Bonds, (ii) to lend proceeds thereof to the Company for the purpose of
refunding the Refunded Bonds, and (iii) to enter into and perform its obligations under the Loan
Agreement and the Indenture relating to the Bonds. The Issuer, through its legislative body, the
Fiscal Court, has adopted an ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and the execution
and delivery of related documents.

Although the Issuer has consented to the use of this Official Statement in connection
with the marketing of the Bonds, the Issuer has not participated in the preparation of this Official
Statement and, except for the information appearing herein under the caption “THE ISSUER,”
makes no representation as to its adequacy or accuracy.

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds of the Bonds will be deposited with the Trustee in the Refunding Fund
created under the Indenture to be used, together with investment income thereon, by the Trustee
within 90 days of the date of issuance to redeem the Refunded Bonds (described below). The
Refunded Bonds will be redeemed at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof
plus accrued interest. The Company will pay the fees and expenses of the Underwriter and other
issuance costs from other available moneys of the Company.

The Bonds are being issued to refund the $50,000,000 County of Boone, Kentucky,
Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2006A (Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Project).



The proceeds of the Refunded Bonds were applied to refinance the Company’s
portion of the costs of the Project Facilities located at the Generating Station.

The Issuer does not monitor the operation of the Project by the Company but relies
upon the representations of the Company contained in the Loan Agreement.

THE BONDS

The Bonds will be issued under the Indenture. Although the Indenture permits the
Bonds to be converted to the Auction Mode to bear interest at Auction Period Rates, certain
provisions with respect to the Auction Mode, including the Auction Procedures, are not included
in this Official Statement.

General

The Bonds will be issued under the Indenture in the aggregate principal amount and
mature on the date set forth on the cover page hereof, subject to optional, extraordinary optional
and mandatory redemption and optional and mandatory tender prior to maturity as described
below. The Bonds will bear interest determined as described below. The Bonds will be issuable
as fully registered Bonds without coupons in Authorized Denominations.

The Bonds initially will bear interest at the Weekly Rate until converted at the option
of the Company to the Auction Rate or to another Variable Rate in accordance with the
Indenture. The permitted Variable Rates are the “Daily Rate,” the “Weekly Rate,” the “Term
Rate” and the “Commercial Paper Rate.” Changes in the Variable Rate will be effected, and
notice of such changes will be given, as described below in “THE BONDS — Conversions.”
Authorized Denominations for the Bonds will be (i) for Term Bonds, denominations of $5,000 or
integral multiples thereof, (ii) for Bonds at a Commercial Paper, a Daily or a Weekly Rate,
denominations of $100,000 with integral multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof and (iil) for
Auction Rate Bonds, denominations of $25,000 or integral multiples thereof.

During a Term Rate Period, payments of principal or redemption price of the Bonds
will be payable in clearinghouse funds; provided, however, that at the option of the Paying
Agent, such payments may be made in immediately available funds; provided further, that the
holder of at least $1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Bonds may deliver a written
request to the Paying Agent prior to the applicable Regular Record Date or Special Record Date,
and in that case interest accrued will be paid by wire transfer to a bank within the continental
United States to such holder, by direct deposit thereof to the account of the holder if such
account is maintained with the Paying Agent or, for any holder who has entered into a special
agreement with the Paying Agent in accordance with the Indenture, according to the directions
contained therein. During any ARS, Commercial Paper, Daily or Weekly Rate Period, payments
of principal or redemption price of the Bonds will be payable in immediately available funds.
Each Bond will bear interest at the applicable rate determined pursuant to the Indenture for such
Interest Period from the last preceding Interest Payment Date for which interest has been paid or
duly provided for (or its date if no interest thereon has been paid or duly provided for). Subject
to the provisions of the Indenture with respect to the establishment of a Special Record Date, the
interest due on any Bond on any Interest Payment Date will be paid to the person in whose name



such Bond is registered as shown on the register on the Regular Record Date. The amount of
interest so payable will be computed on the basis of a 365 or 366-day year, as applicable, for the
number of days actually elapsed during Commercial Paper, Daily or Weekly Rate Periods, and
on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months during a Term Rate Period,
and as set forth in the Indenture for an ARS Rate Period.

The interest due on any Bond on any Interest Payment Date will be paid to the Person
in whose name such Bond is registered as shown on the Register on the Regular Record Date. [f
and to the extent that the Issuer fails to make payment or provision for payment of interest on
any Bond when payable pursuant to the Indenture, that interest will cease to be payable to the
Person who was the Holder of that Bond as of the applicable Regular Record Date. When
moneys become available for payment of the interest, (i) the Trustee will, pursuant to the
Indenture, establish a Special Record Date for the payment of that interest which will be not
more than 15 nor fewer than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment, and (ii) the
Trustee will cause notice of the proposed payment and of the Special Record Date to be mailed
by first class mail, postage prepaid, to each Holder at its address as it appears on the Register not
fewer than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date and, thereafter, the interest will be payable
to the Persons who are the Holders of the Bonds at the close of business on the Special Record
Date.

The Bonds initially will be issued solely in book-entry-only form to DTC or its
nominee, Cede & Co., to be held in DTC’s book-entry-only system. So long as the Bonds are
held in the book-entry-only system, DTC or its nominee will be the registered owner or holder of
the Bonds for all purposes of the Indenture, the Bonds and this Official Statement. See “THE
BONDS — Book-Entry-Only System” below.

Owners may tender their Bonds, and in certain circumstances will be required to
tender their Bonds, to the Paying Agent for purchase at the times and in the manner described
below under “THE BONDS — Optional Tenders” and “THE BONDS — Mandatory Tenders.”

Remarketing Agreement. The Company will enter into a Remarketing Agreement
(the “Remarketing Agreement’) with the Underwriter with respect to the Bonds (together with
any successor as remarketing agent under the Indenture, the “Remarketing Agent”), which sets
forth the Remarketing Agent’s duties and responsibilities and provides for the remarketing of
Bonds bearing an interest rate other than an Auction Rate. For each Rate Period, the interest rate
for the Bonds will be determined by the Remarketing Agent in accordance with the Indenture;
provided that, the interest rate or rates borne by the Bonds may not exceed the least of (a) 13%
per annum, (b) the maximum rate of interest permitted under State law, or (c) in the case of
Bonds bearing interest at a Variable Rate, the maximum rate of interest permitted by any Credit
Facility then in effect (the “Maximum Interest Rate”). See also “THE INDENTURE -
Remarketing Agent.” The maximum rate of interest permitted by the Letter of Credit is 13% per
annum.




Summary of Certain Provisions of the Bonds

The following table summarizes, for each of the permitted Variable Rates: the dates
on which interest will be paid (Interest Payment Dates), provided that the initial Interest Payment
Date will be January 2, 2009; the dates on which each interest rate will be determined (Interest
Rate Determination Dates); the period of time (Rate Periods) each interest rate will be in effect
(provided that the initial Rate Period for each Variable Rate may begin on a different date from
that specified, which date will be the Conversion Date); the dates on which registered owners
may tender their Bonds for purchase to the Paying Agent and the notice requirements therefor
(Optional Tender on Demand of Owner; Notice of Tender); the dates on which Bonds are subject
to mandatory tender (Mandatory Tender for Purchase), provided that references to the Credit
Facility should be disregarded if a Credit Facility is not then in effect; the purchase price
applicable to the Bonds (Purchase Price); and the notice requirements for redemption and
mandatory purchase (Notices of Redemption and Mandatory Purchase). All times stated are
New York City time.

Interest Payment
Dates

Interest Rate
Determination Dates

Rate Periods

Optional Tender on
Demand of Owner;
Notice of Tender

Mandatory Tenders
for Purchase

Purchase Price

Notices of Redemption
and Mandatory
Purchase

DAILY RATE

The first Business Day of each calendar
month to which interest at such rate has
accrued.

Not later than 10:30 a.m. on each Business
Day.

From and including each Business Day to
but not including the next Business Day.

Any Business Day, upon telephonic
(promptly confirmed in writing) or
electronic notice to the Paying Agent by
11:00 a.m. on such Business Day.

Any Conversion Date; the date of delivery
of a Credit Facility; the Interest Payment
Date preceding the cancellation or
expiration of the Credit Facility; the
Interest Payment Date on which the Credit
Facility is replaced with an Alternate
Credit Facility.

100% of principal amount thereof plus
accrued interest, if any.

Not fewer than 30 days or greater than 90
days notice of redemption; not fewer than
15 days notice of mandatory purchase.

WEEKLY RATE

The first Business Day of cach calendar
month to which interest at such rate has
accrued.

Not later than 10:00 a.m. on the first day of
each Weekly Rate Period.

From and including cach Wednesday to
and including the following Tuesday.

Any Business Day; by written or electronic
notice to the Paying Agent at or before
5:00 p.m. on a Business Day at least seven
days prior to the purchase date.

Any Conversion Date; the date of delivery
of a Credit Facility; the Interest Payment
Date preceding the cancellation or
expiration of the Credit Facility; the
Interest Payment Date on which the Credit
Facility is replaced with an Alternate
Credit Facility.

100% of principal amount thereof plus
accrued interest, if any.

Not fewer than 30 days or greater than 90
days notice of redemption; not fewer than
15 days notice of mandatory purchase.



Interest Payment
Dates

Interest Rate
Determination Dates

Rate Periods

Optional Tender on
Demand of Owner;
Notice of Tender

Mandatory Tenders
for Purchase

Purchase Price

Notices of Redemption
and Mandatory
Purchase

COMMERCIAL PAPER RATE

The first Business Day following the last
day of each Commercial Paper Rate
Period applicable thereto.

Not later than 1:00 p.m. on the first day of
each Commercial Paper Rate Period.

From and including the conumencement
date of such Commercial Paper Rate
Period to and including the last day
thereof; provided that each such Period
will be from one day to 270 days in
length.

No optional tender on demand of owner.

Each Interest Payment Date applicable to
such Bond; any Conversion Date; the date
of delivery of a Credit Facility; the
Interest Payment Date preceding the
cancellation or expiration of the Credit
Facility; the Interest Payment Date on
which the Credit Facility is replaced with
an Alternate Credit Facility.

100% of principal amount thereof.

Not fewer than 30 days or greater than 90
days notice of redemption; not fewer than
15 days notice of mandatory purchase,
except that no notice will be given in
connection with a mandatory purchase on
the Interest Payment Date applicable to a
Bond bearing interest at the Commercial
Paper Rate.

TERM RATE

The first day of the sixth calendar month
following the month in which the Term Rate
Period begins and the first day of each sixth
calendar month thereafter, except that the
last Interest Payment Date for any Term
Rate Period which is followed by a
conversion to a Daily, Weekly or
Commercial Paper Rate Period (but not a
conversion to Term Rate Period of a
different duration) will be the first Business
Day of the sixth calendar month following
the month in which the immediately
preceding Interest Payment Date occurs.

Not later than 12:00 noon on the Business
Day immediately preceding the
commencement date of each Termm Rate
Period.

From and including the commencement date
of such Term Rate Period through and
including the last day thereof.

No optional tender on demand of owner.

On the Business Day immediately
succeeding the last day of each Term Rate
Period; any Conversion Date, including
from a Term Rate Period to a Term Rate
Period of a different duration; the date of
delivery of a Credit Facility; the Interest
Payment Date preceding the cancellation or
expiration of the Credit Facility; the Interest
Payment Date on which the Credit Facility
is replaced with an Alternate Credit Facility.

100% of the principal amount thereof
(except in connection with a conversion to a
Term Rate Period to the Maturity Date),
provided that Bonds bearing interest at a
Term Rate which are tendered on a day on
which those Bonds are subject to optional
redemption at a redemption price of more
than 100% of the principal amount will be
purchased at a price equal to that
redemption price.

Not fewer than 30 days or greater than 90
days notice of redemption; not fewer than
15 days notice of mandatory purchase,
except not fewer than 30 days notice in the
case of a conversion from a Term Rate
Period.



Interest Rate Determination Methods

Determination of [nterest Rates and Rate Periods (other than Auction Rate). Each
interest rate to be determined by the Remarketing Agent will be the lowest rate of interest which, in
the judgment of the Remarketing Agent, would cause the Bonds to have a market value on the
commencement date of such Rate Period equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, under prevailing market conditions as of the date of determination, except as
provided below in connection with a conversion to a Term Rate Period to the Maturity Date. In no
event will the Variable Rate be an interest rate in excess of the Maximum Interest Rate. All
determinations of Variable Rates, including Commercial Paper Rate Periods and Term Rate
Periods, pursuant to the Indenture will be conclusive and binding upon the Issuer, the Company, the
Trustee, the Paying Agent, the Credit Facility Issuer and the holders of the Bonds. The Variable
Rate in effect for Bonds during any Rate Period will be available to Holders on the date such
Variable Rate is determined, between 1:00 p.m. and 5:00 p.m., New York City time, from the
Remarketing Agent or the Trustee at their designated offices. Under the Indenture, the Bonds may
be in different Rate Periods at any one time and the provisions of the Indenture will separately apply
with respect to each portion of the Bonds; provided that each such portion is first assigned a CUSIP
number that is different from the CUSIP number assigned to any other portion.

During any transitional period for a conversion from the Commercial Paper Rate Period
to a Daily or Weekly Rate Period in which the Remarketing Agent is setting different Commercial
Paper Rate Periods in order to effect an orderly transition of such conversion, Bonds bearing interest
at the Commercial Paper Rate will be governed by the provisions of the Indenture applicable to
Commercial Paper Rate Periods and Commercial Paper Rates, and Bonds bearing interest at the
Daily Rate or Weekly Rate, as applicable, will be governed by the provisions of the Indenture
applicable to such Daily Rates and Daily Rate Periods or Weekly Rates and Weekly Rate Periods,
as the case may be.

In connection with a conversion to a Term Rate Period to the Maturity Date, the
Company may direct the Remarketing Agent to offer the Bonds at a market premium or a market
discount from par if the Company provides to the Remarketing Agent an Opinion of Bond
Counsel to the effect that such action is authorized under the Indenture and under the Act and
will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal
income tax purposes and, if the Company directs that the Bonds be offered at a market discount
from par and a Credit Facility is then in effect, also provides to the Remarketing Agent the
written consent of the Credit Facility Issuer to such action.

Daily Rate and Daily Rate Period. Daily Rate Periods will commence on a Business
Day and will extend to, but not include, the next succeeding Business Day. The Daily Rate for each
Daily Rate Period will be effective from and including the commencement date thereof and will
remain in effect during that Daily Rate Period. Each such Daily Rate will be determined by the
Remarketing Agent no later than 10:30 a.m., New York City time, on the Business Day which is the
commencement date of the Daily Rate Period to which it relates.




Weekly Rate and Weekly Rate Period Weekly Rate Periods will commence on
Wednesday of each week and end on Tuesday of the following week, except that (i) in the case of a
conversion to a Weekly Rate Period, the initial Weekly Rate Period for Bonds will commence on
the Conversion Date and end on Tuesday of the following week; and (ii) in the case of a conversion
from a Weekly Rate Period to a different Rate Period, the last Weekly Rate Period prior to
conversion will end on the last day immediately preceding the Conversion Date. The Weekly Rate
for each Weekly Rate Period will be effective from and including the commencement date of such
period and will remain in effect through and including the last day thereof. Each such Weekly Rate
will be determined by the Remarketing Agent no later than 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the
commencement date of the Weekly Rate Period to which it relates.

Commercial Paper Rate and Commercial Paper Rate Period. The Commercial Paper
Rate Period for each Bond will be determined separately by the Remarketing Agent on or prior to
the first day of such Commercial Paper Rate Period as being the Commercial Paper Rate Period
which, in the judgment of the Remarketing Agent, will, with respect to each Bond, ultimately
produce the lowest overall interest cost on the Bonds during the Commercial Paper Rate Period;
provided that each Commercial Paper Rate Period will be from one day to 270 days in length, will
begin on a Business Day and end on a day preceding a Business Day or the day preceding the
Maturity Date. The Commercial Paper Rate for each Commercial Paper Rate Period will be
effective from and including the commencement date of such period and remain in effect to and
including the last day thereof. Each such Commercial Paper Rate will be determined by the
Remarketing Agent no later than 1:00 p.nm., New York City time, on the first day of the Commercial
Paper Rate Period as the minimum rate of interest necessary, in the judgment of the Remarketing
Agent, to enable the Remarketing Agent to sell such Bond on that day at a price equal to the
principal amount thereof. If the Remarketing Agent has received notice of any conversion to a
Term Rate Period, the remaining number of days prior to the Conversion Date or, if the
Remarketing Agent has received notice of any conversion from a Commercial Paper Rate Period to
a Daily or Weekly Rate Period, the length of each Commercial Paper Rate Period for each Bond
will be determined by the Remarketing Agent to be either (i) that length of period that, as soon as
possible, will enable the Commercial Paper Rate Periods for all Bonds to end on the day before the
Conversion Date, or (ii) that length of period which, based on the Remarketing Agent’s judgment,
will best promote an orderly transition to the next Rate Period. 1f a Credit Facility is then in effect,
no Commercial Paper Rate Period may be established which is longer than a period equal to the
maximum number of days’ interest coverage provided by such Credit Facility minus 15 days or
which extends beyond the remaining term of such Credit Facility minus 15 days.

Term Rate and Term Rate Period. Term Rate Periods will commence either on a
Conversion Date (including a conversion from a Term Rate Period to a Term Rate Period of a
different duration) or, if then in a Term Rate Period, the commencement date of an immediately
successive Term Rate Period of the same duration and extend to but not include either the
commencement date of an immediately successive Term Rate Period (of whatever duration) or the
Conversion Date on which an ARS, Daily, Weekly or Commercial Paper Rate Period becomes
effective. The Term Rate for each Term Rate Period will be effective from and including the
commencement date of such period and remain in effect through and including the last day thereof.
Each such Term Rate will be determined by the Remarketing Agent not later than 12:00 noon, New
York City time, on the Business Day immediately preceding the commencement date of such




period. The duration of each successive Term Rate Period will be the same as the then current Term
Rate Period until the Company elects to convert the Term Rate Period to an ARS, Daily, Weekly or
Commercial Paper Rate Period, or to a Term Rate Period of a different duration, all as provided in
the Indenture.

Failure of Remarketing Agent to Set Rate. If the Remarketing Agent fails for any reason
to determine the rate for a Daily, Weekly, Commercial Paper or Term Rate Period, then the Bonds
will bear such interest at the last effective rate established for such Rate Period, except as otherwise
set forth in the Indenture, provided, however, that if any such Rate Period is a Term Rate Period,
then on the last Interest Payment Date of such Term Rate Period those Bonds will automatically
be converted to a Weekly Rate Period and bear interest at the Weekly Rate determined by the
Remarketing Agent as of that date, or, if in that instance the Remarketing Agent fails to
determine that rate, then at a rate of interest equal to 100% of the most recently published
SIFMA Municipal Swap Index, but in no event exceeding the Maximum Interest Rate.

Conversions

Conversions Between Rate Periods. At the option of the Company, the Bonds may be
converted from one Rate Period to another, including a conversion from one Term Rate Period to
another Term Rate Period of a different duration. The Conversion Date must be an Interest
Payment Date for the Rate Period from which the conversion is to be made; provided, however, that
(i) if the conversion is from a Term Rate Period to another Rate Period, including a Term Rate
Period of a different duration, the Conversion Date must be limited to any Interest Payment Date
upon which the Bonds are subject to optional redemption pursuant to the Indenture or the last
Interest Payment Date of that Term Rate Period, as the case may be; (ii) if the conversion is from a
Daily Rate Period to a Weekly Rate Period, or from a Weekly Rate Period to a Daily Rate Period,
the Conversion Date may be any Wednesday, regardless of whether the Wednesday is an Interest
Payment Date; (iii) if the conversion is from an ARS Rate Period, the Conversion Date must be the
Interest Payment Date following the final Auction Period; and (iv) if the conversion is from a
Commercial Paper Rate Period, the Conversion Date must be the last Interest Payment Date on
which interest is payable for all Bonds bearing Commercial Paper Rates theretofore established,;
provided, however, that if the conversion is from a Commercial Paper Rate Period to a Daily or
Weekly Rate Period, there may be more than one Conversion Date in accordance with the Indenture
and in that case the Conversion Date with respect to each Bond must be an Interest Payment Date
for such Bond.

Not fewer than 15 days prior to the Conversion Date in the case of conversions from
ARS, Daily, Weekly and Commercial Paper Rate Periods, and not fewer than 30 days prior to the
Conversion Date in the case of a conversion from a Term Rate Period, and not fewer than 30 days
prior to the last Business Day before the commencement of a new Term Rate Period, the Trustee
will mail by first class mail a written notice of the conversion or of the commencement of such new
Term Rate Period to each holder stating: (i) in the case of a conversion, the type of Rate Period to
which the conversion will be made and the Conversion Date, or, in the case of a conversion to the
ARS Rate Period, the ARS Conversion Date; (ii) that the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender
for purchase on the Conversion Date or on the Business Day immediately succeeding the last day of
a Term Rate Period, as the case may be, and the purchase price of the Bonds; (iii) in the case of a
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conversion to an ARS Rate Period, the length of the Initial Period, the first Auction Date, the first
Interest Payment Date following the ARS Conversion Date, the initial Auction Period, the Auction
Agent and the Broker-Dealer; and (iv) if the Bonds are no longer in book-entry form and are
therefore in certificated form, information with respect to required delivery of bond certificates and
payment of the purchase price pursuant to the Indenture.

Conditions Precedent to Conversions. Any conversion (i) from a Daily, Weekly or
Commercial Paper Rate Period to a Term Rate Period, (ii) from a Term Rate Period to a Daily,
Weekly or Commercial Paper Rate Period, (iii) to or from an ARS Rate Period, or (iv) to a Term
Rate Period from a Term Rate Period (on a date other than the date originally scheduled as the last
Interest Payment Date of the then current Term Rate Period) will be subject to the condition that on
or before the Conversion Date, the Company will have delivered to the Issuer, the Trustee, the
Auction Agent, the Broker-Dealer, the Paying Agent, the Credit Facility Issuer and the Remarketing
Agent an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the conversion is authorized under the
Indenture and the Act and will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on
the Bonds for federal income tax purposes.

Any Credit Facility to be held by the Trustee after the Conversion Date must be
sufficient to cover the principal of and accrued interest on the outstanding Bonds for the maximum
Interest Period permitted for that particular Rate Period plus 15 days, and, if a Credit Facility is to be
held by the Trustee after the conversion of the Bonds to a Term Rate Period, that Credit Facility
must also extend for the entire Term Rate Period plus 15 days. [fa Credit Facility is in effect and
the purchase price of the Bonds under the Indenture includes any premium, such conversion will be
subject to the condition that the Trustee will have confirmed prior to mailing notice to the holders of
such conversion that the Trustee is entitled to draw on that Credit Facility in an aggregate amount
sufficient to pay the applicable purchase price (including such premium).

No Bonds may be converted to an ARS Rate Period unless, on or before the ARS
Conversion Date, an Auction Agent has entered into an Auction Agreement and at least one Broker-
Dealer has entered into a Broker-Dealer Agreement, in each case pursuant to the Indenture.

Failure of Conversion. If for any reason a condition precedent to a conversion of the
Bonds (other than a conversion of the Bonds from an ARS Rate Period) is not met, the conversion
will not be effective (although any mandatory tender pursuant to the Indenture will be made on such
date if the notice required under the Indenture has been sent to holders stating that the Bonds would
be subject to mandatory purchase on that date), and the Bonds, except as otherwise provided and
subject to the conditions set forth in the Indenture, will automatically be converted to a Weekly
Rate Period and bear interest at the Weekly Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent as of the
date on which the conversion was to occur.

Optional Tenders

Purchase Price and Purchase Dates. The holders of Bonds bearing interest for a Daily
or Weekly Rate Period may elect to have their Bonds (or portions thereof in an Authorized
Denomination) purchased at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such Bonds
(or portions thereof), plus any interest accrued from the immediately preceding Interest Payment
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Date and unpaid. There is no optional tender right while the Bonds are in a Commercial Paper Rate,
Term Rate or ARS Rate Period.

Daily Rate. Bonds bearing interest at Daily Rates may be tendered for purchase at a
price payable in immediately available funds on any Business Day, upon telephonic or electronic
notice of tender given not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the purchase date to the
Paying Agent. Any telephonic notice must be promptly confirmed by the holder to the Paying
Agent in writing.

Weelly Rate. Bonds bearing interest at Weekly Rates may be tendered for purchase at a
price payable in immediately available funds on any Business Day, upon delivery of written or
electronic notice of tender to the Paying Agent not later than 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on a
Business Day not fewer than seven days prior to the purchase date.

Notice of Tender. When a book-entry-only system is in effect, a Beneficial Owner
through its Direct Participant of that book-entry-only system may tender its interest in a Bond (or
portion of Bond) by delivering notice, in the manner and by the time set forth above, to the Paying
Agent stating the principal amount of the Bond (or portion of Bond being tendered), payment
instructions for the purchase price and the purchase date. The Beneficial Owner will effect delivery
of such Bonds by causing such Direct Participant to transfer its interest in the Bonds equal to such
Beneficial Owner’s interest on the records of DTC to the participant account of the Paying Agent
with DTC. When a book-entry-only system is not in effect, a holder of a Bond may tender the Bond
(or portion of Bond) by delivering a notice, in the manner and by the time set forth above, to the
Paying Agent which states (A) the principal amount of the Bond or Bonds to which the notice
relates, (B) that the holder irrevocably demands purchase of such Bond or Bonds or a specified
portion thereof in an amount equal to the lowest denomination then authorized or an integral
multiple of such lowest denomination, (C) the date on which such Bond or portion is to be
purchased, and (D) payment instructions with respect to the purchase price.

Mandatory Tenders

Commercial Paper Rate Periods. Each Bond bearing interest at a Commercial Paper
Rate will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase, on the Interest Payment Date applicable to
such Bond, at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof.

Conversion Dates. On any Conversion Date, the Bonds will be subject to mandatory
tender for purchase on such Conversion Date at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the Conversion Date, or, in the case of
Bonds bearing interest at a Term Rate which are tendered on a day on which those Bonds are
subject to optional redemption at a redemption price of more than 100% of the principal amount
redeemed, at a purchase price equal to that redemption price; provided, however, that in the event
that the conditions of a conversion from an ARS Rate Period are not satisfied, including the
failure to remarket all such Bonds on the Conversion Date, the Bonds will not be subject to
mandatory tender for purchase on that Conversion Date, will be returned to the holders, will
automatically convert to a seven-day Auction Period and will bear interest at the Maximum Rate.
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Term Rate Periods. On the Business Day immediately succeeding the last day of each
Term Rate Period, the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on such date at a
purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof.

Upon _Cancellation or Expiration of Credit Facility or Replacement with Alternate
Credit Facility. When the Bonds are secured by a Credit Facility, the Bonds will be subject to
mandatory tender for purchase at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof,
(i) on the Interest Payment Date at least five days prior to the date of the cancellation of or the
expiration of the term of the then current Credit Facility and (ii) on the Interest Payment Date on
which a Credit Facility is replaced with an Alternate Credit Facility pursuant to the Indenture. If
the then current Credit Facility is being cancelled or terminated prior to its stated expiration date,
the provisions of the Indenture relating to termination of Credit Facilities must also be met. In
any event, the purchase price will be equal to the optional redemption price for that Interest
Payment Date.

Notices of Mandatory Tenders. Not fewer than 15 days prior to the Conversion Date in
the case of conversions from ARS, Daily, Weekly and Commercial Paper Rate Periods or the initial
delivery date of a Credit Facility, and not fewer than 30 days prior to the Conversion Date in the
case of a conversion from a Term Rate Period and not fewer than 30 days prior to the last Business
Day before the commencement of a new Term Rate Period, the Trustee will mail by first class mail
a written notice to each holder, setting forth those matters required by the Indenture, including a
statement that the Bonds will be subject to mandatory purchase on the Conversion Date or on the
Business Day immediately succeeding the last day of the current Term Rate Period. No notice will
be given in connection with the mandatory purchase of a Bond bearing interest at a Commercial
Paper Rate on an Interest Payment Date applicable to such Bond.

Remarketing and Purchase of Tendered Bonds

The Indenture provides that, unless otherwise instructed by the Company, the
Remarketing Agent will offer for sale and use its best efforts to find purchasers for all Bonds or
portions thereof for which notice of tender has been received or which are subject to mandatory
tender for purchase. The Remarketing Agent will not sell any Bond as to which a notice of either
conversion from one type of Rate Period to another or redemption has been given by the Trustee,
unless the Remarketing Agent has advised the person to whom the sale is made of the conversion or
redemption. There will be no purchase of Bonds if an acceleration has been declared under the
Indenture due to any Event of Default described under “THE INDENTURE - Events of Default,”
and there will be no remarketing of Bonds if there has occurred and is continuing an Event of
Default or a Default under the Indenture, except in the sole discretion of the Remarketing Agent.

The purchase price of Bonds tendered for purchase will be paid by the Paying Agent
from the following funds in the priority indicated: (i) proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds by
the Remarketing Agent to persons other than the Company, its affiliates or the Issuer, (ii) proceeds
of the Credit Facility, if any, (iii) proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds by the Remarketing
Agent to the Company, if any, and (iv) proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds by the
Remarketing Agent to an Affiliate of the Company or the Issuer, if any. In the event that funds are
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not received under the terms of the Credit Facility or the Credit Facility is repudiated, the Trustee
may request that such funds be inunediately remitted to the Trustee by the Company.

Payment of Purchase Price

When a book-entry-only system is in effect, the requirement for physical delivery of the
Bonds will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are transferred by Direct
Participants on the records of DTC to the participant account of the Paying Agent.

When a book-entry-only system is not in effect, all Bonds to be purchased on any date
must be delivered to the Principal Office of the Paying Agent at or before (i) 12:00 noon, New York
City time, on the purchase date in the case of Bonds accruing interest at Auction or Weekly Rates;
(ii) 1:00 p.m., New York City time, on the purchase date in the case of Bonds bearing interest at
Daily or Commercial Paper Rates; or (iii) 3:00 p.m., New York City time, on the purchase date in
the case of Bonds bearing interest at a Term Rate. If the holder of any Bond (or portion thereof)
that is subject to purchase fails to deliver such Bond to the Paying Agent for purchase on the
purchase date, and if the Paying Agent is in receipt of the purchase price, the Bond will be
purchased on the day fixed for purchase and ownership of such Bond (or portion thereof) will be
transferred to the purchaser. If on the purchase date the Paying Agent is in receipt of the purchase
price for all Bonds to be purchased on that purchase date, the holder of any such Bond will have no
further rights thereunder except the right to receive the purchase price thereof and, if the purchase
date coincides with an Interest Payment Date and if such holder was the holder of the Bond on the
Regular Record Date pertaining to the Interest Payment Date, such rights as the holder may have to
interest accrued to and unpaid on such Interest Payment Date.

Redemption

Optional Redemption. The Bonds will be subject to optional redemption by the Issuer
at the direction of the Company, in whole or in part, as follows:

()  During any Daily or Weekly Rate Period, on any Interest Payment Date, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the redemption date.

(i1) During any Commercial Paper Rate Period for a Bond, on the Interest Payment
Date for that Bond, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date.

(iii) During a Term Rate Period, on any date which occurs on or after the first day of
the optional redemption period, and at the redemption prices, expressed as a percentage of the
principal amount being redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date,
as follows:

14



Length of Term
Rate Period

More than 15 years

Maore than 10, but not
more than 15 years

More than 3, but not
more than 10 years

5 years or less

If at the time of the Company’s notice to the Trustee of a conversion to a Term Rate
Period (including a conversion from a Term Rate Period to a Term Rate Period of a different
duration), the Company satisfies certain conditions, including provision of an Opinion of Bond
Counsel that a change in the redemption provisions of the Bonds will not adversely affect the
exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes, the
redemption periods and redemption prices may be revised, effective as of the date of such

conversion.

Extraordinary Optional Redemption During a Term Rate Period. During a Term Rate

First Day of Optional
Redemption Period

Tenth anniversary of
commencement of Term
Rate Period

Eighth anniversary of
commencement of Term
Rate Period

Fifth anniversary of
commencement of Term

Rate Period

Non-callable

Redemption Price

100%

100%

100%

Non-callable

Period, the Bonds are subject to redemption by the Issuer at a redemption price of 100% of the
principal amount redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date in whole or in

part upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) The Project Facilities or the Generating Station is
damaged or destroyed to such an extent that (1) the Project
Facilities or the Generating Station cannot reasonably be expected
to be restored, within a period of six consecutive months, to the
condition thereof immediately preceding such damage or
destruction or (2) the Company is reasonably expected to be
prevented from carrying on its normal use and operation of the
Project Facilities or the Generating Station for a period of six
consecutive months.

(b) Title to, or the temporary use of, all or a significant
part of the Project Facilities or the Generating Station is taken
under the exercise of the power of eminent domain to such extent
that (1) the Project Facilities or the (Generating Station cannot
reasonably be expected to be restored within a period of six
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consecutive months to a condition of usefulness comparable to that
existing prior to the taking or (2) the Company is reasonably
expected to be prevented from carrying on its normal use and
operation of the Project Facilities or the Generating Station for a
period of six consecutive months.

(c) As a result of any changes in the Constitution of the
State, the Constitution of the United States of America or any state
or federal laws or as a result of legislative or administrative action
(whether state or federal) or by final decree, judgment or order of
any court or administrative body (whether state or federal) entered
after any contest thereof by the Issuer or the Company in good
faith, the Loan Agreement becomes void or unenforceable or
impossible of performance in accordance with the intent and
purpose of the parties as expressed in the Loan Agreement.

(d) Unreasonable burdens or excessive liabilities are
imposed upon the Issuer or the Company with respect to the
Project Facilities or the Generating Station or the operation thereof,
including, without limitation, the imposition of federal, state or
other ad valorem, property, income or other taxes other than ad
valorem taxes at the rates presently levied upon privately owned
property used for the same general purpose as the Project Facilities
or the Generating Station.

(e) Changes in the economic availability of raw
materials, operating supplies, energy sources or supplies or
facilities (including, but not limited to, facilities in connection with
the disposal of industrial wastes) necessary for the operation of the
Project Facilities or the Generating Station for the Project Purposes
occur or technological or other changes occur which the Company
cannot reasonably overcome or control and which in the
Company’s reasonable judgment render the Project Facilities or the
Generating Station uneconomic or obsolete for the Project
Purposes.

3] Any court or administrative body enters a judgment,
order or decree, or takes administrative action, requiring the
Company to cease all or any substantial part of its operations
served by the Project Facilities or the Generating Station to such
extent that the Company is or will be prevented from carrying on
its normal operations at the Project Facilities or the Generating
Station for a period of six consecutive months.

(g) The termination by the Company of operations at
the Generating Station.
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Mandatory Redemption Upon a Determination of Taxability. The Bonds are subject to
mandatory redemption by the Issuer at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof,
plus interest accrued to the redemption date, at the earliest practicable date selected by the Trustee,
after consultation with the Company, but in no event later than 180 days following the receipt by the
Trustee of notification of a Determination of Taxability, as defined below. Such redemption will be
either in whole or, if in the Opinion of Bond Counsel the Determination of Taxability will not apply
to Bonds remaining outstanding after such redemption, in part.

A “Determination of Taxability” means written notice from the Company of the
occurrence of a final decision, ruling or technical advice by any federal judicial or administrative
anthority to the effect that, as a result of a failure by the Company to observe or perform any
covenant, agreement or obligation on its part to be observed or performed under the Loan
Agreement or the inaccuracy of any representation made by the Company in the Loan Agreement,
interest on any Bond is or was includable in the gross income of the owner of that Bond for federal
income tax purposes, other than an owner who is a “substantial user” of the Project or a “related
person” as those terms are used in Section 147(a) of the Code; provided that, no decision by any
court or decision, ruling or technical advice by any administrative authority will be considered final
(a) unless the beneficial owner involved in the proceeding or action giving rise to such decision,
ruling or technical advice (i) gives the Company and the Trustee prompt notice of the
commencement thereof, together with evidence satisfactory to the Company and the Trustee that
such party is the beneficial owner and (ii) offers the Company the opportunity to control the contest
thereof, provided that the Company has agreed to bear all expenses in connection therewith and to
indemnify the beneficial owner against all liabilities in connection therewith, and (b) until the
expiration of all periods for judicial review or appeal. A Determination of Taxability will not result
from the inclusion of interest on any Bond in the computation of the alternative minimum tax
imposed by Section 55 of the Code, the branch profits tax on foreign corporations imposed by
Section 884 of the Code or the tax imposed on net excess passive income of certain S corporations
under Section 1375 of the Code.

If the Indenture has been released in accordance with its terms prior to the occurrence of
a Determination of Taxability, the Bonds will not be subject to mandatory redemption.

Partial Redemption. If fewer than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the selection
of Bonds to be redeemed, or portions thereof in amounts equal to the lowest Authorized
Denomination, will be made by lot by the Trustee in any manner which the Trustee may
determine; provided, however, that in connection with any such redemption, the Trustee will first
select for redemption any Pledged Bonds. In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot
when Bonds of denominations greater than the lowest Authorized Denomination are then
outstanding, each unit of face value of principal thereof equal to the lowest Authorized
Denomination will be treated as though it were a separate Bond of such lowest Authorized
Denomination. If it is determined that one or more, but not all of the units of face value
represented by a Bond are to be called for redemption, then upon notice of redemption of a unit
or units, the holder of that Bond will surrender the Bond to the Trustee (a) for payment of the
redemption price of the unit or units of face value called for redemption (including without
limitation, the interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption and any premium), and (b) for
issuance, without charge to the holder thereof, of a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized
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Denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unmatured and unredeemed portion
of the Bond surrendered.

Notice of Redemption. The Trustee will give notice of the redemption on behalf of the
Issuer by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, at least 30
days but not more than 90 days prior to the redemption date, to the owner of each Bond subject to
redemption in whole or in part and to the Auction Agent. Failure to receive any such notice, or any
defect therein in respect of any Bond, will not affect the validity of the redemption of any Bond. If
at the time of mailing of the notice of redemption there has not been deposited with the Trustee
moneys sufficient to redeem all Bonds called for redemption, if the Company so directs, such notice
may state that it is conditional, subject to the deposit of moneys sufficient for the redemption with
the Trustee not later than the redemption date and such notice will be of no effect unless such
moneys are so deposited. If either (A) unconditional notice of redemption was mailed or (B)
conditional notice was mailed and the moneys sufficient to redeem all Bonds on the redemption
date have been deposited with the Trustee, then in either event, the Bonds and portions thereof
called for redemption will become due and payable on the redemption date, and upon presentation
and surrender thereof at the place or places specified in that notice, will be paid at the redemption
price, plus interest accrued to the redemption date.

So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, all
notices of redemption will be sent only to Cede & Co., and delivery of notice of redemption to the
Direct Participants, if any, will be solely the responsibility of DTC.

Special Considerations Relating to the Remarketing of the Bonds

The Remarketing Agent is Paid by the Company. The Remarketing Agent’s
responsibilities include determining the interest rate from time to time and remarketing the
Bonds that are optionally or mandatorily tendered by the owners thereof (subject, in each case, to
the terms of the Indenture and the Remarketing Agreement), as further described in this Official
Statement. The Remarketing Agent is appointed by the Company and is paid by the Company
for its services. As a result, the interests of the Remarketing Agent may differ from those of
existing Bondholders and potential purchasers of the Bonds.

The Remarketing Agent Routinely Purchases Bonds for its Own Account. The
Remarketing Agent acts as remarketing agent for a variety of variable rate demand obligations
and, in its sole discretion, routinely purchases such obligations for its own account. The
Remarketing Agent is penmitted, but not obligated, to purchase tendered Bonds for its own
account and, in its sole discretion, may routinely acquire such tendered Bonds in order to achieve
a successful remarketing of the Bonds (i.e., because there otherwise are not enough buyers to
purchase the Bonds) or for other reasons. However, the Remarketing Agent is not obligated to
purchase Bonds, and may cease doing so at any time without notice. The Remarketing Agent
may also make a market in the Bonds by routinely purchasing and selling Bonds other than in
connection with an optional or mandatory tender and remarketing. Such purchases and sales
may be at or below par. However, the Remarketing Agent is not required to make a market in
the Bonds. The Remarketing Agent may also sell any Bonds it has purchased to one or more
affiliated investment vehicles for collective ownership or enter into derivative arrangements with
affiliates or others in order to reduce its exposure to the Bonds. The purchase of Bonds by the
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Remarketing Agent may create the appearance that there is greater third party demand for the
Bonds in the market than is actually the case. The practices described above also may result in
fewer Bonds being tendered in a remarketing.

Bonds May be Offered at Different Prices on Any Date Including the Date that
the Interest Rate is Determined. Pursuant to the Indenture and the Remarketing Agreement,
the Remarketing Agent is required to determine the applicable rate of interest that, in its
judgment, is the lowest rate that would permit the sale of the Bonds bearing interest at the
applicable interest rate at par plus accrued interest, if any, on and as of the applicable interest rate
determination date. The interest rate will reflect, among other factors, the level of market
demand for the Bonds (including whether the Remarketing Agent is willing to purchase Bonds
for its own account). There may or may not be Bonds tendered and remarketed on an interest rate
determination date, the Remarketing Agent may or may not be able to remarket any Bonds
tendered for purchase on such date at par and the Remarketing Agent may sell Bonds at varying
prices to different investors on such date or any other date. The Remarketing Agent is not
obligated to advise purchasers in a remarketing if it does not have third party buyers for all of the
Bonds at the remarketing price. The Remarketing Agent, in its sole discretion, may offer Bonds
on any date, including the interest rate determination date, at a discount to par to some investors.

The Ability to Sell the Bonds other than through the Tender Process May Be
Limited. The Remarketing Agent may buy and sell Bonds other than through the tender
process. However, it is not obligated to do so and may cease doing so at any time without notice
and may require Holders that wish to tender their Bonds to do so through the Tender Agent with
appropriate notice. Thus, investors who purchase the Bonds, whether in a remarketing or
otherwise, should not assume that they will be able to sell their Bonds other than by tendering the
Bonds in accordance with the tender process.

Under Certain Circumstances, the Remarketing Agent May be Removed, Resign
or Cease Remarketing the Bonds, Without a Successor Being Named. Under certain
circumstances, the Remarketing Agent may be removed or have the ability to resign or cease its
remarketing efforts, without a successor having been named, subject to the terms of the
Remarketing Agreement. In the event that there is no Remarketing Agent, the Trustee may
assume such duties as described in the Indenture.

Book-Entry-Only System

Portions of the following information concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry-only
system have been obtained from DTC. The Issuer, the Company, Bond Counsel and the
Underwriter make no representation as to the accuracy of such information.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities
depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the
name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each
maturity of the Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited
with DTC.
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DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company
organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the
New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation”
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency”
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity
issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100
countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities
transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement
of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers
and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC™").
DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed
Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by
the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such
as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant,
either directly or indirectly ( “Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating:
AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest
of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner’) is in turn to be recorded on the
Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation
from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the
transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made
on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial
Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in
the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with
DTC are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name
as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Bonds with DTC
and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any
change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the
Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to
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Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of the Bonds
may wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant events
with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to
the security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that
the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to
Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and
addresses to the registrar and request that copies of the notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue
are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each
Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice
is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail
information from the Issuer or Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective
holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be
governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for
the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC nor its nominee, the Paying Agent, the Issuer or
the Company, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time. Payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Issuer or
Paying Agent, disbursement or such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of
DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.

A Beneficial Owner may give notice to elect to have its Bonds purchased or tendered,
through its Participant, to the Paying Agent, and will effect delivery of such Bonds by causing the
Direct Participant to transfer the Participant’s interest in the Bonds on DTC’s records to the
Paying Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of Bonds in connection with a demand for
purchase or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the
Bonds are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at
any time by giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in
the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed
and delivered.
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The Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and
delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has
been obtained from sources that the Issuer believes to be reliable, but the Issuer takes no
responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of any of the
Bonds, the Beneficial Owners of such Bonds will not receive or have the right to receive physical
delivery of the Bonds, and references herein to the registered owners of such Bonds will mean
Cede & Co. and will not mean the Beneficial Owners of such Bonds.

THE ISSUER, THE COMPANY, THE PAYING AGENT, THE REGISTRAR, THE
UNDERWRITER, THE REMARKETING AGENT AND THE TRUSTEE CANNOT AND DO
NOT GIVE ANY ASSURANCES THAT THE DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS WILL DISTRIBUTE TO THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS (1)
PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, ON THE
BONDS, (2) CERTIFICATES REPRESENTING AN OWNERSHIP INTEREST OR OTHER
CONFIRMATION OF BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN THE BONDS, OR (3)
NOTICES OF REDEMPTION OR OTHER NOTICES SENT TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE,
CEDE & CO., AS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, OR THAT THEY WILL
DO SO ON A TIMELY BASIS OR THAT DTC, DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS WILL SERVE AND ACT IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT. THE CURRENT “RULES” APPLICABLE TO DTC ARE ON
FILE WITH THE SEC, AND THE CURRENT “PROCEDURES” OF DTC TO BE
FOLLOWED IN DEALING WITH PARTICIPANTS MAY BE OBTAINED FROM DTC.

THE ISSUER, THE COMPANY, THE PAYING AGENT, THE REGISTRAR, THE
UNDERWRITER, THE REMARKETING AGENT AND THE TRUSTEE WILL NOT HAVE
ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR
INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT WITH RESPECT
TO: (1) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY SUCH
DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT,; (2) THE PAYMENT BY ANY
PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT DUE TO THE BENEFICIAL OWNER IN RESPECT OF
THE PRINCIPAL OR REDEMPTION PRICE OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS; (3) THE
DELIVERY BY ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY
NOTICE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER THAT IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER
THE TERMS OF THE INDENTURE TO BE GIVEN TO BONDHOLDERS; (4) THE
SELECTION OF THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT
OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS; OR (5) ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR
OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS BONDHOLDER.

The book-entry-only system for registration of the ownership of the Bonds may be
discontinued at any time if: (i) DTC determines to resign as securities depository for the Bonds;
or (ii) the Company determines (and notifies the Issuer in writing of its determination and the
Issuer provides 30 days’ notice of such discontinuation to the Trustee and DTC) to discontinue
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the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or through a successor securities depository).
Upon occurrence of either such event, the Issuer may, at the request of the Company, attempt to
establish a securities depository book-entry relationship with another securities depository. If the
Issuer does not do so, or is unable to do so, and after the Issuer has notified DTC and upon
surrender to the Trustee of the Bonds held by DTC, the Issuer will issue and the Trustee will
authenticate and deliver the Bonds in registered certificate form in authorized denominations, at
the expense of the Company, to such Persons, and in such maturities and principal amounts, as
may be designated by DTC, but without any liability on the part of the Issuer, the Company or
the Trustee for the accuracy of such designation. In any such event (unless the Issuer appoints a
successor securities depository), the Bonds will be delivered in registered certificate form to such
persons, and in such maturities and principal amounts, as may be designated by DTC, but
without any liability on the part of the Issuer or the Trustee for the accuracy of such designation.
Whenever DTC requests the Issuer or the Trustee to do so, the Issuer or the Trustee will
cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to arrange for another
securities depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Bonds.

Revision of Book-Entry-Only System; Replacement Bonds

The Issuer, pursuant to a request by the Company and the Remarketing Agent, if any,
for the removal or replacement of the Depository or the discontinuance of the book-entry-only
system for the Bonds, and upon 30 days’ notice to the Depository and the Trustee, will agree to
remove or replace the Depository or discontinue the book-entry-only system for the Bonds.

In the event that the book-entry-only system is discontinued, the following provisions
will apply. The Bonds may be issued in Authorized Denominations. Bonds may be transferred
or exchanged in Authorized Denominations upon surrender of such Bonds at the principal office
of the Trustee, accompanied by an assignment satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the
Owner or the Owner’s duly authorized attorney-in-fact. Neither the Issuer nor the Trustee will
be required to make any such transfer or exchange of any Bond during the period beginning at
the opening of business 15 days immediately preceding the mailing of a notice of Bonds selected
for redemption and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing, or, with respect to
a Bond, after such Bond or any portion thereof has been selected for redemption. The Issuer or
the Trustee may make a charge to the Owner for every transfer or exchange of a Bond sufficient
to reimburse it for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such
transfer or exchange, and may demand that such charge be paid before any new Bond is
delivered.

THE LETTER OF CREDIT

The following summarizes certain provisions of the Letter of Credit and the Credit
Agreement, to which reference is made for the detailed provisions thereof. Unless otherwise
defined in this Official Statement, capitalized terms in the following summary are used as defined
in the Letter of Credit and the Credit Agreement.
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General

The mitial Letter of Credit will be an irrevocable obligation of the Bank, issued in an
amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, plus at least 48 days’ interest
thereon at the rate of 13% per annum (the “Cap Interest Rate”). Unless extended, the Letter of
Credit will expire or terminate on the earliest to occur of the following dates (which earliest date
is the “Termination Date”). (i) on the close of business on September 12, 2011, (ii) the date
specified in a written notice from the Trustee provided in accordance with the Letter of Credit
stating that the principal and interest on the Bonds have been paid in full or that all drawings
required to be made under the Indenture and available under the Letter of Credit have been made
and honored, (iii) the date specified in a written notice from the Trustee provided in accordance
with the Letter of Credit stating that the interest rate on the Bonds has been adjusted to (a) an
Auction Rate, or (b) a Term Rate or (¢) a Commercial Paper Rate (all as defined in the
Indenture), (iv) the date on which the Bank honors a drawing made to pay the principal and
interest of the Bonds, other than the Pledged Bonds, at stated maturity, upon acceleration
following an Event of Default (as defined in the Credit Agreement) that has resulted in the
acceleration of obligations, and/or a termination of the Commitment, or upon redemption as a
whole, or upon the mandatory tender as a whole, of the total unpaid principal of all of the Bonds
which are presently outstanding, (v) the date specified in a written notice from the Bank to the
Trustee provided in accordance with the Letter of Credit (which notice to be effective must be
received by the Trustee at least fifteen calendar days before the date so specified) directing the
Trustee to accelerate the Bonds as a result of the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in
the Credit Agreement) that has resulted in the acceleration of obligations, and/or a termination of the
Commitment under the Credit Agreement, and (vi) the date specified in a written notice from the
Trustee provided in accordance with the Letter of Credit stating that the Letter of Credit is being
surrendered for cancellation following acceptance by the Trustee of an Alternate Credit Facility
(as defined in the Indenture).

Under the Indenture, an Event of Default will occur if the Trustee receives written
notice from the Bank, on or before the close of business on the fourth Business Day following a
drawing under the Letter of Credit to pay interest on the Bonds on an Interest Payment Date, that
the interest component of the Letter of Credit will not be reinstated. See “THE INDENTURE —
Events of Default.”

Credit Agreement

The Bank will issue the Letter of Credit and certain other letters of credit in
accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement. Certain affiliates (each an “Affiliate”) of the
Company also are parties to the Credit Agreement. Additional letters of credit also may be
issued by the Bank under the Credit Agreement for the benefit of the Company and/or an
Affiliate. The Company has no obligation or liability with respect to any letter of credit issued
for the benefit of an Affiliate and the Affiliates have no obligation or liability with respect to the
Letter of Credit or any other letter of credit issued for the benefit of the Company. Under the
Credit Agreement, the Company has agreed to certain affirmative and restrictive covenants and
to pay certain fees and expenses to the Bank.
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The following will be Events of Default as to the Company under the Credit
Agreement (defined terms below are used as defined in the Credit Agreement):

(a) the Company fails to pay when due any principal of any Reimbursement
Obligation owed by it or fails to pay, within five days of the due date thereof, any interest, fees
or any other amount payable by it under the Credit Agreement;

(b) the Company fails to observe or perform certain covenants in the Credit
Agreement relating to maintenance of existence; negative pledge; consolidations, mergers and
sale of assets; use of proceeds; or indebtedness/capitalization ratio;

(c) the Company fails to observe or perform any covenant of agreement contained in
the Credit Agreement (other than those covered by clauses (a) or (b) above) for 30 days after
notice thereof has been given to the Company by the Administrative Agent at the request of any
Bank;

(d) any representation, warranty, certification or statement made by the Company in
the Credit Agreement or in any certificate, financial statement or other document delivered
pursuant to the Credit Agreement proves to have been incorrect in any material respect when
made (or deemed made);

(e) the Company or any of its Material Subsidiaries fails to make any payment in
respect of Material Debt (other than Reimbursement Obligations of the Company under the
Credit Agreement) when due or within any applicable grace period,;

(f) any event or condition occurs and continues beyond the applicable grace or cure
period, if any, provided with respect thereto so as to result in the acceleration of the maturity of
Material Debt;

(g) Certain voluntary or involuntary events of bankruptcy, insolvency or
reorganization with respect to the Company or any of its Material Subsidiaries occur;

(h) Certain events with respect to the Company’s ERISA Group occur under ERISA;

(i) A judgment or other order for the payment of money in excess of $50,000,000 is
rendered against the Company or any of its Material Subsidiaries and such judgment or order
continues without being vacated, discharged, satisfied or stayed or bonded pending appeal for a
period of 45 days; or

(j) Any person or group of persons (with certain exceptions for trustees or
participants in employee benefit plans) acquires beneficial ownership (within the meaning of the
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission) of 50% or more of the outstanding shares of
common stock of Duke Energy Corporation (“Duke Energy™), the Company’s ultimate parent;
during any period of twelve consecutive months, individuals who were directors of Duke Energy
on the first day of such period (together with any successors nominated or appointed by such
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directors in the ordinary course) cease to constitute a majority of the board of directors of Duke
Energy; or in the case of the Company, the Company ceases to be a Subsidiary of Duke Energy;

If an Event of Default on the part of the Company under the Credit Agreement occurs
and is continuing, the Administrative Agent may, among other remedial actions, upon request of
the requisite number of participating lenders, (i) direct the Company to deposit with the
Administrative Agent an amount equal to the aggregate amount then available for drawing under
all letters of credit for the account of the Company then outstanding at such time, (ii) terminate
all Commitments to the Company and (iii) declare all Reimbursement Obligations of the
Company under the Credit Agreement immediately due and payable. Under the Indenture, the
Bank may (i) give written notice to the Trustee that the interest component of the Credit Facility
will not be reinstated, and/or (ii) give notice of an acceleration or termination arising from an
Event of Default under the Credit Agreement and instruct the Trustee to accelerate the Bonds.
The Indenture directs the Trustee, upon receipt of the notice from the Bank described in clause
(ii) of the preceding sentence, to immediately accelerate the Bonds and to make the required
drawing under the Letter of Credit prior to the third business day following receipt of such
notice.

A Default or Event of Default by another Affiliate of the Company under any of its
obligations under the Credit Agreement will not be a Default or Event of Default as to the
Company. However, if the Bank issues an additional letter of credit for the benefit of the
Company under the Credit Agreement, an Event of Default with respect to such other letter of
credit could result in an Event of Default with respect to the Letter of Credit.

THE LOAN AGREEMENT

The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Loan Agreement and does
not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. Reference is made to the Loan Agreement for the
detailed provisions thereof.

Loan of Proceeds

The Issuer will loan the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds to the Company, in
accordance with the Loan Agreement and the Indenture, to pay a portion of the costs of redeeming
the Refunded Bonds.

Application of Proceeds

Net proceeds of the Bonds will be deposited into the Refunding Fund and, together with
all investment earnings thereon, will be transferred to the trustee for the Refunded Bonds to redeem
the Refunded Bonds on a date not later than 90 days after the date of issuance of the Bonds.

Loan Payments

The Company is obligated to make Loan Payments under the Loan Agreement which
correspond, as to time, and are equal in amount, to the amount then payable as principal of and
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds. All payments under the Looan Agreement related to the
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Loan will be assigned to the Trustee, and the Company will make such payments directly to the
Trustee for the account of the Issuer and for deposit in the Bond Fund created under the Indenture.

Obligation to Purchase Bonds

The Company will agree to pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee or the Paying Agent,
on or before each day on which Bonds may be or are required to be tendered for purchase, amounts
equal to the amounts to be paid by the Trustee or the Paying Agent with respect to the Bonds
tendered for purchase on such dates pursuant to the Indenture; provided, however, that the
obligation of the Company to make any such payment will be reduced by the amount of (A) moneys
paid by the Remarketing Agent as proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds by the Remarketing
Agent, (B) moneys drawn under a Credit Facility, if any, for the purpose of paying such purchase
price and (C) other moneys made available by the Company.

Term of Loan Agreement

The Loan Agreement will remain in full force and effect until such time as (i) ali of the
Bonds are fully paid (or provision has been made for such payment) pursuant to the Indenture and
the Indenture has been released pursuant to the terms thereof and (ii) all other sums payable by the
Company under the Loan Agreement have been paid.

Maintenance and Modification

During the term of the Loan Agreement, the Company will use its best efforts to keep
and maintain the Project Facilities in good repair and good operating condition so that the Project
Facilities will continue to constitute Pollution Control Facilities (as defined in the Loan Agreement)
for the purposes of the operation thereof.

Subject to certain conditions, the Company has the right, from time to time, to remodel
the Project Facilities or make additions, modifications and improvements thereto, the cost of which
must be paid by the Company. The Company also has the right, subject to certain conditions, to
substitute or remove any portion of the Project Facilities.

Maintenance of Corporate Existence

The Company agrees that during the term of the Loan Agreement, it will maintain its
existence, will not dissolve or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets and will
not consolidate with or merge into another corporation or other entity or permit one or more
other corporations or other entities to consolidate with or merge into it; provided that the
Company may, without violating its agreement contained in the Loan Agreement, consolidate
with or merge into another corporation or other entity, or permit one or more other entities to
consolidate with or merge into it, or sell or otherwise transfer to another entity all or substantially
all of its assets as an entirety and thereafter dissolve, provided the surviving, resulting or
transferee entity, as the case may be (if other than the Company), is a corporation or other entity
organized and existing under the laws of one of the states of the United States, and assumes in
writing all of the obligations of the Company in the Loan Agreement, and, if not organized under
the laws of Kentucky, is qualified to do business in the State.
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Tax Covenant

The Company will covenant and represent in the Loan Agreement that it has taken and
caused to be taken and will take and cause to be taken all actions that may be required of it for the
interest on the Bonds to be and remain excluded from the gross income of the owners thereof for
federal income tax purposes, and that it has not taken or permitted to be taken on its behalf, and it
will not take or permit to be taken on its behalf, any action which, if taken, would adversely affect
that exclusion under the provisions of the Code.

Assignment by Company

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Loan Agreement, the Loan Agreement may
be assigned in whole or in part by the Company and the Project may be sold or conveyed by the
Company without the necessity of obtaining the consent of either the Issuer or the Trustee and after
providing written notice to the Issuer but, subject, however, to each of the following conditions:

(a) the Company must provide the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent with
an Opinion of Bond Counsel that such action will not affect the exclusion of interest on
the Bonds for federal income tax purposes;

b) the Company must, within 30 days after the execution thereof, furnish or
cause to be furnished to the Issuer and the Trustee a true and complete copy of each such
assignment together with any instrument of assumption; and

(c) Any assignment from the Company may not materially impair fulfillment of
the Project Purposes to be accomplished by operation of the Project as provided in the Loan
~ Agreement.

Events of Default and Remedies

The Loan Agreement provides that the occurrence of each of the following events will
constitute an “event of default™

(a) The occurrence of an event of default described in paragraphs (a), (b), (c) or (d)
under “THE INDENTURE - Events of Default™;

(b) Failure by the Company to observe and perform any other agreement, term or
condition contained in the Loan Agreement, other than a failure as has resulted in an
event of default described in (a) above, which failure continues for a period of 90 days
after notice by the Issuer or the Trustee, or for such longer period as the Issuer and the
Trustee agree to in writing; provided, that such failure will not constitute an event of
default so long as the Company institutes curative action within the applicable period
and diligently pursues that action to completion within 150 days after the expiration of
the initial 90 day cure period or within such longer period as the Issuer and the Trustee
may agree to in writing; and
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(©) The occurrence of certain voluntary or involuntary events of bankruptcy,
reorganization or receivership with respect to the Company.

A failure by the Company described in paragraph (b) above will not be a default if it
occurs by reason of certain events of “force majeure” specified in the Loan Agreement not
reasonably within the control of the Company.

Whenever any event of default under the Loan Agreement has happened and is
subsisting, either or both of the following remedial steps may be taken by the Issuer or the Trustee:

(a) Have access to, inspect, examine and make copies of the books, records,
accounts, and financial data of the Company, only, however, insofar as they pertain to
the Project; or

(b) Pursue all remedies existing at law or in equity to recover all amounts then due
and thereafter to become due under the Loan Agreement or to enforce performance and
observance of any other obligation or agreement of the Company under the Loan
Agreement.

Any amounts collected pursuant to action taken upon the happening of an event of
default will be paid into the Bond Fund and applied pursuant to the Indenture.

Amendment to the Loan Agreement

The Indenture provides that the Loan Agreement may be amended without the consent
of or notice to the holders of the Bonds only as may be required (i) by the provisions of the Loan
Agreement or the Indenture, (ii) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, inconsistency or formal
defect or omission therein, (iii) in connection with an amendment or to effect any purpose for which
there could be an amendment of the Indenture not requiring the consent of holders, or (iv) in
connection with any other change therein which, in the judgment of the Trustee, is not to the
material prejudice of the Trustee or the holders of the Bonds. The Loan Agreement may be
amended, but only with the consent of the holders of all of the outstanding Bonds, to change the
amounts or times as of which Loan Payments under the Loan Agreement are required to be made.
Any other amendments to the Loan Agreement may be made only with the written approval or
consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
outstanding. Any such amendment, change or modification which affects any rights of any Credit
Facility Issuer will not become effective unless and until such Credit Facility Issuer has consented
in writing to such amendment, change or modification.

Before the Issuer and the Trustee may consent to any amendment to the Loan
Agreement, there must be delivered to the Trustee an Opinion of Bond Counsel stating that such
amendment is authorized or permitted by the Act and is authorized under the Indenture, that such
amendment will, upon the execution and delivery thereof, be valid and binding in accordance with
its terms, and that such amendment will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of the
interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes.
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THE INDENTURE

In addition to the description of certain provisions of the Indenture contained
elsewhere herein, the following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Indenture and
does not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. Reference is made to the Indenture for the
detailed provisions thereof.

Pledge of Revenues

Pursuant to the Indenture, all right, title and interest of the Issuer in and to the
“Revenues” (as defined below) and under the Loan Agreement (except for certain rights of the
Issuer), will be pledged or assigned to the Trustee to secure the payment of the principal or
redemption price of and interest on the Bonds.

“Revenues " are defined to mean: (a) the Loan Payments, (b) all other moneys received
or to be received by the Issuer (excluding any fees paid to the Issuer) or the Trustee in respect of
repayment of the Loan including, without limitation, all moneys and investments in the Bond Fund,
(c) any moneys and investments in the Refunding Fund, and (d) all income and profit from the
investment of the foregoing moneys. The term “Revenues” does not include any moneys or
investments in the Rebate Fund or the Bond Purchase Fund as those terms are defined in the
Indenture.

Refunding Fund

The net proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, other than any accrued interest, will be
deposited in and credited to the Refunding Fund created under the Indenture and will be used by the
Trustee to pay a portion of the redemption price of the Refunded Bonds on the redemption date

- therefor.

Bond Fund

A Bond Fund will be established with the Issuer and maintained by the Trustee as a trust
fund under the Indenture. The amounts with respect to the payment of principal of and premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds derived under the Loan Agreement and certain other amounts
specified in the Indenture will be deposited in the Bond Fund. While the Bonds are outstanding,
moneys in the Bond Fund will be used solely for the payment of the principal or redemption price of
and interest on the Bonds as they become due on any Interest Payment Date or at stated maturity, by
redemption or upon acceleration. Moneys for such purpose will be derived first from proceeds of a
draw under the Credit Facility. If for any reason such funds are not timely received in response to
such draw or the Credit Facility is repudiated, the Trustee may request that such funds be
immediately remitted to the Trustee by the Company.

Bond Purchase Fund

A Bond Purchase Fund will be established and maintained by the Paying Agent for the
benefit of the owners of the Bonds for the deposit of amounts to be used to pay the purchase price of
Bonds. Moneys in the Bond Purchase Fund will be used solely for the payment of the purchase
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price of Bonds. Moneys in the Bond Purchase Fund will not be pledged to the payment of the
principal of or interest or any premium on the Bonds and will not be invested.

Investments

Any moneys held as a part of the Refunding Fund, the Bond Fund and the Rebate Fund
will be invested and reinvested by the Trustee as provided in the Indenture. Any such investments
will be held by or under the control of the Trustee and will be deemed at all times a part of the
respective Fund.

Events of Default

The Indenture provides that each of the following events will constitute an “Event of
Default” thereunder:

(a) Payment of any interest on any Bond is not made when it becomes due and
payable;

(b) Payment of the principal or redemption price of any Bond is not made when it
becomes due and payable, whether at stated maturity, by redemption, by acceleration
or otherwise;

(c) Payment of the purchase price of any Bond tendered for purchase pursuant to the
provisions of the Indenture is not made when due and payable;

(d) Receipt by the Trustee of written notice from the Credit Facility Issuer of an
acceleration or termination arising from an “event of default” under and as defined in the
Reimbursement Agreement, by reason of which the Trustee has been directed by the
Credit Facility Issuer to accelerate the Bonds;

(e) Failure by the Issuer to observe or perform any other covenant, agreement or
obligation on its part to be observed or performed contained in the Bonds or the
Indenture (other than a failure described in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) above), which
failure has continued for a period of 90 days after written notice (or for such longer
period as the Trustee may agree to in writing), by registered or certified mail, to the
Issuer and the Company given by the Trustee, either in its discretion or at the written
request of the holders of not less than 35% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then
outstanding; provided, that failure will not constitute an Event of Default so long as
the Issuer institutes curative action within the applicable period and diligently pursues
that action to completion within 150 days after the expiration of the initial cure period
as determined above, or within such longer period as the Trustee may agree to in
writing;

) If no Credit Facility is then held by the Trustee, the occurrence and
continuance of an event of default as described in paragraph (c) under “THE LOAN
AGREEMENT — Events of Default and Remedies”; or
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(g) If a Credit Facility is then held by the Trustee, receipt by the Trustee, on or
before the close of business on the fourth Business Day following a drawing under
such Credit Facility to pay interest on the Bonds on an Interest Payment Date, of
written notice from the Credit Facility Issuer that the interest component of the Credit
Facility will not be reinstated.

Remedies

Upon (i) the occurrence and continuance of any Event of Default (i) described in
subsections (a), (b), (¢), (e) or (f) under “Events of Default” above, the Trustee may, and upon
the written request of the Holders of not less than 35% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds
then outstanding, must, or (ii) upon the occurrence of any Event of Default described in
subsections (d) or (g) under “Events of Default” above, the Trustee must, by written notice to the
Issuer, the Company and any Credit Facility Issuer, declare the principal of all Bonds then
outstanding (if not then due and payable), and the accrued and unpaid interest thereon, to be due
and payable immediately.

Interest on the Bonds will accrue at the rates per annum borne by the Bonds to the date
determined by the Trustee for the tender of payment to the Holders pursuant to that declaration,
which date, if the Bonds are then secured by a Credit Facility, will be not more than three
Business Days from the date of such declaration; provided, that interest on any unpaid principal
of Bonds outstanding will continue to accrue from the date determined by the Trustee for the
tender of payment to the Holders of those Bonds until that principal amount has been paid or
made available to the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders. The Trustee will immediately give
written notice of such declaration by mail to the Holders of all Bonds then outstanding as shown
by the Register at the close of business on the day prior to the mailing of that notice, and the
Trustee will, if the Bonds are then secured by a Credit Facility, immediately draw moneys under
the Credit Facility in accordance with the terms of the Credit Facility, to the extent available
thereunder, in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and accrued and unpaid interest to the
tender date on the Bonds. The Trustee will also request immediate payment from the Company
of such amount in the event such amount is not timely received in response to a draw under the
Credit Facility or the Credit Facility is repudiated.

If no Credit Facility is in effect, then the provisions above are subject to the condition
that if at any time after declaration of acceleration and prior to the entry of a judgment in a court for
enforcement (after an opportunity for hearing by the Issuer and the Company), all sums payable
(except the principal of and interest on Bonds which have not reached their stated maturity dates but
which are due and payable solely by reason of that declaration of acceleration), plus interest to the
extent permitted by law on any overdue installments of interest at the rate then borne by the Bonds,
have been duly paid or provision therefor having been made by deposit with the Trustee or Paying
Agent and all existing Events of Default have been cured, then such payment or provision for
payment will constitute an automatic waiver of the Event of Default and its consequences and will
constitute an automatic rescission and annulment of that declaration.

The provisions in the first two paragraphs above are further subject to the condition
that a written notice from the Credit Facility Issuer to the Trustee stating that the interest
component of the Credit Facility has been reinstated in full following the declaration of an Event
of Default described under subsections (d) or (g) under “Events of Default” above and which
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constitutes a rescission and annulment of any of the consequences thereof, or a written notice of
any waiver by the Credit Facility Issuer of any other Event of Default under the Reimbursement
Agreement and a rescission and annulment of its consequences following the giving of notice to
the Trustee of any other Event of Default as described under “Events of Default” above together
with a written indication from the Credit Facility Issuer that the Credit Facility has been
reinstated in full and a written request from the Credit Facility Issuer that the Trustee waive such
corresponding Event of Default under the Indenture will constitute a waiver of the corresponding
Event of Default, and a rescission and annulment of the consequences thereof. In such event, the
Trustee will promptly give written notice of such waiver, and of the waiver, rescission and
annulment of the corresponding Events of Default under the Indenture, to the Issuer, the
Company and the Remarketing Agent, and will mail such notice to the Holders of all Bonds then
outstanding as shown by the Register at the close of business 15 days prior to the mailing of that
notice and the Issuer, the Trustee and the Holders will be restored to their former positions and
rights, respectively; but no such waiver, and waiver, rescission and annulment, will extend to or
affect any subsequent Event of Default under the Indenture or impair any rights consequent
thereon; provided, that if the Credit Facility has been drawn upon following any Event of
Default, no such Event of Default will be considered to be rescinded or annulled unless the
Credit Facility Issuer provides written notice to the Trustee that the Credit Facility has been
reinstated in full.

With or without taking action to accelerate the Bonds as described above (other than the
required actions under the Credit Facility), upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of
Default, the Trustee may pursue any available remedy to enforce the payment of Bond Service
Charges or the observance and performance of any other covenant, agreement or obligation
under the Indenture, the Agreement or any other instrument providing security, directly or
indirectly, for the Bonds. If, upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default, the
Trustee is requested so to do by (i) the Credit Facility Issuer, if the Event of Default is under
subsections (d) or (g) under “Events of Default” above, or (ii) the Holders of at least 35% in
aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding, the Trustee (subject to the provisions of the
Indenture), will exercise any rights and powers conferred by the Indenture.

Anything to the contrary in the Indenture notwithstanding, the Credit Facility Issuer, if
the Event of Default is under subsections (d) or (g) under “Events of Default” above, or the
Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then outstanding, if the Event of
Default is under any other subsection under “Events of Default” above, will have the right at any
time to direct, by an instrument or document or instruments or documents in writing executed
and delivered to the Trustee, the time, method and place of conducting all proceedings to be
taken in connection with the enforcement of the terms and conditions of the Indenture or any
other proceedings thereunder; provided, that (i) any direction may not be other than in
accordance with the provisions of law and of the Indenture, (ii) the Trustee is indemnified as
provided in the Indenture, (iii) the Trustee may take any other action which it deems to be proper
and which is not inconsistent with the direction and (iv) the Credit Facility Issuer will have no
rights to direct the Trustee or otherwise direct the exercise of remedies against the Credit Facility
Issuer.

All moneys received under the Indenture by the Trustee upon the occurrence of an Event
of Default (provided that moneys received under any Credit Facility will be used only for payment
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of the purchase price of or principal of and interest then due on the Bonds, other than Bonds held
by or on behalf of the Company or a Credit Facility Issuer, and that moneys received from the
proceeds of remarketing of Bonds will be used only for the purchase price of the Bonds as set
forth in the Indenture) will be applied first to the payment of the costs and expenses of the
proceedings resulting in the collection of such money and of the fees and expenses incurred by the
Trustee, and the balance of such money will be deposited in the Bond Fund and applied to the
payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds in the manner and in the
priorities set forth in the Indenture. The Trustee will have a first lien against the trust estate, payable
prior to debt service on the Bonds, excluding, however, any moneys received under the Credit
Facility.

No holder of any Bond will have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding for
the enforcement of the Indenture or for the exercise of any other remedy under the Indenture, uniess
(i) an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and the Trustee has or is deemed to have
notice of the same, (ii) the holders of not less than 35% in aggregate principal amount of the then
outstanding Bonds have made written request to the Trustee and have afforded the Trustee
reasonable opportunity to proceed to exercise the remedies, rights and powers granted by the
Indenture or to institute a suit, action or proceeding in its own name and have offered to the Trustee
satisfactory indemnity as provided in the Indenture, and (iii) the Trustee thereafter has failed or
refused to exercise the remedies, rights and powers granted under the Indenture or to institute such
action, suit or proceeding in its own name. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each holder of a Bond
will have a right to enforce the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on any
Bond held or owned by that holder at and after the maturity thereof at the place, from the sources
and in the manner expressed in said Bond.

Supplemental Indentures

The Issuer and the Trustee may, without the consent of, or notice to, any holder of a
Bond, enter into supplemental indentures which will not, in the opinion of the Issuer and the
Trustee, be inconsistent with the Indenture for any one or more of the following purposes:

(a) To cure any ambiguity, inconsistency or formal defect or omission in the
Indenture;

(b) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds
any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that lawfully may be granted to or
conferred upon the holders or the Trustee;

(c) To assign additional revenues under the Indenture;

(d) To accept additional security and instruments and documents of further
assurance with respect to the Project, including without limitation, first mortgage bonds
of the Company;

(e) To add to the covenants, agreements and obligations of the Issuer under the
Indenture, other covenants, agreements and obligations to be observed for the protection
of the holders of the Bonds, or to surrender or limit any right, power or authority
reserved to or conferred upon the Issuer in the Indenture;
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D To evidence any succession to the Issuer and the assumption by its successor of
the covenants, agreements and obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture, the Loan
Agreement and the Bonds;

(g) To permit the exchange of Bonds, at the option of the holder or holders thereof,
for coupon Bonds payable to bearer, if the Trustee has received an Opinion of Bond
Counsel to the effect that the exchange would not adversely affect the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds outstanding;

(h) To permit the transfer of Bonds from one Depository to another, and the
succession of Depositories, or the withdrawal of Bonds issued to a Depository for use in
a book entry system and the issuance of replacement Bonds in fully registered form to
others than a Depository;

(1) To permit the Trustee to comply with any obligations imposed upon it by law;

) To specify further the duties and responsibilities of, and to define further the
relationship among, the Trustee, the Registrar, the Credit Facility [ssuer, the Auction
Agent, the Remarketing Agent and any authenticating agents or Paying Agents;

k) To achieve compliance of the Indenture with any applicable federal securities or
tax law;

I To make amendments to the provisions of the Indenture relating to arbitrage
matters under Section 148(f) of the Code, if, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, those
amendments would not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal
income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds outstanding;

(m) To make any amendments appropriate or necessary to provide for or facilitate
the delivery of any Credit Facility or Alternate Credit Facility, any liquidity facility, any
municipal bond insurance policy or any other type of credit enhancement or support
facility;

() Prior to, or concurrently with, the conversion of the Bonds from a Daily,
Weekly, Commercial Paper, or Term Rate Period to an ARS Rate Period, to make
any amendments appropriate or necessary with respect to the Auction Rate
Procedures and any definitions or provisions in the Indenture or exhibits thereto in
order to provide for or facilitate the marketability of Auction Rate Bonds; and

(o) To permit any other amendment which, in the judgment of the Trustee, is not to
the material prejudice of the Trustee or the holders of the Bonds.

Exclusive of such supplemental indentures, the holders of not less than a majority in

aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, and, if required by the Indenture, of the
Company, the Auction Agent, the Broker-Dealer and the Credit Facility Issuer, will have the right to
consent to and approve any supplemental indenture, except that no supplemental indenture will
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(a) An extension of the maturity of the principal of or the date for payment of
interest on any Bond, a reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or the rate of
interest or premium thereon, a reduction in the purchase price of any Bond or an
extension of the date for payment of the purchase price of any Bond without the consent
of the holder of each Bond so affected; or

() The creation of a privilege or priority of any Bond or Bonds over any other Bond
or Bonds, or a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for
consent to a supplemental indenture, without the consent of the holders of all of the
Bonds then outstanding.

Any supplemental indenture which affects the rights or obligations of the Company
requires the written consent of the Company. Any supplemental indenture which adversely affects
any rights, duties, privileges or immunities of the Auction Agent, the Broker-Dealer or Credit
Facility Issuer requires the written consent of the party adversely affected. Before the Issuer and the
Trustee may enter into any supplemental indenture, there must be delivered to the Trustee an
Opinion of Bond Counsel stating that such supplemental indenture is authorized or permitted by the
Act and is authorized under the Indenture, that such supplemental indenture will, upon the execution
and delivery thereof, be valid and binding in accordance with its terms, and that such supplemental
indenture will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for
federal income tax purposes.

Discharge of Indenture

The lien created by the Indenture will be discharged when the Issuer pays or causes to be
paid, or if there otherwise is paid, to or for the holders of the Bonds the principal, premium, if any,
and interest due or to become due thereon and provision is also made for the payment of all other
sums payable pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture and the Loan Agreement.

All of the Bonds will be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning
of the Indenture if:

(a) The Trustee as paying agent and any Paying Agents have received, in trust for
and irrevocably committed thereto, sufficient moneys, or

(b) The Trustee has received, in trust for and irrevocably committed thereto, non-
callable and non-prepayable Government Obligations which are certified by an
independent public accounting firm of national reputation (with a copy of the
certification being delivered to the Rating Agencies) to be of such maturities or
redemption dates and interest payment dates, and to bear such interest as will be
sufficient together with moneys referred to in (a) above, without further investment or
reinvestment of either the principal amount thereof or the interest earnings therefrom, for
the payment of all principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds (interest
will be calculated at the Maximum Interest Rate unless the Bonds are in a Term Rate
Period and the Bonds will mature or be redeemed on or prior to the last day of such
Term Rate Period) at their maturity or redemption dates, as the case may be; provided,
that if any of such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to maturity, notice of such

36



redemption must have been duly given or irrevocable provision satisfactory to the
Trustee must have been duly made for the giving of such notice; and provided, further,
that if a Credit Facility is then held by the Trustee, (i) such payment and any payment of
the purchase price of Bonds pursuant to the Indenture will be made only from proceeds
of the Credit Facility deposited directly into the Credit Facility Account or the Credit
Facility Proceeds Account, as applicable, or the Company has caused to be delivered to
the Trustee an opinion of Bankruptcy Counsel, which opinion, if the Bonds are then
rated by Moody’s, must be satisfactory to Moody’s, and if the Bonds are then rated by
S&P, must be satisfactory to S&P, that any such payment and the payment of the
purchase price of any Bonds pursuant to the Indenture will not be considered an
avoidable transfer by the Company or the Issuer under Section 547 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code or any other applicable federal bankruptcy law in the event of the
occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy and (ii) the Trustee has received written evidence
from S&P, if the Bonds are then rated by S&P, and from Moody’s, if the Bonds are then
rated by Moody'’s, that the defeasance of the Indenture will not result in a reduction or
withdrawal of the then current rating on the Bonds.

Cancellation of Credit Facility; Delivery of Alternate Credit Facility

The Trustee will, at the direction of the Company but subject to the conditions described
in this paragraph and the receipt of an Opinion of Bond Counsel stating that the cancellation of such
Credit Facility will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for
federal income tax purposes, cancel any Credit Facility in accordance with the terms thereof which
cancellation may be without substitution therefor or replacement thereof; provided, that any such
cancellation will not become effective, surrender of such Credit Facility will not take place and that
Credit Facility will not terminate, in any event, until (i) payment by the Credit Facility Issuer has
been made for any and all drawings by the Trustee effected on or before such cancellation date
(including, if applicable, any drawings for payment of the purchase price of Bonds to be purchased
pursuant to the Indenture in connection with such cancellation) and (ii) if the Bonds are in a Term
Rate Period, only if the then current Term Rate Period for the Bonds is ending on, or the Bonds are
subject to optional redemption on, the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding the date of
such cancellation. Upon written notice given by the Company to the Trustee at least 20 days (35
days if the Bonds are bearing interest at the Term Rate) prior to the date of cancellation of any
Credit Facility of such cancellation and the effective date of such cancellation, the Trustee will
surrender such Credit Facility to the Credit Facility Issuer by which it was issued on the effective
date of such cancellation in accordance with its terms; provided, that such notice will not be given in
any event, if the purchase price of any Bonds to be purchased pursuant to the Indenture in
connection with such cancellation includes any premium unless the Trustee has confirmed that it
can draw under a Credit Facility (other than any Alternate Credit Facility being delivered in
connection with such cancellation) on the purchase date related to such purchase of Bonds in an
aggregate amount sufficient to pay the premium due upon such purchase of Bonds on such purchase
date.

The Company may, at its option, provide for the delivery to the Trustee of an
Alternate Credit Facility in replacement of any Credit Facility then in effect. At least 20 days
(35 days if the Interest Rate on the Bonds is a Term Rate) prior to the date of delivery of an
Alternate Credit Facility to the Trustee, the Company must give notice, which notice, during any
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Commercial Paper Rate Period, will also be given to the Remarketing Agent and will contain a
certification with respect to the maximum length of each Commercial Paper Rate Period
permitted under the Indenture after delivery of such Alternate Credit Facility, of such
replacement to the Trustee, together with an Opinion of Bond Counsel stating that the delivery of
such Alternate Credit Facility to the Trustee is authorized under the Indenture and complies with
the terms thereof and that the delivery of such Alternate Credit Facility will not adversely affect
the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. The
Trustee will then accept such Alternate Credit Facility and surrender the previously held Credit
Facility, if any, to the previous Credit Facility Issuer for cancellation promptly on or after the 5th
day after the Alternate Credit Facility becomes effective; provided, however, that such Alternate
Credit Facility must become effective on an Interest Payment Date and, if the Bonds are in a
Term Rate Period, such Alternate Credit Facility may only become effective on either the last
Interest Payment Date for such Term Rate Period or an Interest Payment Date on which the
Bonds are subject to optional redemption. If the purchase price of any Bonds to be purchased
pursuant to the Indenture in connection with such cancellation includes any premium, the Trustee
must confirm that it can draw under a Credit Facility then in effect on the purchase date related
to such purchase of Bonds in an aggregate amount sufficient to pay the premium due upon such
purchase of Bonds on such purchase date. Any Alternate Credit Facility delivered to the Trustee
must be accompanied by an opinion of counsel to the issuer or provider of such Credit Facility
stating that such Credit Facility is a legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligation of such issuer or
obligor in accordance with its terms.

The Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the date of
cancellation of a Credit Facility and on the date of the delivery of an Alternate Credit Facility.
See “THE BONDS - Mandatory Tenders.”

No Personal Liability of Issuer’s Officials

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of the Issuer contained in the
Indenture will be or be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of any present
or future member, officer, agent or employee of the Issuer in other than his or her official capacity.
No official of the Issuer executing the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement (or amendments
or supplements to either) will be liable personally on the Bonds or be subject to any personal
liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof or the execution of the Indenture or the
Loan Agreement (or amendments or supplements to either).

The Trustee

Except for any period during which an Event of Default, of which the Trustee has been
notified or is deemed to have knowledge, has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee (i) will
undertake to perform only the duties specifically set forth in the Indenture and (ii) in the absence of
bad faith on its part, may rely conclusively upon the truth of the statements and the correctness of
the opinions furnished to it pursuant to the Indenture. In case an Event of Default has occurred and
is continuing (of which the Trustee has been notified or is deemed to have notice), the Trustee will
exercise the rights and powers vested in it by the Indenture and will use the same degree of care and
skill as a prudent person would use under the circumstances in the conduct of his or her own affairs.
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The Trustee will not be required to expend or risk its own funds in performing its duties under the
Indenture and will be entitled to compensation and the reimbursement of its expenses.

The Trustee may resign at any time from the trusts created by the Indenture by giving
written notice of the resignation to the Issuer, the Company, the Registrar, any Paying Agents, the
Remarketing Agent, the Auction Agent, the Credit Facility Issuer and authenticating agents and by
mailing written notice thereof to the holders of the Bonds. The resignation will take effect only
upon the appointment of a successor Trustee and the successor’s acceptance of the appointment.

The Trustee may be removed at any time by the holders of not less than a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding. The removal will take effect only upon
the appointment of a successor Trustee and such successor’s acceptance of the appointment, all
pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture. The Trustee also may be removed at any time for any
breach of trust or for acting or proceeding in violation of, or for failing to act or proceed in
accordance with, any provision of the Indenture with respect to the duties and obligations of the
Trustee by any court of competent jurisdiction upon the application of the Issuer, upon its own
volition or at the written request of the Company, the Credit Facility Issuer or the holders of not less
than 35% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding under the Indenture. The
removal will take effect only upon the appointment of a successor Trustee and such successor’s
acceptance of the appointment, all pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture.

Every successor Trustee appointed pursuant to the Indenture (i) must be a trust
company or a bank having the powers of a trust company, (i) must be willing to accept the
trusteeship on the terms and conditions of the Indenture, (iii) must have a reported capital and
surplus of not less than $75,000,000, (iv) so long as the Bonds are rated by Moody’s, must be
acceptable to Moody’s, (v) so long as the Bonds are rated by S&P, must be acceptable to S&P,
and (vi) must be reasonably acceptable to the Credit Facility Issuer.

Remarketing Agent

The principal office of the Remarketing Agent is as follows:

Wachovia Bank, National Association
301 South College Street

Mail Code NC0600

Charlotte, NC 28202

Attention: Rick White

Telephone: 704-383-6452

Fax: 704-383-0065
Rick.white@wachovia.com

The Remarketing Agent will determine the Variable Rates and the Commercial Paper
Rate Periods for the Bonds and will remarket Bonds subject to optional or mandatory tender.
The Remarketing Agent must have a capitalization of at least $50,000,000 and be authorized by
law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by the Indenture. Any successor Remarketing
Agent must be rated at least Baa3 or P-3 or otherwise be acceptable to Moody’s.
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If at any time the Remarketing Agent is unable or unwilling to act as a Remarketing
Agent, the Remarketing Agent may resign upon the earlier to occur of (i) the twentieth day
following receipt by the Company, the Issuer, the Trustee, the Auction Agent and the Paying
Agent of written notice of resignation and (ii) the day of appointment by the Company of a
successor Remarketing Agent pursuant to the Indenture and acceptance of such appointment by
such successor Remarketing Agent. The Remarketing Agent may be removed at any time by the
Company upon five days’ written notice signed by the Company and delivered to the
Remarketing Agent, the [ssuer, the Trustee, the Credit Facility Issuer, the Auction Agent and the
Paying Agent.

On October 3, 2008 Wachovia Corporation announced that Wells Fargo & Company
and Wachovia Corporation signed a definitive agreement to merge in a transaction in which
Wells Fargo & Company will acquire Wachovia Corporation in its entirety. On October 9, 2008
Wachovia Corporation issued a joint press release with Wells Fargo & Company confirming that
the definitive agreement first announced on October 3, 2008 will proceed as planned. The
proposed merger is anticipated to be consummated by year-end, subject to receipt of regulatory
and shareholder approval.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Frost Brown Todd LLC, Bond Counsel, under existing laws,
regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income
under section 103 of the Code for federal income tax purposes, except for interest on any Bond for
any period during which such Bond is owned by a person who is a “substantial user” of the facilities
financed by the Bonds or a “related person” as defined in Section 147(a) of the Code. This opinion
relates only to the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax
purposes under Section 103 of the Code and is conditioned on continuing compliance by the Issuer
and the Company with the Tax Covenants (hereinafter defined). Failure to comply with the Tax
Covenants could cause interest on the Bonds to lose the exclusion from gross income for federal
income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue. In the opinion of Frost Brown Todd LLC,
Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds
is exempt from income taxation in the State. This opinion relates only to the exemption of interest
on the Bonds for State income tax purposes. See Appendix D for the form of opinion of Bond
Counsel.

The Code imposes certain requirements which must be met subsequent to the issuance
of the Bonds as a condition to the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal
income tax purposes. In the Indenture and the Loan Agreement, the Issuer has made certain
covenants, and in the Loan Agreement the Company has made certain covenants (collectively, the
“Tax Covenants’™) concerning actions to be or not to be taken to preserve the tax status of the Bonds.
The Indenture, Loan Agreement and certain certificates and agreements to be delivered on the date
of delivery of the Bonds establish procedures under which compliance with the requirements of the
Code can be met.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority and covers certain
matters not directly addressed by such authority. It represents Bond Counsel’s legal judgment as to
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exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes but is not a
guaranty of that conclusion. The opinion is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or
any court. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion about (i) the effect of future changes in the Code and
the applicable regulations under the Code or (ii) the interpretation and the enforcement of the Code
or those regulations by the IRS. Afier the date of issuance of the Bonds, Bond Counsel will not
undertake to determine (or to so inform any person) whether any actions taken or not taken, or any
events occurring or not occurring, or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel’s attention, may
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the
Bonds or the market prices of the Bonds.

Interest on each issue of the Bonds may be subject to a federal branch profits tax
imposed on certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States and to a federal tax
imposed on excess net passive income of certain S corporations.

The Code also subjects taxpayers to an alternate minimum tax on a taxpayer’s
“alternative minimum taxable income,” which, in general terms, consists of a taxpayer’s regular
taxable income plus its preferences and special adjustments with respect to certain deductions used
by a corporation to compute taxable income. Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item
for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes. However, interest on
the Bonds is included in adjusted current earnings in calculatirig corporate alternative minimum
taxable income for the purpose of the corporate alternative minimum tax.

Under the Code, the exclusion of interest from gross income for federal income tax
purposes may have certain adverse federal income tax consequences on items of income, deduction
or credit for certain taxpayers, including financial institutions, certain insurance companies,
recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits, those that are deemed to incur or
continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations, and individuals otherwise eligible
for the earned income tax credit. Payments of interest on tax-exempt obligations, including the
Bonds, are generally subject to IRS Form 1099-INT information reporting requirements. If an
owner of Bonds is subject to backup withholding under those requirements, then payments of
interest will also be subject to backup withholding. Those requirements do not affect the
excludability of such interest from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The applicability
and extent of these and other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status or other
tax items of the owner of the Bonds. Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding those
consequences.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding
pending or proposed federal and Kentucky tax legislation and court proceedings, and prospective
purchasers of the Bonds at other than their original issuance at the price indicated on the cover of
this Official Statement should also consult their own tax advisers regarding other tax
considerations such as the consequences of market discount, as to all of which Bond Counsel
expresses no opinion.

Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the
Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the Issuer, the
Company or the beneficial owners regarding the tax status of interest on the Bonds in the event
of an audit examination by the IRS. The IRS has a program to audit tax exempt obligations to
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determine whether the interest thereon is includible in gross income for federal income tax
purposes. If the IRS does audit the Bonds, under current IRS procedures, the IRS will treat the
Issuer as the taxpayer and the beneficial owners of the Bonds will have only limited rights, if
any, to obtain and participate in judicial review of such audit. Any action of the IRS, including
but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an
audit of other obligations presenting similar tax issues, may affect the market prices for the
Bonds.

LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to
the approving opinions of Frost Brown Todd LLC, Bond Counsel. The form of such opinion is
included as Appendix D hereto. Certain legal matters in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds will be passed upon for the Issuer by Robert D. Neace, Esq., County Attorney of the
I[ssuer. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Company by Robert T. Lucas IlI, Esq.,
Associate General Counsel of Duke Energy Corporation, and Richard G. Beach, Esq., Assistant
General Counsel of Duke Energy Corporation, as counsel to the Company. Certain legal matters
will be passed upon for the Bank by Bradford Bemis, Esq., Senior Counsel for the Bank. Certain
legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P.
From time to time, Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P. has represented affiliates of the Company
or its predecessors in various matters.

UNDERWRITING

Under the terms of a Bond Purchase Agreement with the Issuer, Wachovia Bank,
National Association will agree, subject to the approval of certain legal matters by counsel and to
certain other conditions, to purchase the Bonds from the Issuer at a price of $50,000,000
(representing 100% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds). In consideration of the
purchase of the Bonds, the Company will agree to pay Wachovia Bank, National Association an
underwriting fee of $175,000 and to reimburse certain expenses.

The Underwriter will agree to purchase all of the Bonds, if any of the Bonds are
purchased. After the Bonds are released for sale to the public, the offering price and other
selling terms may from time to time be varied by the Underwriter, and such Bonds may be
offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing such Bonds into investment
accounts) and others at prices lower than the public offering price set forth on the cover page
hereof.

The Company will agree to indemnify the Underwriter and the Issuer against certain
liabilities, including certain liabilities under federal securities laws.

The Underwriter has been appointed to serve as Remarketing Agent and will be
separately compensated by the Company.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Underwriter and certain of its affiliates have
engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment banking, commercial banking or other
transactions with the Company and its affiliates.
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Wachovia Securities is the trade name under which Wachovia Corporation conducts
its investment banking, capital markets and institutional securities business through Wachovia
Capital Markets, LLC, member of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., National Association of
Securities Dealers, Inc. and Securities Investor Protection Corporation, and through other bank,
non-bank and broker-dealer subsidiaries of Wachovia Corporation, including Wachovia Bank,
National Association.

On October 3, 2008 Wachovia Corporation announced that Wells Fargo & Company
and Wachovia Corporation signed a definitive agreement to merge in a transaction in which
Wells Fargo & Company will acquire Wachovia Corporation in its entirety. On October 9, 2008
Wachovia Corporation issued a joint press release with Wells Fargo & Company confirming that
the definitive agreement first announced on October 3, 2008 will proceed as planned. The
proposed merger is anticipated to be consummated by year-end, subject to receipt of regulatory
and shareholder approval.

This Official Statement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
Company.

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

By:___/s/ Stephen De May
Vice President and Treasurer
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APPENDIX A
DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

The information contained herein as Appendix A to the Olfficial Statement relates to and
has been supplied by the Company. The delivery of this Official Statement shall not create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Company since the date hereof, or
that the information contained in this Appendix A is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.
The Issuer makes no representation or warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained in this Appendix A.

THE COMPANY

The following information is furnished solely to provide limited introductory information
about the Company and does not purport to be comprehensive. As indicated in this Official
Statement, payment of the principal and purchase price of and interest on the Bonds will be
supported by the Letter of Credit. An investment decision to purchase the Bonds should be
made solely on the basis of the creditworthiness of the Bank. This Official Statement does not
contain any financial or operating information relating to the Company or its ability to make
payments sufficient to pay the principal and purchase price of or interest on the Bonds.
Prospective investors should look solely to the Bank and the Letter of Credit for payments of
the principal and purchase price of or interest on the Bonds.

The Company, a Kentucky corporation, is an electric and gas utility. The Company is
primarily engaged in the generation of electric energy and in the transmission, distribution, and
sale of electric energy and the sale and transportation of natural gas in Northern Kentucky. The
Company serves approximately 135,000 electric customers and approximately 95,000 gas
customers in its service territory, which covers approximately 500 square miles and includes the
cities of Covington, Florence and Newport in Kentucky.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Cinergy Corp. Cinergy Corp. in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Duke
Energy Corporation.

The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 139 East Fourth Street,
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202. The Company’s telephone number is (513) 421-9500.
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APPENDIX B

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

The information contained herein as Appendix B to the Official Statement has been
obtained from Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the “Bank”). Norne of the Issuer, the
Company or the Underwriter makes any representations as to the accuracy or completeness of
such information.

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association

The Bank is a national banking association organized under the laws of the United States
of America with its main office at 101 North Phillips Avenue, Sioux Falls, South Dakota 57104,
and engages in retail, commercial and corporate banking, real estate lending and trust and
investment services. The Bank is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Wells Fargo &
Company, a diversified financial services company, a financial holding company and a bank
holding company registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, with its
principal executive offices located in San Francisco, California (“Wells Fargo”).

As of September 30, 2008, the Bank had total consolidated assets of approximately
$514.9 billion, total domestic and foreign deposits of approximately $356.2 billion and total
equity capital of approximately $44.2 billion.

On October 3, 2008, Wells Fargo announced that it had entered into a merger agreement
with Wachovia Corporation providing for the acquisition of Wachovia and its subsidiaries by
Wells Fargo in a stock-for-stock transaction. This press release and other materials filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) by Wells Fargo relating to the proposed merger
are available free of charge on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. Copies of these filings are
also available free of charge by writing to Wells Fargo’s Corporate Secretary at the address
given below.

Each quarter, the Bank files with the FDIC financial reports entitled “Consolidated
Reports of Condition and Income for Insured Commercial Banks with Domestic and Foreign
Offices,” commonly referred to as the “Call Reports.” The Bank’s Call Reports are prepared in
accordance with regulatory accounting principles, which may differ from generally accepted
accounting principles. The publicly available portions of the Call Reports for the period ending
September 30, 2008, and for Call Reports filed by the Bank with the FDIC after the date of this
Official Statement may be obtained from the FDIC, Disclosure Group, Room F518, 550 17th
Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20429 at prescribed rates, or from the FDIC on its Internet site at
http://www.fdic.gov, or by writing to the Wells Fargo Corporate Secretary’s Office, Wells Fargo
Center, Sixth and Marquette, MAC N9305-173, Minneapolis, MN 55479,

The Letter of Credit will be solely an obligation of the Bank and will not be an
obligation of, or otherwise guaranteed by, Wells Fargo & Company, and no assets of Wells
Fargo & Company or any affiliate of the Bank or Wells Fargo & Company will be pledged
to the payment thereof. Payment of the Letter of Credit will not be insured by the FDIC.
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The information contained in this section, including financial information, relates to and
has been obtained from the Bank, and is furnished solely to provide limited introductory
information regarding the Bank and does not purport to be comprehensive. Any financial
information provided in this section is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information
appearing in the Call Reports referenced above. The delivery hereof shall not create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Bank since the date hereof.
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APPENDIX C
CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, as used herein the following terms will, have the
Jfollowing meanings. The defined terms should be read as referring separately to each issue of
the Bonds.

“Auction Mode” means the period during which the Bonds are in an Initial Period or an
ARS Rate Period (each as defined in the Auction Procedures).

“duction Rate Bonds " means any Bonds which are in an Auction Mode.

“Authorized Denominations” means (i) with Term Bonds, denominations of $5,000 and
integral multiples thereof, (ii) with Bonds at a Commercial Paper, a Daily or Weekly Rate,
denominations of $100,000 with integral multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof, and (iii) with
Auction Rate Bonds, denominations of $25,000 and integral multiples thereof.

“Book-Entry System” means the system maintained by the Depository and described
herein under “THE BONDS — Book-Entry-Only System.”

“Business Day” means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, (ii) a day on which
commercial banks in New York, New York, or the city or cities in which are located the
corporate trust office or payment office of the Trustee, the Company, any Credit Facility Issuer,
the Auction Agent, the Remarketing Agent, the Registrar or the Paying Agent are authorized by
law to close or (iii) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
References to the Code and Sections of the Code include relevant applicable regulations and
proposed regulations thereunder and under the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, and
any successor provisions to those Sections, regulations or proposed regulations and, in addition,
all revenue rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and judicial determinations under the
foregoing applicable to the Bonds.

“Commercial Paper Rate” means, when used with respect to any particular Bond, the
interest rate determined for each Commercial Paper Rate Period applicable thereto pursuant to
the Indenture.

“Commercial Paper Rate Period” means a period during which a Bond bears interest at a
Commercial Paper Rate.

“Conversion Date” means a day on which the Bonds are converted to bear interest
(i) from one Variable Rate Period to another Variable Rate Period in accordance with the terms
of the Indenture, including any change from a Term Rate Period to a Term Rate Period of a
different duration, or (ii) from an ARS Rate Period to a Variable Rate Period or (iii) from a
Variable Rate Period to an ARS Rate Period.
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“Credit Facility” means an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit or other credit
enhancement or liquidity support facility, or any combination thereof, delivered to and in favor
of the Trustee for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, and includes
the Letter of Credit or any Alternate Credit Facility delivered to the Trustee pursuant to the
Indenture.

“Credit Facility Issuer” means the Bank and the issuer of any Credit Facility
subsequently in effect.

“Daily Rate” means the interest rate to be determined for the Bonds on each Business
Day pursuant to the Indenture and described under the caption “THE BONDS-Interest Rate
Determination Methods—Daily Rate and Daily Rate Period.”

“Daily Rate Period” means a period during which the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate
is in effect.

“Depository” means The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company),
New York, New York, until a successor Depository will have become such pursuant to the
applicable provisions of the Indenture and thereafter, “Depository” will mean the successor
Depository. Any Depository will be a securities depository that is a clearing agency under
federal law operating and maintaining, with its participants or otherwise, a Book Entry System to
record ownership of beneficial interests in Bonds or bond service charges thereon, and to effect
transfers of beneficial interests in the Bonds, in a Book Entry Form.

“Government Obligations” means obligations of, or obligations guaranteed as to
principal and interest by, the U.S. or any agency or instrumentality thereof, when such
obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. including:

e U.S. treasury obligations

e All direct or fully guaranteed obligations

o Farmers Home Administration

e General Services Administration

e Guaranteed Title XI financing

» Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA)
» State and Local Government Series

“Interest Payment Date” means initially January 2, 2009 and thereafter (a) when used
with respect to Bonds bearing interest at the Daily or Weekly Rate, the first Business Day of
each calendar month to which interest at such rate has accrued; (b) when used with respect to
Bonds bearing interest at a Term Rate, the first day of the sixth calendar month following the
month in which the Term Rate Period begins and the first day of each sixth calendar month
thereafter to which interest at such rate has accrued, except that the last Interest Payment Date
for any Term Rate Period which is followed by a conversion to a Daily, Weekly or Commercial
Paper Rate Period (but not a conversion to a Term Rate Period of a different duration) will be the
first Business Day of the sixth calendar month following the month in which the immediately
preceding Interest Payment Date occurs; (c) when used with respect to any particular Bond
bearing interest at a Commercial Paper Rate, the first Business Day following the last day of
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each Commercial Paper Rate Period applicable thereto; and (d) when used with respect to any
particular Auction Rate Bond, will have the meaning set forth in the Indenture. In any case, the
final Interest Payment Date will be the Maturity Date.

“Interest Period’ means, for Auction Rate Bonds, the Initial Period for the Auction Rate
Bonds and each successive Auction Period thereafter. “/nterest Period” for Bonds bearing
interest at a Variable Rate means the period from and including any Interest Payment Date to and
including the day immediately preceding the next following Interest Payment Date, as
applicable, provided, however, that the first Interest Period for any Bond will begin on (and
include) the date of original issuance of the Bonds and the final Interest Period will end on (and
include) the day immediately preceding the Maturity Date.

“Maturity Date” means August 1, 2027.

“Maximum Interest Rate’ means the least of (a) 13% per annum, (b) the maximum rate
of interest permitted under State law, or (c) in the case of Bonds bearing interest at a Variable
Rate, the maximum rate of interest permitted by any Credit Facility then in effect. The
maximum rate of interest permitted by the Letter of Credit is 13% per annum.

“Moody's” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation is
dissolved or liquidated or no longer performs the functions of a securities rating agency,
“Moody’s” will be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency
designated by the Issuer, with the approval of the Company, by notice to the Trustee and the
Company.

“Opinion of Bond Counsel” means a written opinion of nationally-recognized bond
counsel selected by the Company and acceptable to the Trustee and who is experienced in
matters relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest
on obligations issued by states and their political subdivisions. Bond Counsel may be counsel to
the Trustee or the Company.

“Outstanding Bonds,” “Bonds outstanding” or “outstanding” as applied to Bonds,
means, as of the applicable date, all Bonds which have been authenticated and delivered, or
which are being delivered by the Trustee under the Indenture, except:

(a) Bonds cancelled upon surrender, exchange or transfer, or cancelled because of
payment or redemption on or prior to that date;

) On or after any purchase date for Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, all Bonds (or
portions of Bonds) which are tendered or deemed to have been tendered for purchase on such
date, but which have not been delivered to the Paying Agent, provided that funds sufficient for
such purchase are on deposit with the Paying Agent in the appropriate accounts in accordance
with the provisions hereof;
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(c) Bonds, or the portion thereof, for the payment, redemption or purchase for
cancellation of which sufficient moneys have been deposited and credited with the Trustee or
Paying Agent to the appropriate accounts on or prior to that date for the purpose (whether upon
or prior to the maturity or redemption date of those Bonds); provided, that if any of those Bonds
are to be redeemed prior to their maturity, notice of that redemption has been given or
arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee have been made for giving notice of that redemption, or
waiver by the affected Holders of that notice satisfactory in form to the Trustee has been filed
with the Trustee;

(d) Bonds, or the portion thereof, which are deemed to have been paid and discharged
or caused to have been paid and discharged pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture; and

(e) Bonds in lieu of which others have been authenticated under the Indenture;
provided, however, that in determining whether the Holders of the requisite principal amount of
Outstanding Bonds have given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or
waiver under the Indenture, Bonds owned by the Company or an affiliate thereof will be
disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding, except that in determining whether the Trustee
will be protected in relying upon any such request, demand, authorization, direction, notice,
consent or waiver, only Bonds which the Trustee knows to be so owned will be disregarded
unless all Bonds are owned by the Company or any affiliate thereof and/or held by the Trustee
for the account of the Company and/or an affiliate thereof, in which case such Bonds will be
considered outstanding for the purpose of such determination.

“Paying Agent” means (i) Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, with a corporate
trust office in Chicago, Illinois, or (ii) any bank or trust company designated as Paying Agent by
or in accordance with the Indenture.

“Rate Period” means a period during which a particular rate of interest determined for
the Bonds is to remain in effect until a subsequently determined rate of interest becomes
effective pursuant to the Indenture. In any case, the final Rate Period will end on (and include)
the day immediately preceding the Maturity Date.

“Refunded Bonds™ means those bonds identified under “APPLICATION OF
PROCEEDS.”

“Registrar” means Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, until a successor Registrar
has become such pursuant to the Indenture.

“Regular Record Date” means the close of business on (a) the fifteenth day of the month
preceding each Interest Payment Date in the case of Bonds bearing interest at a Term Rate;
(b) the last Business Day of the Interest Period in the case of Bonds bearing interest at the Daily
or Weekly Rates; (c) the last day of the Commercial Paper Rate Period applicable to such Bond;
and (d) the Business Day immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date for Auction Rate
Bonds.



“Reimbursement Agreement” means a reimbursement agreement between the Company
and a Credit Facility Issuer setting forth the obligations of the Company to such Credit Facility
[ssuer arising out of any payments under a Credit Facility.

“S&P’ means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, and its successors and assigns, except
that if such Division is dissolved or liquidated or no longer performs the functions of a securities
rating agency, “S&P” will be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating
organization designated by the Issuer, with the approval of the Company, by notice to the
Trustee and the Company.

“State” means the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

“Term Rate” means the interest rate to be determined pursuant to the Indenture for the
Bonds for a term of one or more whole years or for a term to the Maturity Date.

“Term Rate Period’ means a period during which the Bonds bear interest at a particular
Term Rate.

“Term Rate Period of a different duration™ means a conversion to a Term Rate Period of a
different duration than the then current Term Rate Period and, if the conversion is occurring on a
date other than that originally scheduled as the last Interest Payment Date of the then current
Term Rate Period, a conversion to a Term Rate Period of the same duration as the then current
Term Rate Period.

“Variable Rate’ means, as the context requires, the Commercial Paper, Daily, Weekly or
Term Rate applicable from time to time to the Bonds.

“Weekly Rate” means the interest to be determined for the Bonds on a weekly basis
pursuant to the Indenture and described under the caption “THE BONDS-Interest Rate
Determination Methods—Weekly Rate and Weekly Rate Period.”

“Weekly Rate Period” means a period during which the Bonds bear interest at a Weekly
Rate.
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APPENDIX D

PROPOSED FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION

December _, 2008

County of Boone, Kentucky
Burlington, Kentucky

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Charlotte, North Carolina

Deutsche Bank National Trust Company
Chicago, Illinois

Wachovia Bank, National Association
Charlotte, North Carolina

Re:  $50,000,000 principal amount of County of Boone, Kentucky Pollution Control Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 A (Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. Project)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as bond counsel in connection with the issuance by the County of Boone,
Kentucky (the “Issuer”) of its Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008A (Duke
Energy Kentucky, Inc. Project), in an aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000 (the “Bonds”).
The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Sections 103.200 to 103.286, inclusive, of the Kentucky
Revised Statutes (the “Act”), an ordinance adopted by the Issuer on April 8, 2008 (the
“Ordinance”), and under and pursuant to a Trust Indenture (the “Indenture”) dated as of
December 1, 2008, between the Issuer and Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, as trustee
(the “Trustee™). In such capacity we have examined (a) a certified transcript containing the
proceedings of the Issuer relating to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds, the Loan
Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of December 1, 2008, between the Issuer and Duke
Energy Kentucky, Inc., a Kentucky corporation (the “Company”), the Bond Purchase Agreement
dated December __, 2008 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) between the Issuer and Wachovia
Bank, National Association (the “Underwriter”); and the Official Statement relating to the Bonds
dated December 3, 2008; (b) the Tax Certificate of the Issuer dated the date hereof; (c) the Tax
Certificate of the Company dated the date hereof; (d) executed counterparts of the Indenture and
the Agreement; (e) the executed and authenticated Bonds; (f) the opinions of Robert T. Lucas III,
Associate General Counsel, and Richard G. Beach, Esq., Assistant General Counsel, as counsel
for the Company; and (g) an opinion of Robert D. Neace, the Boone County Attorney, as counsel
for the Issuer.
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As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied, without undertaking to
verify the same by independent investigation, upon representations, covenants and certifications
of public officials, the Company and others contained in the documents, instruments and
certified proceedings described in the first paragraph of this opinion, including without
limitation, the covenants and representations of the Issuer and the Company regarding
compliance and continuing compliance with certain requirements and conditions imposed by the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™) with respect to the exclusion of
interest on the Bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code from gross income for purposes of
Federal income taxation (the “Tax Covenants™).

Based upon the foregoing and our review of such other information, papers and
documents as we believed necessary or advisable, we are of the opinion that:

1. The Issuer has full legal right, power and authority under the Constitution and
laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, including the Act, to adopt the Ordinance, to issue, sell
and deliver the Bonds and to enter into and perform its obligations under the Indenture and the
Agreement.

2. The Indenture and Agreement have each been duly authorized, executed and
delivered by the Issuer and constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Issuer
enforceable against the Issuer in accordance with their terms.

3, The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed, authenticated, issued and
delivered and are legal, valid and binding in accordance with the terms thereof. The Bonds
constitute special and limited obligations of the Issuer, and the principal of and interest on the
Bonds (collectively, “Debt Service”) are payable solely from the revenues and other moneys
assigned by the Indenture to secure such payment. Those revenues and other moneys include the
payments required to be made by the Company under the Agreement. The Bonds do not
constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the lssuer, or the
Commonwealth of Kentucky or any political subdivision thereof, and the holders or owners
thereof have no right to have taxes levied by the Commonwealth of Kentucky or the Issuer for
the payment of Debt Service on the Bonds.

4. Under existing federal statutes, decisions, regulations and rulings, the interest on
the Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners for federal income tax purposes
pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, except for interest on any Bond for any period during which
such Bond is held by a person who is a substantial user of the Project or a related person thereto
within the meaning of Section 147(a) of the Code and the regulations promulgated pursuant
thereto, and subject to continued compliance with the Tax Covenants. The interest on the Bonds
is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative
minimum taxes, but the interest on the Bonds is included in adjusted current earnings in
calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income for purposes of the corporate
alternative minimum tax. We express no opinion herein as to any other federal tax consequences
of acquiring carrying, owning or disposing of the Bonds.
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5. Under statutes, decisions, regulations and rulings existing on this date, the interest
on the Bonds is exempt from income taxation in the Commonwealth of Kentucky. This opinion
relates only to the tax exemption of interest from Kentucky income taxes.

We do not express any opinion herein as to the adequacy or accuracy of the Official
Statement of the Issuer, dated December 3, 2008, pertaining to the offering of the Bonds.

It is to be understood that the rights of the owners of the Bonds, as well as the rights of
the Issuer, the Trustee and the Underwriter, and the enforceability of the Bonds, the Agreement,
the Indenture and the Bond Purchase Agreement may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or
hereafter enacted and that the enforcement of the Bonds, the Agreement, the Indenture and the
Bond Purchase Agreement may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance
with general principles of equity. It is to be further understood that the rights of the owners of
the Bonds, as well as the rights of the Issuer, the Trustee and the Underwriter, and the
enforceability of the Bonds, the Agreement, the Indenture and the Bond Purchase Agreement
may be subject to the valid exercise of the constitutional powers of the Commonwealth of
Kentucky and the Untied States of America.

Sincerely,

FROST BROWN TODD LLC
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DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2009-00202
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 1009)(k)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 10(9)(k)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Form 1 (electric), Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission Form 2 (gas), or the Automated Reporting Management Information

System Report (telephone) and Public Service Commission Form T (telephone).

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky’s Form 1 and Form 2 for 2008 as filed with the Federal Energy

Regulatory Commission are attached.

Sponsoring Witness: Brenda R. Melendez




THIS FILING IS

ftem 1 An Initial (Original) OR [ Resubmission No.

Submission

FERC FINANCIAL REPORT

Form 1 Approved
OMB No. 1902-0021
(Expires 12/31/2011)
Form 1-F Approved
OMB No. 1902-0029
(Expires 12/31/2011)
Form 3-Q Approved
OMB No. 1902-0205
(Expires 1/31/2012)

FERC FORM No. 1: Annual Report of

Major Electric Utilities, Licensees
and Others and Supplemental

Form 3-Q: Quarterly Financial Report

These reports are mandatory under the Federal Power Act, Sections 3, 4(a), 304 and 309, and
18 CFR 141.1 and 141.400. Failure to report may result in criminal fines, civil penalties and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet — regulatory basis of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (the "Company") as
of December 31, 2008, and the related statements of income — regulatory basis; retained earnings —
regulatory basis; cash flows — regulatory basis, and accumulated other comprehensive income,
comprehensive income, and hedging activities — regulatory basis for the year ended December 31, 2008,
included on pages 110 through 123 of the accompanying Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Form 1.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basts for our opinion.

As discussed on page 123.1, these financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting
requirements of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System
of Accounts and published accounting releases, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, such regulatory-basis financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the assets,
liabilities, and proprietary capital of the Company as of December 31, 2008, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2008, in accordance with the accounting
requirements of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System
of Accounts and published accounting releases.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of the

Company and for filing with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

M*Mwﬁ

April 17, 2009

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



FERC FORM NO. 1/3-Q:
REPORT OF MAJOR ELECTRIC UTILITIES, LICENSEES AND OTHER

IDENTIFICATION
01 Exact Legal Name of Respondent 02 Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. End of 2008/Q4
03 Previous Name and Date of Change (if name changed during year)
/1
04 Address of Principal Office at End of Period (Street, City, State, Zip Code)
1697 A. Monmouth Street, Newport, KY 41071
05 Name of Contact Person 06 Titie of Contact Person
Theresa Miller Manager Accounting
(7 Address of Contact Person (Street, City, State, Zip Code)
526 S. Church Street, Charlotte, NC 28202
08 Telephone of Contact Person,/ncluding| 09 This Report Is 10 Date of Report
Area Code (1) [X] AnOriginal () [] A Resubmission (Mo, Da, Y1)
{704) 382-6084 /1

ANNUAL CORPORATE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

The undersigned officer certifies that:

| have examined this report and to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief ali statements of fact contained in this report are correct statements
of the business affairs of the respondent and the financial statements, and other financial information contained in this report, conform in all material
respects to the Uniform System of Accounts.

01 Name 04 Date Signed
David L. Hauser (Mo, Da, Yr)
02 Title C

Chief Executive & CFO A on

Title 18, U.5.C. 1001 makes it a crime for any person to knowingly and willingly to make to any Agency or Department of the United States any
false, fictitious or fraudulent statements as to any matter within its jurisdiction.

FERC FORM No.1/3-Q (REV. 02-04) Page 1



Name of Respondent (Igis Report Is: | I(Date of Rsp)od Year/Period of Report
An Origina Mo, Da, Yr 2008/Q4
End of
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc 2) DA Resubmission ! nd 0 L LUMbIeT

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility)

Enter in column (c) the terms "none," "not applicable," or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for
certain pages. Omit pages where the respondents are "none," “not applicable,” or "NA".

Line Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
No Page No
(a) (b) ()
1| General Information 101
2 | Contro! Over Respondent 102
3| Corporations Controlled by Respondent 103 NIA
4| Officers 104
5 | Directors 105
6 | iImportant Changes During the Year 108-109
7 | Comparative Balance Sheet 110-113
8] Statement of Income for the Year 114-117
9| Statement of Retained Earnings for the Year 118-119
10 | Statement of Cash Flows 120-121
11| Notes to Financial Statements 122-123
12 | Statement of Accum Comp income, Comp Income, and Hedging Activities 122(a)(b)
13| Summary of Utility Plant & Accumulated Provisions for Dep, Amort & Dep 200-201
14 | Nuclear Fuel Materials 202-203 N/A
151 Electric Plant in Service 204-207
16 | Electric Plant Leased to Others 213 N/A
17 | Electric Plant Held for Future Use 214 N/A
18 { Construction Work in Progress-Electric 216
19 | Accumutated Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant 219
20| Investment of Subsidiary Companies i 224-225 N/A
211 Materials and Supplies 227
22 | Allowances 228-229
23 | Extraordinary Property Losses 230 N/A
24 { Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 230 N/A
25| Transmission Service and Generation Interconnection Study Costs 231 N/A
26 | Other Regulatory Assets 232
27 | Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 233
28 | Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes 234
291 Capital Stock 250-251
301 Other Paid-in Capital 253
31| Capital Stock Expense 254 N/A
321 Long-Term Debt 256-257
33| Reconciliation of Reported Net Income with Taxable Inc for Fed Inc Tax 261
34| Taxes Accrued, Prepaid and Charged During the Year 262-263
35| Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits 266-267
36 | Other Deferred Credits 269

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) Page 2



Name of Respondent H\)is Re| g\rt l(s) . g\ﬁte Bf R$p)ort Year/Period of Report
n Origina o, Da, Yr End of 2008/Q4
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. ) DA Resubmission Iy ndo -

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility) (continued)

Enter in column (c) the terms "none,
certain pages. Omit pages where the respondents are “none,

" "not applicable," or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for
not applicable,” or "NA".

Line Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
No Page No.
(a) (b) {c)
37 | Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Accelerated Amortization Property 272-273 N/A
38 | Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Other Property 274-275
39 { Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Other 276-277
40| Other Regulatory Liabilities 278
41| Electric Operating Revenues 300-301 p. 302 is N/A
42 | Sales of Electricity by Rate Schedules 304
43| Sales for Resale 310-311
44 Electric Operation and Maintenance Expenses 320-323
45 | Purchased Power 326-327
46 | Transmission of Electricity for Others 328-330
47 | Transmission of Electricity by ISO/RTOs 331
48 | Transmission of Electricity by Others 332
49 | Miscellaneous General Expenses-Electric 335
50 | Depreciation and Amortization of Electric Plant 336-337
511 Regulatory Commission Expenses 350-351
52 | Research, Development and Demonstration Activities 352-353
53 | Distribution of Salaries and Wages 354-355
54 § Common Utility Plant and Expenses 356
55 | Amounts included in ISO/RTO Settlement Statements 397
56 | Purchase and Sale of Ancillary Services 398
57 | Monthly Transmission System Peak Load 400
58 { Monthly ISO/RTO Transmission System Peak Load 400a N/A
59 | Electric Energy Account 401
60 | Monthly Peaks and Qutput 401
61| Steam Electric Generating Plant Statistics 402-403
62 | Hydroelectric Generating Plant Statistics 406-407 N/A
63 | Pumped Storage Generating Plant Statistics 408-409 N/A
64 | Generating Plant Statistics Pagés 410-411 N/A
65 | Transmission Line Statistics Pages 422-423
66 | Transmission Lines Added During the Year 424-425 N/A

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96)

Page 3




Name of Respondent Lh)is Re %rt I(%' nal ?Nalte Sf R$p)ort Year/Period of Report
n Origina o, Da, Y1 2008/Q4
End of
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc @ DA Resubmission Iy ndo —
LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility) (continued)

Enter in column (c) the terms “none,” "not applicable," or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for
certain pages. Omit pages where the respondents are "none," "not applicable,” or "NA”

Line Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
No. Page No
(a) (b) (©)
67 | Substations 426-427
68 | Footnote Data 450

Stockholders' Reports Check appropriate box:
[] Four copies will be submitted

No annual report to stockholders is prepared

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) Page 4




Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (h An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) [0 A Resubmission I End of 2008/Q4

GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Provide name and titie of officer having custody of the general corporate books of account and address of
office where the general corporate books are kept, and address of office where any other corporate books of account
are kept, if different from that where the general corporate books are kept

Steven K. Young, Senior Vice President & Controller Other Corporate Books of Account:
526 South Church Street 139 East Fourth Street, Room 202
Charlotte, NC 28202 Cincinnati, OH 45202

2. Provide the name of the State under the laws of which respondent is incorporated, and date of incorporation
If incorporated under a special law, give reference to such law. If not incorporated, state that fact and give the type

of organization and the date organized.
Incorporated under the laws of The Commonwealth of Kentucky on March 20, 1901

3. If at any time during the year the property of respondent was held by a receiver or trustee, give (a) name of
receiver or trustee, (b) date such receiver or trustee fook possession, (¢) the authority by which the receivership or
trusteeship was created, and (d) date when possession by receiver or frustee ceased

Not Applicable

4. State the classes or utility and other services furnished by respondent during the year in each State in which
the respondent operated.

Kentucky - Gas & Electric

5 Have you engaged as the principal accountant to audit your financial statements an accountant who is not
the principal accountant for your previous year's certified financial statements?

(1) 1 Yes...Enter the date when such independent accountant was initially engaged:

(2) X] No

FERC FORM No.1(ED. 12-87) PAGE 101




Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. ) An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) [ A Resubmission I End of 2008/Q4

CONTROL OVER RESPONDENT

1. If any corporation, business trust, or similar organization or a combination of such organizations jointly held
control over the repondent at the end of the year, state name of controlling corporation or organization, manner in
which control was held, and extent of control. If control was in a holding company organization, show the chain
of ownership or control to the main parent company or organization. If control was held by a trustee(s), state
name of trustee(s), name of beneficiary or beneficiearies for whom trust was maintained, and purpose of the trust.

On April 3, 2006, Cinergy Corp. became a wholly owned subsidiary of Duke Energy Corporation. Cinergy Corp. is the parent company
of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. is the parent company of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) Page 102



ame o1 Kesponaent Ilms Re g\rt 18 o [?\j‘zte Bf Rsport Year/Period of Report
’ n Origina o, Da, YT
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc 22; A Resgbmission (/ / ) End of 2008/Q4

OFFICERS

1. Report below the name, title and salary for each executive officer whose salary is $50,000 or more. An “"executive officer” of a
respondent includes its president, secretary, treasurer, and vice president in charge of a principal business unit, division or function
(such as sales, administration or finance), and any other person who performs similar policy making functions.

2. If a change was made during the year in the incumbent of any position, show name and total remuneration of the previous
incumbent, and the date the change in incumbency was made.

Line Title Name of Officer Salary
No. for Year
{a) (b) (¢
1 | Chief Executive Officer James E. Rogers
2
3 | Senior Vice President, Tax Keith G. Butler
4
5 |Senior Vice President, Rates & Regulatory Accounting Myron L. Caldwell
6
7 }Vice President & Treasurer Stephen G De May
8
9 |Senior Vice President, Strategy & Planning Douglas F. Esamann
10
11 |Group Executive & Chief Financial Officer David L. Hauser
12
13 |President, effective 12/1/2008 Julia § Janson
14
15 | Group Executive and Chief Strat, Pol & Reg Officer B. Keith Trent )
16
17 |Senior Vice President & Controller Steven K. Young
18
19 {Group Executive & Chief Operating Officer James L. Turner
20
21 | Senior VP & Chief HR Officer, effective 11/10/2008 Jennifer L. Weber
22
23 | Senior VP, Power Delivery, effective 12/10/ 2008 Sandra P. Meyer
24
25 |Vice President & Chief Technology Officer David W. Mohler
26
27 |Senior Vice President, Wholesale Customers & Reg
28 Commodities Management, effective 12/10/2008 Paul R. Newton
29
30 |Senior Vice President & Chief Procurement Officer Ronald R. Reising
31 ‘
32 |Senior Vice President, Engineering & Tech Services John J. Roebel
33
34 |GrouP Executive & Chief Administration Officer Christopher C. Roffe
35 )
36 |Senior Vice President & Chief Communications Officer Cathy S. Roche
37
38 |Group Executive & Chief Legal Officer Marc E. Manly
39
40 [ Senior Vice President & Chief information Officer A.R. Mullinax
41
42 1Vice President, Accounting, effective 6/16/2008 James D. Wiles
43
44

“ERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) Page 104




Narme of Respondent
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc

This Report Is:
(1) An Original

(2) DA Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Y1)

i1

Year/Period of Report
End of 2008/Q4

DIRECTORS

1. Report below the information called for concerning each director of the respondent who held office at any time during the year Include in column (a}, abbreviated

titles of the direclors who are officers of the respondent
2. Designate members of the Executive Committee by a triple asterisk and the Chairman of the Executive Committee by a double asterisk

Tine
No

Name (an(d ;ritle) of Director
a

Principal Bu(%i?ess Address

David L. Hauser, Group Executive & CFO

526 South Church Street, Charlotte, NC 28201

James E. Rogers, President & CEO

526 South Church Street, Charlotte, NC 28201

James L. Turner, Group Executive & COO

526 South Church Street, Charlotte, NC 28201

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-95)
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Name of Respondent
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc

This Report Is:
(1) [X] An Original
(2) D A Resubmission

Date of Report
/1

Year/Period of Report
Endof _ 2008/04

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE QUARTER/YEAR

Commission authorization

were submitted to the Commission

reference to such authorization

appropriate, and the amount of obligation or guaran

proceedings culminated during the year.

11. (Reserved.)

occurred during the reporting period.

tee.

Give particulars (details) concerning the matters indicated below. Make the statements explicit and precise, and number them in
accordance with the inquiries. Each inquiry should be answered. Enter "none,
information which answers an inquiry is given elsewhere in the report, make a reference to the schedule in which it appears

1. Changes in and important additions to franchise rights: Describe the actual consideration given therefore and state from whom the
franchise rights were acquired. If acquired without the payment of consideration, state that fact.
2. Acquisition of ownership in other companies by reorganization, merger, or consolidation with other companies: Give names of
companies involved, particulars concerning the transactions, name of the Commission authorizing the transaction, and reference to

not applicable," or "NA" where applicable. if

3. Purchase or sale of an operating unit or system. Give a brief description of the property, and of the transactions relating thereto,
and reference to Commission authorization, if any was required. Give date journal entries called for by the Uniform System of Accounts

4. Important leaseholds (other than leaseholds for natural gas lands) that have been acquired or given, assigned or surrendered. Give
effective dates, lengths of terms, names of parties, rents, and other condition  State name of Commission authorizing lease and give

5. Important extension or reduction of transmission or distribution system: State {erritory added or relinquished and date operations
began or ceased and give reference to Commission authorization, if any was required. State also the approximate number of
customers added or lost and approximate annual revenues of each class of service. Each natural gas company must also state major
new continuing sources of gas made available to it from purchases, development, purchase contract or otherwise, giving location and
approximate total gas volumes available, period of contracts, and other parties to any such arrangements, etc.

6. Obligations incurred as a result of issuance of securities or assumption of liabilities or guarantees including issuance of short-term
debt and commercial paper having a maturity of one year or less. Give reference to FERC or State Commission authorization, as

7. Changes in articles of incorporation or amendments to charter: Explain the nature and purpose of such changes or amendments
8. State the estimated annual effect and nature of any important wage scale changes during the year.
9. State briefly the status of any materially important legal proceedings pending at the end of the year, and the results of any such

10. Describe briefly any materially important transactions of the respondent not disclosed elsewhere in this report in which an officer,
director, security holder reported on Page 106, voting trustee, associated company or known associate of any of these persons was a
party or in which any such person had a material interest.

12. If the important changes during the year relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report to stockholders are
applicable in every respect and furnish the data required by Instructions 1 to 11 above, such notes may be included on this page
13. Describe fully any changes in officers, directors, major security holders and voting powers of the respondent that may have

14. in the event that the respondent participates in a cash management program(s) and its proprietary capital ratio is less than 30
percent please describe the significant events or transactions causing the proprietary capital ratio to be less than 30 percent, and the
extent to which the respondent has amounts loaned or money advanced to its parent, subsidiary, or affiliated companies through a
cash management program(s). Additionally, please describe plans, if any to regain at feast a 30 percent proprietary ratio

PAGE 108 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SEE PAGE 109 FOR REQUIRED INFORM

ATION.
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report | Year/Period of Report
(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc (2) __ A Resubmission 11 2008/Q4
IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE QUARTER/YEAR (Continued)

1 None
2. None
3. None
4. None

5. there were no additions or reductions for Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc for the year 2008

6. In December 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky, inc. (Duke Energy Kentucky) refunded $50 million of tax-exempt auction
rate bonds through the issuance of $50 million of tax-exempt variable-rate demand bonds, which are supported by a
direct-pay letter of credit. The variable-rate demand bonds, which are due August 1, 2027, had an initial interest rate of

0.65% which is reset on a weekly basis.

In September 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky entered into a $330 million three-year letter of credit agreement with a
syndicate of banks, under which Duke Energy Kentucky may request the issuance of letters of credit up to $51 mitlion on
its behalf to support various series of variable rate demand bonds issued or to be issued on behalf of Duke Energy
Kentucky This credit facility, which is not part of Duke Energy's master credit facility, may not be used for any purpose

other than to support the variable rate demand bonds issued by Duke Energy Kentucky.
7. None

8 There were no wage scale changes during the year for non-union or union employees.
9. See Notes 2 & 14 of the "Notes to Financial Statements"”

10. None

11. [Reserved]

12. N/A

13. Duke Energy Kentucky, inc. Officer and/or Director Changes.

Resignations

Effective 10/8/2008
Kay Pashos, Vice President, Regulatory Strategy

Effective: 12/1/2008
Julia S. Janson, Senior Vice President & Corporate Secretary
David S. Maltz, Assistant Secretary

Effective: 12/8/2008
Brett C. Carter, Vice President, Customer Origination and Retention and Customer Service

Effective: 12/10/2008

Theopolis Holeman, Senior Vice President, Power Delivery

Sandra P. Meyer, President

Paul R. Newton, Senior Vice President, Legal and Assistant Secretary

Effective: 12/31/2008
Theopolis Holeman, Senior Vice President

IFERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) Page 109.1




Name of Respondent

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc

This Report is:
(1) X An Original
(2) __ A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
/1l

Year/Period of Report

2008/Q4

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE QUARTER/YEAR (Continued)

Appointments
Effective: 11/10/2008

John J. Finnigan, Vice President, Governmental and Regulatory Affairs
Kodwo Ghartey-Tagoe, Vice President, Legal and Assistant Secretary

Jennifer L. Weber, Chief Human Resources Officer and

Effective: 12/1/2008
Julia S. Janson, President
David S. Maltz, Vice President & Corporate Secretary

Effective: 12/8/2008

Senior Vice President

Gianna Manes, Senior Vice President, Retail Customer Services

Effective: 12/10/2008
Theopolis Holeman, Senior Vice President
Sandra P. Meyer, Senior Vice President, Power Delivery

Paul R. Newton, Senior Vice President, Wholesale Customers and Regulated Commodity Management

Robert J. Ringel, Assistant Corporate Secretary

14. N/A

[FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96)
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc (n An Original
(2) 1] A Resubmission

Date of Report Year/Period of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

I

End of 2008/Q4

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS)

Line Current Year Prior Year
No Ref End of Quarter/Year End Balance
Title of Account Page No Balance 12/31
@ (b) (© (d)
1 UTILITY PLANT R e
2 Utility Plant (101-106, 114) 200-201 1,476,192,847 1,450,696,556
3 Construction Work in Progress (107) 200-201 36,504,269 24,571,781
4 TOTAL Utility Plant (Enter Total of lines 2 and 3) 1,512,697,116 1,475,268,337
5 (Less) Accum Prov. for Depr Amort. Depl. (108, 110, 111, 115) 200-201 650,100,350 641,505,019
6 Net Utility Plant (Enter Total of line 4 iess §5) 862,596,766 833,763,318
7 Nuclear Fuel in Process of Ref , Conv ,Enrich , and Fab. (120.1) 202-203 0
8 Nuclear Fuel Materials and Assemblies-Stock Account (120.2) 0 0
9 Nuclear Fuel Assemblies in Reactor (120.3) 0 4]
10 | Spent Nuclear Fuel (120 4) 0 0
11 | Nuclear Fuel Under Capital Leases (120.6) 0 0
12 ] (Less) Accum. Prov. for Amort. of Nucl Fuel Assemblies (120.5) 202-203 0 0
13 | Net Nuclear Fuel (Enter Total of lines 7-11 less 12) 0 0
14 | Net Utility Plant (Enter Total of lines 6 and 13) 862,596,766 833,763,318
15 | Utility Plant Adjustments (116) 122 0
16 | Gas Stored Underground - Noncurrent (117)
17 QTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS G ': Sy
18 | Nonutility Property (121) 24,088,348
19 | (Less) Accum Prov. for Depr. and Amort (122) 11,380,953
20 |investments in Associated Companies (123) 0 0
21 Investment in Subsidiary Companies (123 .1) 224-225
22 | (For Cost of Account 123.1, See Footnote Page 224, line 42)
23 | Noncurrent Portion of Allowances 228-229
24 [ Other Investments (124)
25 | Sinking Funds (125) 0
26 | Depreciation Fund (126) 0
27 | Amortization Fund - Federal (127) 0
28 | Other Special Funds (128) 0
29 | Special Funds (Non Major Only) (129) 0
30 |Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets (175) 0
31 Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets — Hedges (176) 0
32 | TOTAL Other Property and investments (Lines 18-21 and 23-31) 13,546,401 16,506,020
33 CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS S e
34 | Cash and Working Funds {Non-major Only) (130) 0
35 [Cash (131) 11,765,815 9,299,011
36 | Special Deposits (132-134) 0 0
37 | Working Fund (135) 2,500 2,500
38 | Temporary Cash Investments (136) 0 0
39 | Notes Receivable (141) 0 0
40 | Customer Accounts Receivable (142) 4,829,524 1,728,806
41 | Other Accounts Receivable (143) 8,616,474 9,386,480
42 l(Less) Accum. Prov. for Uncollectible Acct -Credit (144) 432,105 314,686
43 | Notes Receivable from Associated Companies (145) 28,529,163 29,165,216
44 | Accounts Receivable from Assoc. Companies (146) 10,764,510 3,659,896
45 | Fuel Stock (151) 227 22,771,019 10,373,776
46 | Fuel Stock Expenses Undistributed (152) 227 0 0
47 | Residuals (Elec) and Extracted Products (153) 227 0 0
48 | Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (154) 227 9,113,870 8,809,328
43 | Merchandise (155) 227 0 0
50 | Other Materials and Supplies (156) 227 0 0
51 Nuclear Materials Held for Sale (157) 202-203/227 0 0
52 | Allowances (158.1 and 158 2) 228-229 4,782,941 7,063,735
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc (1) [XI An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
(2) [ A Resubmission 11 End of 2008/Q4
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITSjContinued)
Line Current Year Prior Year
No. Ref. End of Quarter/Year End Balance
Title of Account Page No. Balance 12/31
(a) {b) (c) (d)

53 | (Less) Noncurrent Portion of Allowances 2,522,500 3,797,125
54 | Stores Expense Undistributed (163) 227 1,160,098 431,577
55 | Gas Stored Underground - Current (164.1) 0 7,776,574
56 | Lliquefied Natural Gas Stored and Held for Processing (164.2-164 3) 0 0
57 | Prepayments (165) 5,818,858 16,775,371
58 |Advances for Gas (166-167) 0 0
59 |Interest and Dividends Receivable (171) 366,753 0
60 |Rents Receivable (172) 0 0
61 Accrued Utility Revenues (173) 0 0
62 {Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets (174) 9,825,521 0
63 | Derivative Instrument Assets (175) 177,801 0
64 [(Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Assets (175) 0 0
65 | Derivative Instrument Assets - Hedges (176) 459,514 0
66 |(Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Assets - Hedges (176 0 0
67 | Total Current and Accrued Assets (Lines 34 through 66) 116,028,756 100,360,459
68 DEFERRED DEBITS e e
69 | Unamortized Debt Expenses (181) 1,631,346 3,788,027
70 | Extraordinary Property Losses (182 1) 230 0 0
71 {Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs (182.2) 230 0 0
72 | Other Regulatory Assets (182.3) 232 22,801,592 8,559,097
73 {Prelim Survey and Investigation Charges (Electric) (183) 981,670, 881,958
74 | Preliminary Natural Gas Survey and [nvestigation Charges 183 1) 0 0
75 | Other Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (183.2) 0 0
76 {Clearing Accounts (184) 40,536 -167,246
77 | Temporary Facilities (185) -70,800 -47,318
78 | Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (186) 233 34,539,004 13,182,834
79 {Def Losses from Disposition of Utility Plt (187) 0 0
80 | Research, Devel and Demonstration Expend. (188) 352-353 0 0
81 Unamortized Loss on Reaquired Debt (189) 3,663,086 3,675,893
82 | Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (190) 234 19,000,108 12,553,285
83 | Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs (191) -2,404,683 2,118,314
84 | Total Deferred Debits (lines 69 through 83) 80,181,859 44,544,844
85 |TOTAL ASSETS (lines 14-16, 32, 67, and 84) 1,072,353,782 995,174,641
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) An Original (mo, da, yr)
(2) A Rresubmission I end of 2008/Q4
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
Line Current Year Prior Year
No A Ref. E£nd of Quarter/Year End Balance
Title of Account Page No Balance 12131
(a) (b) (©) (d)

1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 Common Stock Issued (201) 250-251 8,779,995 8,779,995
3 Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250-251 0 0
4 Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205) 252 0 0
5 Stock Liability for Conversion (203, 206} 252 0 0
6 Premium on Capital Stock (207) 252 18,838,946 18,838,946
7 Other Paid-In Capital (208-211) 253 148,655,189 148,655,189
8 Instaliments Received on Capital Stock {212) 252 0 0
9 (Less) Discount on Capital Stock (213) 254 0 0
10 | {Less) Capital Stock Expense (214) 254 0 0
11 | Retained Earnings {215, 215 1, 216) 118-119 217,750,813 210,269,761
12 | Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings (216.1) 118-119 0 0
13 | (Less) Reaquired Capital Stock (217) 250-251 0 0
14 Noncorporate Proprietorship (Non-major only) (218) 0 0
15 | Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (219} 122(a)(b) 0 -998,460
16 | Total Proprietary Capital (lines 2 through 15) 394,024,943 385,545,431
17 |LONG-TERM DEBT
18 | Bonds (221) 256-257 0 20,000,000
19 [ {Less) Reaquired Bonds (222) 256-257 0 0
20 ] Advances from Associated Companies (223) 256-257 0 0
21 | Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256-257 326,088,539 252,571,494
22 | Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225) 0 0
23 | (Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Debit (226) 585,584 648,090
24 | Total Long-Term Debt (lines 18 through 23) 325,502,955 271,923,404
25 | OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
26 | Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent (227) 10,606,658 13,346,763
27 | Accumulated Provision for Property Insurance (228.1) 0 0
28 | Accumutated Provision for Injuries and Damages (228.2) 0 0
29 | Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228 .3) 7,523,160 13,360,436
30 | Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provisions (228 .4) 2,019,334 2,019,334
31 | Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229) 7,517,628 0
32 | Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities 0 0
33 | Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges 7,903,269 1,626,157
34 | Asset Retirement Obligations (230) 6,390,326 6,179,300
35 | Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities (lines 26 through 34) 41,960,375 36,531,990
36 | CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
37 | Notes Payable (231) 0 0
38 | Accounts Payable (232) 36,463,667 28,900,871
39 | Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233) 3,241,044 27,470,089
40 {Accounts Payable to Associated Companies (234) 13,477,827, 26,429,344
41 | Customer Deposits (235) 6,348,465 5,358,369
42 | Taxes Accrued (236) 262-263 8,967,360 14,819,013
43 | interest Accrued (237) 4,803,361 3,568,991
44 | Dividends Declared (238) 0 0
45 | Matured Long-Term Debt (239) 0 0
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Name of Respondent This Report is Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc (1) An Original (mo, da, yr)
(2) [] A Rresubmission 11 end of 2008/Q4
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDIT@gntinued)
Line Current Year Prior Year
No Ref. End of Quarer/Year End Balance
Title of Account Page No Balance 12/31
(@) (b} (© (d)

46 | Matured Interest (240) 0 0
47 | Tax Collections Payable (241) 2,338,990 1,957,880
48 | Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) 7,327,220 3,661,519
49 | Obligations Under Capital Leases-Current (243) 2,519,251 1,741,738
50 | Derivative Instrument Liabilities (244) 41,901 0
51 (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities 0 0
52 | Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges (245) 7,903,269 1,626,157
53 | (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities-Hedges 7,903,269 1,626,157
54 | Total Current and Accrued Liabilities (lines 37 through 53) 85,529,086 113,907,814
55 |DEFERRED CREDITS
56 | Customer Advances for Construction (252) 1,674,369 1,948,099
57 | Accumulated Deferred investment Tax Credits (255) 266-267 4,518,749 5,581,056
58 | Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (256) 0 0
59 | Other Deferred Credits (253) 269 34,349,471 9,713,845
60 | Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) 278 1,531,763 2,529,146
61 | Unamortized Gain on Reaquired Debt (257) 0 0
62 {Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Accel. Amort.(281) 272-277 0 0
63 | Accum. Deferred income Taxes-Other Property (282) 168,386,313, 161,756,917
64 | Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other (283) 14,875,758 5,736,939
65 | Total Deferred Credits (lines 56 through 64) 225,336,423 187,266,002
66 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER EQUITY (lines 16, 24, 35, 54 and 65) 1,072,353,782 995,174,641
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc E;; DﬁnRgggg:jilssion (l)/lc;, Da. Y1) End of 2008/Q4
STATEMENT OF INCOME
Quarterly
1. Enter in column (d) the balance for the reporting quarter and in column (e} the balance for the same three month period for the prior year
2. Report in column (f) the quarter to date amounts for electric utility function, in column (h) the quarter to date amounts for gas utility, and in (j) the
quarter to date amounts for other utility function for the current year quarter.
3. Report in column (g) the quarter to date amounts for electric utility function, in column (i) the quarter to date amounts for gas utility, and in (k) the
quarter to date amounts for other utility function for the prior year quarter
4 {f additional columns are needed place them in a footnote
Annual or Quarterly if applicable
5. Do not report fourth quarter data in columns (e) and (f)
6. Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenues and Expenses from Utility Plant Leased to Others, in another utility columnin a similar manner to
a utility department. Spread the amount(s) over lines 2 thru 26 as appropriate {nclude these amounts in columns (c) and (d) totals
7. Report amounts in account 414, Other Utility Operating Income, in the same manner as accounts 412 and 413 above
8. Report data for lines 8, 10 and 11 for Natural Gas companies using accounts 404.1, 404.2, 404.3, 407.1 and 407 2.
Line Total Total Current 3 Months Prior 3 Months
No Current Year to Prior Year to Ended Ended
(Ref ) Date Balance for | Date Balance for | Quarterly Only Quarterly Only
Title of Account Page No Quarter/Year Quarter/Year No 4th Quarter No 4th Quarter
(a) (b) (c)
THUTILITY OPERATING INCOME & 3
2 | Operating Revenues {400) 300-301 500,129,281 430,610,673
3| Operating Expenses i e =
4| Operation Expenses (401) 320-323 360,209,369 350,401,369
5 [ Maintenance Expenses (402) 320-323 24,764,719 23,852,836
6 | Depreciation Expense (403) 336-337 35,147,534 34,346,152
7 | Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs (403.1) 336-337 49
8 Amort. & Depl. of Utility Plant (404-405) 336-337 2,314,793 2,439,306
9| Amort of Utility Plant Acq. Adj (406) 336-337
10| Amort. Property Losses, Unrecov Plant and Regulatory Study Costs (407)
11 ] Amort. of Conversion Expenses (407)
12 | Regulatory Debits (407 3) -1,755,647 1,398,166
13 | (Less) Regulatory Credits (407 .4)
14 | Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408 1) 262-263 7,216,421 11,192,992
15 Income Taxes - Federal (409 1) 262-263 7,159,047 17,374,215
16 - Other (409 1) 262-263 1,544,713 2,200,100
17 | Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.1) 234, 272-277 45,527,502 25,217,864
18 | (Less) Provision for Deferred income Taxes-Cr. {(411.1) 234, 272-277 34,547,608 18,778,800
19| investment Tax Credit Adj - Net (411 4) 266 213,376 219,736
20} (Less) Gains from Disp. of Utility Plant (411 6)
21| Losses from Disp. of Utility Plant (411.7)
22](Less) Gains from Disposition of Allowances (411 8) 148,946 1,202,928
23} Losses from Disposition of Allowances (411.9)
24} Accretion Expense (411.10) 561
25| TOTAL Utility Operating Expenses (Enter Total of lines 4 thru 24) 447,219,131 448,221,536
26 | Net Util Oper Inc (Enter Tot line 2 less 25) Carry to Pg117 line 27 52,910,150 42,389,137
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Name of Respondent 2’1h)is Re %rt ‘8 - ?N?te Bf Rsp)ort Year/Period of Report
n Origina 0. Da, ¥r End of 2008/Q4
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc @) DA Resubmission /] na o

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

9. Use page 122 for important notes regarding the statement of income for any account thereof

10. Give concise explanations concerning unsettled rate proceedings where a contingency exists such that refunds of a material amount may need to be
made to the utility's customers or which may result in material refund to the utility with respect to power or gas purchases. State for each year effected
the gross revenues or costs to which the contingency relates and the tax effects together with an explanation of the major factors which affect the rights
of the utility to retain such revenues or recover amounts paid with respect to power or gas purchases

11 Give concise explanations concerning significant amounts of any refunds made or received during the year resulting from settlement of any rate
proceeding affecting reverniues received or costs incurred for power or gas purches, and a summary of the adjustments made to balance sheet, income,
and expense accounts.

12. If any notes appearing in the report to stokholders are applicable to the Statement of Income, such notes may be included at page 122

13. Enter on page 122 a concise explanation of only those changes in accounting methods made during the year which had an effect on net income,
including the basis of aliocations and apportionments from those used in the preceding year. Also, give the appropriate dollar effect of such changes
14. Explain in a footnote if the previous year's/quarter's figures are different from that reported in prior reports

15. if the columns are insufficient for reporting additional utility departments, supply the appropriate account titles report the information in a footnote to
this schedule

ELECTRIC UTILITY GAS UTILITY OTHER UTILITY
Current Year to Date | Previous Year to Date Current Year to Date | Previous Year to Date | Current Year o Dale | Previous Year o Date | Line
(in doflars) (in dollars) (in doliars) (in dollars) {in doltars) {in dollars) No.

(9) (h) (i)

: ‘ = ”‘?*"x & ' e @?ﬁ !

, e e I

234 309 913 230 693, 811 125,899 456 119, 707 558 4

22,673,576 21,878,712 2,091,143 1,974,124 5

27,503,270 27,350,123 7,644,264 6,996,029 6

49 7

1,681,043 1,826,458 633,750 612,848 8

9

10

11

611,421 2,123,863 -2,367,068 -725,697 12

13

5,410,470 7,642,095 1,805,951 3,550,897 14

2,849,807 18,695,941 4,309,240 -1,321,726 15

549,347 2,338,572 995,366 -138,472 16

34,614,369 20,448,869 10,913,133 4,768,995 17

19,249,704 14,697,446 15,297,904 4,081,354 18

-138,047 -143,846 -75,329 75,890 19

20

21

148,946 1,202,928 22

23

561 24

310,667,129 316,954,224 136,552,002 131,267,312 25

45,175,610 32,988,625 7,734,540 9,400,512 26
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Name of Respondent This Reportis: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc 8; DQ"Rgg’Sé'ﬁi'ssion ("/"‘; Da, Y1) End of 2008/Q4
STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (continued)
Line TOTAL Current 3 Months |  Prior 3 Months
No. Ended Ended
(Ref) Quarterly Only Quartery Only
Title of Account Page No | Current Year | Previous Year| No 4th Quarter No 4th Quarter
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e} U
27 | Net Utility Operating income {Carried forward from page 114) 52,910,150 42,389,137
28 | Other Income and Deductions g?“";f %;,., o e
29| Other Income : e
30 | Nonutilty Operating Income @g‘;«s”@ S e
31} Revenues From Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415) 379,722 633,881
32 |(Less) Costs and Exp. of Merchandising, Job. & Contract Work (416) 89,576 355,992
33 {Revenues From Nonutility Operations (417) 509,869 17,643
34 | (Less) Expenses of Nonutility Operations (417 1) 10,823
35 [ Nonoperating Rental Income {418) -1,142,007 -559,232
36 | Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) 119
37 | Interest and Dividend income (419) 4,020,483 3,655,723
38 | Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction {419.1) 778,340 218,940
39 | Miscellaneous Nonoperating income (421) 60,435 329,403
40 | Gain on Disposition of Property (421.1) 65,449
41| TOTAL Other Income (Enter Total of fines 31 thru 40) 4,571,892 3 940,366
42| Other Income Deductions e R
43 | Loss on Disposition of Property (421.2)
44 | Miscellaneous Amortization (425) 340
45} Donations (426.1) 340 53,137 54,277
46| Life Insurance (426 2)
47| Penalties (426 3) 663 6,093
48| Exp. for Cerain Civic, Political & Related Activities (426 4) 148,001 8,658
49| Other Deductions (426.5) 1,315,979 2,322,522
50 | TOTAL Other Income Deductions {Total of lines 43 thru 49) 1,517,780
51| Taxes Applic. to Other Income and Deductions nei A
52 | Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408 2) 262-263 258,355 396 230
53 Hncome Taxes-Federal (409.2) 262-263 3,810,212 5,986,624
54 lincome Taxes-Other (409.2) 262-263 687,027 164,193
55 | Provision for Deferred Inc Taxes (410.2) 234, 272-277 528,766 1,008,488
56 | {Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes-Cr {411.2) 234, 272-277 3,906,359 1,962,382
57 | Investment Tax Credit Adj -Net (411.5) 563,515 -564,901
58 | (Less) Investment Tax Credits {420)
59 TOTAL Taxes on Other Income and Deductions {Total of lines 52-58) 814,486 6,944,996
60 | Net Other Income and Deductions (Total of lines 41, 50, 59) 2,239,626 8, 493 812
61| interest Charges el
62 | interest on Long-Term Debt (427) 14,870,411 14,961,582
63 | Amort. of Debt Disc. and Expense {428) 260,459 424,688
64 | Amortization of Loss on Reaquired Debt (428.1) 302,126 181,428
65| (Less) Amort. of Premiumn on Debt-Credit {429)
66 | (Less) Amortization of Gain on Reaquired Debt-Credit (429 1)
67 | Interest on Debt to Assoc Companies (430) 340 82,070 949,091
68 | Other Interest Expense (431) 340 2,647,239 1,371,033
69 |{Less) Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Cr. (432) 493,581 474,224
70| Net [nterest Charges (Total of lines 62 thru 69) 17,668,724 17,413,598
71 | Income Before Extraordinary Items (Total of fines 27, 60 and 70) 37,481,052 33,469,351
72 | Extraordinary ltems e e
73| Extraordinary Income (434)
74 | (Less) Extraordinary Deductions (435)
75 | Net Extraordinary ltems (Total of line 73 less line 74)
76 | Income Taxes-Federal and Other (409.3) 262-263
77 | Extraordinary items After Taxes (line 75 less line 76)
78 Net income (Total of fine 71 and 77) 37,481,052 33,469,351
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, In (1) [X]An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) End of 2008/Q4
uke Energy Kentucky, Inc (2) DA Resubmission 11
STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS

1. Do not report Lines 49-563 on the quarterly version.

2. Report all changes in appropriated retained earnings, unappropriated retained eamings, year to date, and unappropriated

undistributed subsidiary earnings for the year.

3. Each credit and debit during the year should be identified as to the retained earnings account in which recorded (Accounts 433, 436
- 439 inclusive). Show the contra primary account affected in column (b)

4. State the purpose and amount of each reservation or appropriation of retained earnings.

5. List first account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings, reflecting adjustments to the opening balance of retained earnings. Foliow

by credit, then debit items in that order.
6. Show dividends for each class and series of capital stock.

7. Show separately the State and Federal income tax effect of items shown in account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings.

8. Explain in a footnote the basis for determining the amount reserved or appropriated. If such reservation or appropriation is to be
recurrent, state the number and annual amounts to be reserved or appropriated as well as the totals eventually to be accumulated
9. If any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are applicable to this statement, include them on pages 122-123.

Current Previous
Quarter/Year Quarter/Year
Contra Primary Year to Date Year to Date
Line ltem Account Affected Balance Balance
No (a) B (b) (c}
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 216) = aa e
1] Balance-Beginning of Period > 210,2
2| Changes Ny = TERE
3] Adjustments to Retained Earnings (Account 439) : = e
4
5
6
7
8
9] TOTAL Credits to Retained Earnings (Acct. 439)
10
11
12
13
14| FAS 158 Remeasurement { 164,697)
15] TOTAL Debits to Retained Earnings (Acct. 439) { 164,697)
16| Batance Transferred from Income (Account 433 less Account 418.1) 37,481,052 33,469,351
17} Appropriations of Retained Eamings (Acct. 436) o
18
19
20
21
22| TOTAL Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Acct. 436)
23| Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Account 437) 2 7
24
25
26
27
28
29{ TOTAL Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Acct. 437)
30 Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Account 438)
31
32
33
34
35} December 2008 Common Stock Dividends Declared -30,000,000
36} TOTAL Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Acct. 438) -30,000,000
37} Transfers from Acct 216.1, Unapprop. Undistrib. Subsidiary Earnings
38| Balance - End of Period (Total 1,9,15,16,22,29,36,37) 217,750,813 210,269,761
APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 215)
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Name of Respondent 1;his Re '(l)\rt IS ina I?\?te Bf R$port Year/Period of Report
n Origina o, Da, Yr
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. EZ; [:|A ResSbmission (/ / ) End of M
STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS

1. Do not report Lines 49-53 on the quarterly version.

2. Report all changes in appropriated retained earnings, unappropriated retained earnings, year to date, and unappropriated

undistributed subsidiary earnings for the year.

3. Each credit and debit during the year should be identified as to the retained earnings account in which recorded (Accounts 433, 436

- 439 inclusive). Show the contra primary account affected in column (b)
4. State the purpose and amount of each reservation or appropriation of retained earnings.

5. List first account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings, reflecting adjustments to the opening balance of retained earnings. Follow

by credit, then debit items in that order.
6. Show dividends for each class and series of capital stock.

7. Show separately the State and Federal income tax effect of items shown in account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings

8. Explain in a footnote the basis for determining the amount reserved or appropriated. If such reservation or appropriation is to be
recurrent, state the number and annual amounts to be reserved or appropriated as well as the totals eventually to be accumulated
9. If any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are applicable to this statement, include them on pages 122-123.

Current Previous
Quarter/Year Quarter/Year
Contra Primary Year to Date Year to Date
Line tem lAccount Affected Balance Balance
No (a) (b) (¢} (d)

39

40

41

42

43

44

45] TOTAL Appropriated Retained Earnings (Account 215)

APPROP. RETAINED EARNINGS - AMORT. Reserve, Federal (Account 215.1) o Lo % S

46} TOTAL Approp. Retained Earnings-Amort. Reserve, Federal (Acct. 215.1)

47| TOTAL Approp. Retained Earnings (Acct. 215, 215.1) (Total 45,46)

48] TOTAL Retained Earnings (Acct 215, 215 1, 216) (Total 38, 47) (216.1) 217,750,813 210,269,761
UNAPPROPRIATED UNDISTRIBUTED SUBSIDIARY EARNINGS (Account ER e e e
Report only on an Annual Basis, no Quarterly e e

49| Balance-Beginning of Year (Debit or Credit)

501 Equity in Earnings for Year (Credit) (Account 418.1)

51} (Less) Dividends Received (Debit)

52

53| Balance-End of Year (Total lines 49 thru 52)
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Name of Respondent
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc

This Report Is:
(1) An Original
(2) DA Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

11

Year/Period of Report
End of 2008/Q4

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(1) Codes to be used.(a) Net Proceeds or Payments;(b)Bonds. debentures and other fong-term debt, (c} include commercial paper, and (d) ldentify separately such items as

investments, fixed assets, intangibles, etc

(2) Information about noncash investing and financing activities must be provided in the Notes to the Financial statements Also provide a reconciiiation between "Cash and Cash

Equivalents at End of Period” with related amounts on the Balance Sheet

(3) Operating Activities - Other. Include gains and losses peraining to operating activities only. Gains and losses pertaining to investing and financing activities should be reported

in those activities. Show in the Notes to the Financials the amounts of interest paid (net of amount capitalized) and income taxes paid

(4) Investing Activities: Include at Other (line 31) net cash outflow to acquire other companies Provide a reconciliation of assets acquired with liabilities assumed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements Do not include on this statement the dollar amount of leases capitalized per the USofA General Instruction 20; instead provide a recongiliation of the

doilar amount of leases capitalized with the plant cost

Line
No

Description (See Instruction No. 1 for Explanation of Codes)

(@

Current Year to Date

Quarter/Year

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Net income (Line 78(c) on page 117)

Noncash Charges (Credits) to Income:

Depreciation and Depletion

Previous Year to Date
Quarter/Year

Amortization of

PLANT ITEMS

2,314,793

2,439,306

AMORT OF DEBT DISCOUNT PREMIUM,EXP LOSS ON REACQ. DEBT

562,585

606,116

VNI D] AW N -

Deferred Income Taxes (Net)

7,602,301

5,485,170

©w

Investment Tax Credit Adjustment (Net)

-776,891

-784,637

10

Net (Increase) Decrease in Receivables

-11,464,264

-10,857,589

1"

Net (Increase) Decrease in Inventory

-4,157,367

1,610,861

12

Net (Increase) Decrease in Allowances Inventory

2,280,794

5,406,368

Net Increase (Decrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses

-613,402

18,809,866

14

Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Regulatory Assets

-7,753,555

352,123

15

Net Increase (Decrease) in Other Regulatory Liabilities

-224,383

2,529,146

(Less) Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction

778,340

218,940

17

(Less) Undistributed Earnings from Subsidiary Companies

18

Other (provide details in footnote):

4,939,642

-14,153,003

19

20

21

22

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (Totat 2 thru 21)

64,560,548

79,040,290

23

24

Cash Flows from Investment Activities.

25

Construction and Acquisition of Plant (including land):

26

Gross Additions to Utility Plant (less nuclear fuel)

-58,203,732

-55,666,715

27

Gross Additions to Nuclear Fuel

28

Gross Additions to Common Utility Plant

-3,608,450

-8,750,487

29

Gross Additions to Nonutility Plant

30

(Less) Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction

-778,340

-218,940

31

Other (provide details in footnote):

32

33

34

Cash Qutflows for Plant {Total of lines 26 thru 33)

-61,033,842

35

36

Acquisition of Other Noncurrent Assets (d)

37

Proceeds from Disposal of Noncurrent Assets (d)

38

39

Investments in and Advances to Assoc. and Subsidiary Companies

40

Contributions and Advances from Assoc. and Subsidiary Companies

41

Disposition of investments in (and Advances to)

42

Associated and Subsidiary Companies

43

44

Purchase of Investment Securities (a)

45

Proceeds from Sales of Investment Securities (a)
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Name of Respondent
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc.

This Report is.
1) An Original
(2) DA Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

11

Year/Period of Report
End of 2008/Q4

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(1) Codes to be used:(a) Net Proceeds or Payments,(b)Bonds. debentures and other long-term debt; (¢) include commercial paper; and (d) |dentify separately such items as

investments, fixed assets, intangibles, etc

(2) Information about noncash investing and financing activities must be provided in the Notes to the Financial statements Also provide a reconciliation between "Cash and Cash

Equivalents at End of Period" with related amounts on the Balance Sheet

(3) Operating Activities - Other. include gains and losses pertaining to operating activities only. Gains and losses pertaining to investing and financing activities should be reported

in those aclivities Show in the Notes to the Financials the amounts of interest paid (net of amount capitalized) and income taxes paid

(4) Investing Activities. Include at Other (line 31) net cash outflow to acquire other companies Provide a reconciliation of assets acquired with liabilities assumed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements. Do not inciude on this statement the dollar amount of leases capitalized per the USofA General Instruction 20, instead provide a reconciliation of the

doltar amount of leases capitalized with the plant cost

Line Description (See Instruction No. 1 for Explanation of Codes)

N
° (@)

Current Year to Date
Quarter/Year
(b)

Previous Year to Date
Quarter/Year
()

46 [Loans Made or Purchased

47 |Collections on Loans

48

49 {Net (Increase) Decrease in Receivables

50 |Net (Increase ) Decrease in inventory

51 |Net (Increase) Decrease in Allowances Held for Speculation

52 iNet Increase (Decrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses

53 {Other (provide details in footnote).

54

55

56 {Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

57 |Total of lines 34 thru 55)

58

59 |Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

60 {Proceeds from Issuance of.

61 ]Long-Term Debt (b)

62 |Preferred Stock

63 |Common Stock

64 |Other (provide details in footnote).

-150,364

65 [Capital Contributions From Partners

3,150,000

66 [Net Increase in Short-Term Debt (c)

67 |Other (provide details in footnote):

68

69

70 {Cash Provided by Outside Sources (Total 61 thru 69)

123,517,045

2,999,636

71

72 |Payments for Retirement of

70,000,000

73 |Long-term Debt (b)

74 |Preferred Stock

75 {Common Stock

76 |Other (provide details in footnote): -24,229,045 -15,132,882
771 Premium payments and fees on deferred debt -347,902

78 [Net Decrease in Short-Term Debt (c)

79

80 {Dividends on Preferred Stock

81 |Dividends on Common Stock

-30,000,000

82 {Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

83 |(Total of lines 70 thru 81)

-1,059,902

-12,133,246

84

85 |Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

86 {(Total of lines 22,57 and 83)

87

88 |Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period

89

90 [Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of period

11,768,315

9,301,511
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FOOTNOTE DATA

ISchedule Page: 120 Line No.: 18 Column:b
Other:

Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs

Prepayments

Clearing Accounts

Misc Current and Accrued Assets

Derivative Instrument Assets

Miscellaneous Deferred Debits

Obligations Under Capital Leases - Non-current
Accumulated Provisions

Customer Advances for Construction

Other Deferxed Credits

Temporary Facilities

Net Utility Plant and Non Utility Property
Cost of Removal

Deferred Income Taxes

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Derivative Instruments Liabilities
Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges
Debt Expenses

Derivative Instrument Liabilities-Hedges

Schedule Page: 120 _ Line No.: 18 Column:c
Other: ) B o
Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs

Prepayments

Clearing Accounts

Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets
Miscellaneous Deferred Debits

Obligations under Capital Leases-Non-current
Accumulated Provisions

Customer Advances for Construction

Other Deferred Credits

Contribution to Company Sponsored Pension Plan
Temporary Facilities

Net Utility Plant and Nonutility Property
Cost of Removal

Deferred Income Taxes

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Derivative Instruments

Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges
Debt Expenses

Derivative Instrument Liabilities-Hedges
Other Investments

FAS158 change in measurement date

Total Other Assets

Schedule Page: 120 Line No.: 64 Column:c

33,472  Financing setup fee for new revolver
111,244 Premium payments

5,648 Remarketing Fees
150,364

[Schedule Page: 120 Line No.: 76 _Column:b

4,522,997
10,410,065
(207,782)
(9,825,521)
(637,315)
(4,826,588)
(2,740,105)
1,680,352
(273,730)
8,106,255
23,482
1,303,901
(1,234,472)
(3,579,180)
(853,529)
265,101
(99,712)
2,017,311
888,112
4,939,642

(1,348,858)
(8,368,939)
129,592
429,956
9,783,328
1,151,700
147,046
(166,899)
(4,465,087)
(9,695,552)
(145,427)
1,716,024
(1,840,127)
(1,066,827)
(257,174)
(429, 956)
(85,287)
120,268
402,913
1,000
(164,697)

(14,153,003)

Moneypool - Net Intercompany Borrowing

iSchedule Page: 120 Line No.: 76  Column: ¢
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Moneypool - Net Intercompany Borrowing

lgchedule Page: 120 Line No.: 30 Column: b

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest {net of amount capitalized)
Income taxes

Non-cash financing and investing activities:

Allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) - equity component
Accrued capital expenditures

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the period for.
Interest (net of amount capitalized)
Income taxes

Non-cash financing and investing activities:
Equity contribution from parent company for acquisition of net generating assets
Allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) ~ equity component
Accrued capital expenditures

12 Mths Ended
Dec 31, 2008
(in thousands)

$ 17,010
$ 14,143
$ 778
S 5789
" 12 Mths Ended
Dec 31, 2007
(in thousands)
3 16,669
$ 6912
$ -
5 219
$ 2885
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Use the space below for important notes regarding the Balance Sheet, Statement of Income for the year, Statement of Retained
Earnings for the year, and Statement of Cash Flows, or any account thereof. Classify the notes according to each basic statement,
providing a subheading for each statement except where a note is applicable to more than one statement

2. Furnish particulars (details) as to any significant contingent assets or liabilities existing at end of year, including a brief explanation of
any action initiated by the Internal Revenue Service involving possible assessment of additional income taxes of material amount, or of
a ctaim for refund of income taxes of a material amount initiated by the utility. Give also a brief explanation of any dividends in arrears
on cumulative preferred stock.

3. For Account 116, Utility Plant Adjustments, explain the origin of such amount, debits and credits during the year, and plan of
disposition contemplated, giving references to Cormmission orders or other authorizations respecting classification of amounts as plant
adjustments and requirements as to disposition thereof

4. Where Accounts 189, Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt, and 257, Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt, are not used, give
an explanation, providing the rate treatment given these items. See General Instruction 17 of the Uniform System of Accounts

5. Give a concise explanation of any retained earnings restrictions and state the amount of retained earnings affected by such
restrictions

6. If the notes to financial statements relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report to the stockholders are
applicable and furnish the data required by instructions above and on pages 114-121, such notes may be included herein.

7. For the 3Q disclosures, respondent must provide in the notes sufficient disclosures so as to make the interim information not
misleading. Disclosures which would substantially duplicate the disclosures contained in the most recent FERC Annual Report may be
omitted.

8. For the 3Q disclosures, the disclosures shall be provided where events subsequent to the end of the most recent year have occurred
which have a material effect on the respondent. Respondent must include in the notes significant changes since the most recently
completed year in such items as’ accounting principles and practices; estimates inherent in the preparation of the financial statements;
status of long-term contracts; capitalization including significant new borrowings or modifications of existing financing agreements; and
changes resulting from business combinations or dispositions. However were material contingencies exist, the disclosure of such
matters shall be provided even though a significant change since year end may not have occurred.

9. Finally, if the notes to the financial statements relating to the respondent appearing in the annual report to the stockholders are
applicable and furnish the data required by the above instructions, such notes may be included herein.

PAGE 122 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SEE PAGE 123 FOR REQUIRED INFORMATION,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

This Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) Form 1 represents the financial statements of Duke Energy
Kentucky, Inc. at December 31, 2008. Duke Energy Kentucky's financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with the requirements of the FERC as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published accounting
releases, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles. The
following areas represent the significant differences between the Uniform System of Accounts and generally accepted
accounting principles: (1) the presentation of significant non-cash transactions, (2) the presentation of current and
non-current portions of long-term debt, preferred stock and other liabilities, (3) the presentation of extraordinary
deductions, (4) the presentation of removal costs, and (5) the presentation of deferred gains related to emission allowance
transactions.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that the current and non-current portions of long-term debt,
preferred stock and other liabilities be appropriately identified and reported on the Balance Sheet. FERC requires that
these items be reported as set forth in the Uniform System of Accounts and published accounting releases, which does not
recognize any segregation between the current and non-current portions of these items for reporting purposes.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that public business enterprises report certain information about
operating segments in complete sets of financial statements of the enterprise and certain information about their products
and services, which are not included in the FERC reporting purposes. The item reported differently due to these
guidelines is the non-current portion of profits from wholesale power sales to be shared with customers, reported as a
deferred credit per GAAP and as a current liability per FERC.

FERC requires that losses of unusual nature and infrequent occurrence, which would significantly distort the current
year's income, be recorded as extraordinary deductions.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that removal costs for property that does not have an associated legal
retirement obligation be presented as a liability on the Balance Sheet. These costs are presented as accumulated
depreciation on the Balance Sheet for FERC reporting purposes. The portion of accumulated depreciation related to
removal costs was $37 million at December 31, 2008 and $31 million at December 31, 2007.

On May 25, 2007, in Docket No. Al07-2-000, the FERC issued accounting and financial reporting guidance related to the
implementation of FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109" (FIN 48). Duke Energy Kentucky reflected this guidance beginning with the 2007 FERC Form |
filed in 2008, as required.

Duke Energy Kentucky's Notes to Financial Statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, certain footnotes are not reflective of Duke Energy Kentucky's Financial Statements
contained herein.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations. Duke Energy Kentucky, a Kentucky corporation organized in 1901, is a combination electric and gas public utility company that
provides service in northern Kentucky. Duke Energy Kentucky's principal lines of business include generation, transmission and distribution of electricity as well
as the sale of and/or transportation of natural gas. Duke Energy Kentucky's common stock is wholly owned by Duke Energy Ohio, an Ohio corporation
organized in 1837, which is wholly owned by Cinergy Corp. (Cinergy), a Delaware corporation organized in 1993.
On April 3, 2006, Duke Energy Corporation (Old Duke Energy) and Cinergy merged into wholly owned subsidiaries of Duke Energy Holding Corp
(Duke Energy HC), resuiting in Duke Energy HC becoming the parent enfity. In connection with the closing of the merger transactions, Duke Energy HC
changed its name to Duke Energy Corporation (New Duke Energy or Duke Energy) and Old Duke Energy converted into a limited liability company named Duke
Power Company LLC (subsequently renamed Duke Energy Carolinas LLC effective Octaber 1, 2006). As a result of the merger transactions, each outstanding
share of Cinergy common stock was converted into 1.56 shares of common stock of New Duke Energy, which resulted in the issuance of approximately 313
million shares of Duke Energy common stock. Both Old Duke Energy and New Duke Energy are referred to as Duke Energy herein. Duke Energy is a public
registrant trading on the New York Stock Exchange under DUK.
The assets and liabilities of Duke Energy Kentucky were not adjusted to reflect their fair values as of the merger date since push-down accounting is
not required by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (GAAP)
These statements reflect Duke Energy Kentucky's proportionate share of the East Bend generating station which is jointly owned with Dayton Power &
Light.
Use of Estimates. To conform to GAAP in the United States (U.S ), management makes estimates and assumptions thal affect the amounts reporied in
the Financial Statements and Notes. Although these estimates are based on management's best available knowledge at the time, actual results could differ
Cash and Cash Equivalents. All highly fiquid investments with remaining maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase are considered cash

equivalents
Inventory. Inventory consists primarily of coal held for electric generation, materials and supplies and natural gas held in storage for {ransmission and

sales commitments. Inventory is recorded primarily using the average cost method.

Components of Inveatory

December 31,
2008 2007

December 31,

{in thousands)

Coal held for electric generation $ 18,445 [3 9,010
Materials and supplies 13,360 9.241
Natural gas 1,240 9,140

Total inventory $ 33,045 $ 27,391

Effective November 1, 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky executed agreements with a third party to transfer title of naturai gas inventory purchased by Duke
Energy Kentucky to the third party. Under the agreements, the gas inventory will be stored and managed for Duke Energy Kentucky and will be delivered on
demand. The gas storage agreements will expire on October 31, 2009, uniess extended by the third party for an additional 12 months. As a result of the
agreements, the commitment from a third party to provide natural gas inventory of approximately $10 million as of December 31, 2008 has been classified as
Other within Current Assets on the Balance Sheets. At December 31, 2008, this balance exceeded 5% of {otal curent assets

Cost-Based Regulation, Duke Energy Kentucky accounts for certain of its regulated operations under the provisions of SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (SFAS No. 71). The economic effects of regulation can result in a regulated company recording assets for costs that
have been or are expected {o be approved for recovery from customers in a future period or recording liabilities for amounts that are expected to be retumed to
customers in the rate-setting process in a period different from the period in which the amounts would be recorded by an unregulated enterprise. Accordingly,
Duke Energy Kentucky records assets and liabilities that resuit from the regulated ratemaking process that would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated
entities. Regulatory assets and liabilities are amortized consistent with the treatment of the related costs in the ratemaking process. Management continually
assesses whether regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by considering factors such as applicable regulatory changes, recent rate orders applicable
to other regulated entities and the status of any pending or potential deregulation legislation. Additionally, management continually assesses whether any
regulatory liabilities have been incurred. Based on this continual assessment, management believes the existing regulatory assets are probable of recovery and
that no regulatory liabilities, other than those recorded, have been incurred. These regulatory assets and liabilities are primarily classified in the Balance Sheels
as Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits, and Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities. Duke Energy Kentucky periodically evaluates the applicability of SFAS
No. 71, and considers factors such as regulatory changes and the impact of competition. if cost-based regulation ends or competition increases, Duke Energy
Kentucky may have {o reduce its asset balances to reflect a market basis less than cost and write off their associated regutatory assets and liabilities For further

information see Note 2.
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In order to apply the accounting provisions of SFAS No. 71 and record regulatory assets and liabilities, the scope criteria in SFAS No. 71 musi be met
Management makes significant judgments in determining whether the scope criteria of SFAS No 71 are met for its operations, including determining whether
revenue rates for services provided to customers are subject to approval by an independent, third-party regulator, whether the regulated rates are designed o
recover specific costs of providing the regulated service, and a determination of whether, in view of the demand for the regulated services and the level of
competition, it is reasonable to assume that rates set at levels that will recover the operations’ costs can be charged to and collected from customers. This final
criterion requires consideration of anticipated changes in levels of demand or competition, direct and indirect, during the recovery period for any capitalized
costs. If facts and circumstances change so that a portion of Duke Energy Kentucky's regulated operations meet all of the scope criteria set forth in SFAS No
71 when such criteria had not been previously met, SFAS No. 71 would be reapplied to all or a separable portion of the operations. Such reapplication includes
adjusting the balance sheet for amounts that meet the definition of a regulatory asset or regulatory liability of SFAS No. 71

Accounting for Risk Management and Hedging Activities and Financial Instruments. All derivative instruments not designated and qualifying for the
normal purchases and normal sales exception under SFAS No 133, *Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended (SFAS
No 133), are recorded on the Balance Sheet at their fair value
Since Duke Energy Kentucky receives regulatory treatment for derivatives related to its native load, those mark-to-market gains and losses associated

with those derivative contracts are reflected as reguiatory assets or regulatory liabilities on the Balance Sheets

Cash Flow and Fair Value Hedges Changes in the fair value of a derivative designated and qualified as a cash flow hedge, to the extent effective, are
included in the Statements of Common Stockholder's Equity and Comprehensive Income as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (AOCH) until
earnings are affected by the hedged item. Duke Energy Kentucky discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it has determined that a derivative no
longer qualifies as an effective hedge, or when it is no longer probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will occur. When hedge accounting is discontinued
because the derivalive no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, the derivative is subject to the Mark-to-Market modetl of accounting (MTM Model) prospectively
Gains and losses related to discontinued hedges that were previously accumulated in AOC! will remain in AOCH until the underlying contract is reflected in
earnings, unless it is probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will not occur at which time associated deferred amounts in AQCI are immediately

recognized in current earnings.

Valuation Quoted market prices or prices obtained through external sources are used to measure a contract’s fair value

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at the lower of historical cost less accumulated depreciation or fair value, if
impaired. Duke Energy Kentucky capitalizes all construction-related direct labor and material costs, as well as indirect construction costs. Indirect costs include
general engineering, taxes and the cost of funds used during construction. The cost of renewals and betterments that extend the useful life of property, plant and
equipment are also capitalized. The cost of repairs, replacements and major maintenance projects, which do not extend the useful life or increase the expected
output of property, plant and equipment, is expensed as incurred. Depreciation is generally computed over the asset's estimated useful life using the straight-line
method. The composite weighted-average depreciation rate was 2 6% for both 2008 and 2007 Depreciation studies are conducted periodicaily to update the
composite rates and are approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission (KPSC) Also, see “Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC),”

discussed below

When Duke Energy Kentucky retires its regulated property, plant and equipment, it charges the original cost plus the cost of retirement. less salvage value,
{o accumulated depreciation and amortization When it seils entire regulated operating units, the costis removed from the properly account and the reiated
accumulated depreciation and amortization accounts are reduced Any gain or loss is recorded in earnings. unless otherwise required by the applicable

regulatory body (See Note 11)

Asset Retirement Obligations. Duke Energy Kentucky recognizes asset retirement obligations (ARO's) in accordance with SFAS No. 143, “Accounting
For Asset Retirement Obligations” (SFAS No. 143), for legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition,
construction, development and/or normal use of the asset and FIN No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations” (FIN 47), for conditional
ARO's. The term conditional asset retirement obligation as used in SFAS No. 143 and FIN 47 refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in
which the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform
the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and (or) method of settlement. Thus, the timing and (or) method of
settiement may be conditional on a future event. Both SFAS No. 143 and FIN 47 require that the present value of the projected liability for an ARO be
recognized in the period in which it is incurred, if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The present value of the liability is added to the carrying
amount of the associated asset. This additional carrying amount is then depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. See Note 5 for further

information.

Unamortized Debt Premium, Discount and Expense. Premiums, discounts and expenses incurred with the issuance of outstanding tong-term debt are
amortized over the terms of the debt issues. Any call premiums or unamortized expenses associated with refinancing higher-cost debt obligations {o finance
regulated assets and operations are amortized consistent with regulatory treatment of those items, where appropriate. The amortization expense is recorded as
a component of interest expense in the Statements of Operations and is reflected as Depreciation and amortization within Net cash provided by operating
activities on the Statements of Cash Flows

Loss Contingencies. Duke Energy Kentucky is involved in certain legal and environmental matiers that arise in the normat course of business. Loss
contingencies are accounted for under SFAS No. §, “Accounting for Contingencies” (SFAS No. 5). Under SFAS No. 5, contingent losses are recorded when it is
determined that it is probable that a foss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. When a range of the probable loss exists and no
amount within the range is a better estimate than any other amount, Duke Energy Kentucky records a loss contingency at the minimum amount in the range
Unless otherwise required by GAAP, legal fees are expensed as incurred. See Note 14 for further information

Environmental Expenditures. Duke Energy Kentucky expenses environmental expenditures related (o conditions caused by past operations that do not
generate current or future revenues. Environmental expenditures related to operations that generate current or future revenues are expensed or capitalized, as
appropriate. Liabilities are recorded on an undiscounted basis when the necessity for environmental remediation becomes probable and the costs can be
reasonably estimated, or when other potential environmentai liabilities are reasonably estimable and probabie

Revenue Recognition and Unbilled Revenue, Revenues on sales of electricity and gas are recognized when either the service is provided or the product
is delivered. Unbilled revenues are estimated by applying an average revenue per kilowatt hour or per thousand cubic feet (Mcf) for ail customer classes to the
number of estimated kilowatt hours or Mcf's delivered but not billed. The amount of unbilled revenues can vary significantly from period 1o period as a result of
factors, including seasonality, weather, customer usage patterns and customer mix. The receivables for unbilled revenues of approximately $26 million and $25
million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, related to retail accounts receivable at Duke Energy Kentucky are included in the sales of accounts

receivable to Cinergy Receivables Company, LLC (Cinergy Receivables). See Note 10 for additional information.

[FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-88) Page 123 3




Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report | Year/Period of Report

(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (2) __ A Resubmission N 2008/Q4
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC). AFUDC, which represents the estimated debt and equity costs of capital funds necessary 1o
finance the construction of new reguiated facilities, consists of two components, an equity component and an interest component. The equity component is a
non-cash item. AFUDC is capitalized as a component of Property, Plant and Equipment cost, with offsetting credits to the Statements of Operations. After
construction is completed, Duke Energy Kentucky is permitted to recover these costs through inclusion in the rate base and in the depreciation provision. The
total amount of AFUDC included in the Statements of Operations was $1 million in 2008. The total amount of AFUDC included in the Statements of Operations
was less than $500 thousand in 2007.

Accounting For Purchases and Sales of Emission Allowances. Emission allowances are issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at zero
cost and permit the holder of the allowance to emit certain gaseous by-products of fossil fuel combustion, including sulfur dioxide (SOg3) and nitrogen oxide

(NOx) Allowances may also be bought and sold via third parly transactions or consumed as the emissions are generated Allowances allocated 1o or acquired

by Duke Energy Kentucky are held primarily for consumption. Duke Energy Kentucky records emission allowances as Intangible Assets on its Balance Sheels
and recognizes the aliowances in earnings as they are consumed or sold. Any gains or losses on sales of recoverable emission aliowances are retumed to
customers via profit sharing mechanism riders included in the rate structure of the regulated entity and are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability. Purchases
and sales of emission allowances are presented gross as investing activities on the Statements of Cash Flows

income Taxes. The taxable income of Duke Energy Kentucky is reflected in Duke Energy's U.S. federal and state income tax returns. Duke Energy
Kentucky has a tax sharing agreement with Duke Energy, where the separate return method is used to allocate tax expenses and benefits to the subsidiaries
whose investments or results of operations provide these tax expenses and benefits. The accounting for income taxes essentially represents the income taxes
that Duke Energy Kentucky would incur if Duke Energy Kentucky were a separate company filing its own federal tax return as a C-Corporation.

Management evaluates and records contingent tax fiabilities and related interest based on the probability of ultimately sustaining the tax deductions or
income positions. Management assesses the probabilities of successfully defending the tax deductions or income positions based upon statutory, judicial or
administrative authority

Management evaluates and records uncertain tax positions in accordance with FIN 48, “Accounting For Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of
FASB Statement 109" (FIN 48), which was adopted by Duke Energy Kentucky on January 1, 2007. Duke Energy Kentucky records unrecognized tax benefits for
positions taken or expected to be taken on tax returns, including the decision to exclude certain income or transactions from a return, when a
more-fikely-than-not threshold is met for a tax position and management believes that the position will be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities.
Management evaluates each position based solely on the technical merits and facts and circumstances of the position, assuming the position will be examined
by a taxing authority having full knowledge of all relevant information. In accordance with FIN 48, Duke Energy Kentucky records the fargest amount of the
unrecognized tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settiement or effective settlement. Management considers a tax position
effectively settied for the purpose of recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits when the following conditions exist: (i) the taxing authority has completed
its examination procedures, including all appeals and administrative reviews that the taxing authority is required and expected to perform for the tax positions, (ii)
Duke Energy Kentucky does not intend to appeal or litigate any aspect of the tax position included in the completed examination, and (iii} it is remote that the
taxing authority would examine or reexamine any aspect of the tax position. See Note 4 for further information

Duke Energy Kentucky recards, as it relates {0 taxes, interest expense as Interest Expense and interest income and penalties in Other Income and
Expenses, net. in the Statements of Operations.

New Accounting Standards. The following new accounting standards were adopted by Duke Energy Kentucky during the year ended December 31, 2008
and the impact of such adoption, if applicable, has been presented in the accompanying Financial Statements:

SFAS No 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS No. 157). Refer to Note 7 for a discussion of Duke Energy Kentucky's adoption of SFAS No. 157
SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assefs and Financial Liabilities- including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (SFAS No 159)

Refer to Note 7 for a discussion of Duke Energy Kentucky's adoption of SFAS No 159
FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FIN 39-1, “Amendment of FASB Interpretation No 39, Offsetting of Amounts Related fo Certain Contracts” (FSP No FIN

39-1). The impact of adopting FSP FIN 39-1 was not significant in 2008.
The following new accounting standards were adopted by Duke Energy Kentucky during the year ended December 31, 2007 and the impact of such

adoption, if applicable, has been presented in the accompanying Financial Statements:

SFAS No 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financral instruments—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140" (SFAS No. 155). In February
2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, which amends SFAS No 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and SFAS No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” SFAS No. 155 ailows financial instruments that have embedded
derivatives to be accounted for at fair value at acquisition, at issuance, or when a previously recognized financial instrument is subject to a remeasurement (new
basis) event, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, in cases in which a derivative would otherwise have to be bifurcated. SFAS No. 165 was effective for Duke
Energy Kentucky for all financial instruments acquired, issued, or subject to remeasurement after January 1. 2007. and for certain hybrid financial instruments
that have been bifurcated prior to the effective date, for which the effect is to be reported as a cumulative-effect adjustment to beginning retained earnings  The
adoption of SFAS No. 155 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy Kentucky's results of operations, cash flows or financial position.
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SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets—an amendment of FASB Statement No 140" (SFAS No. 156). in March 20086, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 156, which amends SFAS No. 140. SFAS No. 156 requires recognition of a servicing asset or liability when an entity enlers into arrangements
to service financial instruments in certain situations. Such servicing assets or servicing liabilities are required to be initially measured at fair value, if practicable
SFAS No. 156 also allows an entity to subsequently measure its servicing assets or servicing liabilities using either an amortization method or a fair value
method. SFAS No 156 was effective for Duke Energy Kentucky as of January 1, 2007, and must be applied prospectively, except that where an entity elects to
remeasure separately recognized existing arrangements and reclassify certain available-for-sale securities to trading securities, any effects must be reporled as
a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings. The adoption of SFAS No. 156 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy Kentucky's results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.

SFAS No 158, “Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No 87, 88, 106.
and 132(R)" (SFAS No 158). in October 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No 158, which changes the recognition and disclosure provisions and measurement date
requirements for an employer's accounting for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans. The recognition and disclosure provisions require an
employer to (1) recognize the funded status of a benefit plan—measured as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the benefit obligation—in its
statement of financial position, (2) recognize as a component of other comprehensive loss, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that
arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost, and (3) disclose in the notes to financial statements certain additional
information. SFAS No. 158 does not change the amounts recognized in the income statement as net periodic benefit cost. Duke Energy Kentucky recognized
the funded status of its defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans and provided the required additional disclosures as of December 31, 2006. The
adoption of SFAS No. 158 recognition and disclosure provisions resulted in an increase in regulatory assets of approximately $22 million and an increase in
liabilities of approximately $22 million as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy Kentucky's
results of operations or cash flows

Under the measurement date requirements of SFAS No 158, an employer is required to measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the
date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position (with limited exceptions). Historically, Duke Energy Kentucky has measured its plan assets
and obligations up to three months prior to the fiscal year-end, as allowed under the authoritative accounting literature. Duke Energy Kentucky adopted the
change in measurement date effective January 1, 2007 by remeasuring pian assets and benefit obligations as of that date. pursuant to the transition
requirements of SFAS No. 158. In the first quarter of 2007, the changes in plan assets and plan obligations between the September 30, 2006 and December 31,
2006 measurement dates not related to net periodic benefit cost was required to be recognized, net of tax, as a separate adjustment of the opening balance of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (AOCH) and regulatory assets. This adjustment was not material. During the second quarter of 2007, Duke
Energy Kentucky completed these calculations. The finalization of these actuarial calculations resulted in an insignificant adjustment to AOCI and regulatory
assets.

The adoption of SFAS No 158 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy Kentucky's results of operations or cash flows

FIN 48 In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which provides guidance on accounting for income tax positions about which Duke Energy Kentucky has
concluded there is a level of uncertainty with respect to the recognition of a tax benefit in Duke Energy Kentucky’s financial statements. FIN 48 prescribes the
minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet. Tax positions are defined very broadly and include not only tax deductions and credits but also
decisions not to file in a particular jurisdiction, as well as the taxabiiity of transactions. Duke Energy Kentucky adopted FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007 See
Note 4 for additional information

FASB Staff Position (FSP) No FIN 48-1, Definition of “Settlement” in FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FSP No. FIN 48-1) n May 2007. the FASB staff
issued FSP No. FIN 48-1 which ciarifies the conditions under FIN 48 that should be met for a tax position 1o be considered effectively settled with the taxing
authority. Duke Energy Kentucky's adoption of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007 was consistent with the guidance in this FSP
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2. Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. Duke Energy Kentucky's regulated operations apply the provisions of SFAS No. 71. Accordingly, Duke Energy Kentucky
records assets and liabilities that result from the regulated ratemaking process that would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated entities. See Note 1 for
further information.

Duke Energy Kentucky’s Regulatory Assets and Liabilities:

Recovery/Refund
As of December 31, Period Ends
2008 2007
{(in thousands)
Requlatory Assets(@)(b)
Accrued pension and post retirement $ 29,149 $ 12,517 (@)
Merger Costs 2,319 3,278 (e)
i h
Vacation accrual(n) 2,349 1624 2009
Storm cost deferrals 4,913 @)
Hedge Costs and Other Deferrals 10,236 2009
Unamortized costs of reacquiring debt() 3,663 3,676 2025
Other 4,706 3415 9
Totai Regulatory Assets $ 57,335 3 24 510
Requlatory Liabilities(@)
d)(k
Removal costs(d)(k) s 33,208 5 31,372 o)
- e)(k
Amounts due from Customers — Income Taxes(e)(k) 1,554 1.756 (@)
- c )
Over-recovery of fuel costs(¢) 7,696 2009
ik
Other()(k) 117 680 (@)
Total Regulatory Liabilities 5 42,575 $ 33.808

(a) Allregulatory assets and fiabilities are excluded from rate base unless otherwise noted.
(b) Included in Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits on the Balance Sheet unless otherwise noted

(c) Included in Accounts payable on the Balance Sheet

(d} Included in rate base

(e) Recovery/refund is over the life of the associated asset or liability.
(f)  Liability is extinguished over the lives of the associated assets.

(g) Recovery/Refund period currently unknown

(h) Included in Other within Current Assets on the Balance Sheet

()  The current portion of the amounts in the other category are included in accounts payable on the balance sheet.
(i) Included in Deferred Debt Expense on the Balance Sheets

(k) Included in Regulatory Liabilities within Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities on the Balance Sheels
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Regulatory Merger Approvals. As discussed in Note 1, on Aprit 3, 2006, the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy was consummated to create a
newly formed company, Duke Energy Holding Corp (subsequently renamed Duke Energy Corporation). As a condition {o the merger approval, the Kentucky
Public Service Commission (KPSC) required that certain merger related savings be shared with consumers in Kentucky . The commission also required Duke
Energy Kentucky to meet additiona! conditions. Key elements of these conditions include:

« The KPSC required that Duke Energy Kentucky provide $8 million in rate reductions to its customers over five years, ending when new raies are
established in the next rate case after January 1, 2008. Approximately $2 million of the rate reduction was passed through to customers during each of

the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.
- The FERG approved the merger without conditions

Restrictions on the Ability of Duke Energy Kentucky to Make Dividends, Advances and Loans to Duke Energy Corporation. As a condition of the
Duke Energy and Cinergy merger approval, the state utility commissions imposed conditions (the Merger Conditions) on the ability of Duke Energy Kentucky to
transfer funds to Duke Energy through loans or advances, as well as restricted amounts available to pay dividends to Duke Energy. Pursuant to the Merger
Conditions, Duke Energy Kentucky is required 1o pay dividends solely out of retained earnings and to maintain a minimum of 35% equity in its capitai structure

Franchised Electric and Gas.
Rate Related Information. The KPSC approves rates for retail electric and gas services within the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The FERC approves rates

for electric sales to wholesale customers served under cost-based rates.

Duke Energy Kentucky Gas Rate Cases. In 2002, the KPSC approved Duke Energy Kentucky's gas base rate case which included, among other things,
recovery of costs associated with an accelerated gas main replacement program. The approval authorized a tracking mechanism to recover certain costs
including depreciation and a rate of return on the program’s capital expenditures The Kentucky Attomey General appealed to the Franklin Circuit Court the
KPSC's approval of the tracking mechanism as well as the KPSC's subsequent approval of annual rate adjustments under this tracking mechanism. In 2005,

both Duke Energy Kentucky and the KPSC requested that the court dismiss these cases.

In February 2005, Duke Energy Kentucky fited a gas base rate case with the KPSC requesting approval to continue the tracking mechanism and for a $14
million annual increase in base rates. A portion of the increase is attributable to recovery of the current cost of the accelerated gas main replacement program in
base rates. In June 2005, the Kentucky General Assembly enacted Kentucky Revised Statue 278.509 (KRS 278.509), which specifically authorizes the KPSC to
approve tracker recovery for utilities’ gas main replacement programs. In December 2005, the KPSC approved an annual rate increase of $8 million and
re-approved the tracking mechanism through 2011. In February 2006, the Kentucky Attorney General appealed the KPSC's order to the Frankiin Circuit Court,
claiming that the order improperly aliows Duke Energy Kentucky to increase its rates for gas main replacement costs in between general rate cases, and also
claiming that the order improperly allows Duke Energy Kentucky ta earn a return on investment for the costs recovered under the tracking mechanism which

permits Duke Energy Kentucky to recover its gas main replacement costs

In August 2007, the Frankiin Circuit Court consolidated all the pending appeals and ruled that the KPSC lacks legal authority to approve the gas main
replacement tracking mechanism, which were approved prior to the enactment of KRS 278.509. To date, Duke Energy Kentucky has collected approximately $9
million in annual rate adjustments under the tracking mechanism. Per the KPSC order, Duke Energy Kentucky collected these revenues subject to refund
pending the final outcome of this litigation. Duke Energy Kentucky and the KPSC have requested that the Kentucky Court of Appeals grant a rehearing of its
decision. On February 5, 2009, the Kentucky Court of Appeals denied the rehearing requests of both Duke Energy Kentucky and the KPSC. Duke Energy
Kentucky filed a motion for discretionary review to the Kentucky Supreme Court on March 9, 2009. At this time, Duke Energy Kentucky cannot predict whether
the Kentucky Supreme Court will accept the case for review.

Duke Energy Kentucky Electric Rate Case. In May 2006, Duke Energy Kentucky filed an application for an increase in its base electric rates of
approximately $67 million in revenue, or approximately 28 percent, to be effective in January 2007 pursuant to the KPSC's 2003 Order approving the transfer of
1,100 MW of generating assets from Duke Energy Ohio to Duke Energy Kentucky. [n the fourth quarter of 2006, the KPSC approved the settlement agreement
resolving alf the issues raised in the proceeding. Among other things, the settlement agreement provided for a $49 million increase in Duke Energy Kentucky's
base electric rates and reinstitution of the fuel cost recovery mechanism, which had been frozen since 2001 The setllement agreement also provided for Duke
Energy Kentucky to obtain KPSC approval for a back-up power supply plan. in January 2007, Duke Energy Kentucky filed a back-up power supply plan with the
KPSC. The plan provided for Duke Energy Kentucky to purchase back-up power through bilateral contracts for unscheduled outages. Duke Energy Kentucky will
recover these costs through base rates. The plan provided for Duke Energy Kentucky to purchase back-up power through the Midwest independent System
Operator, Inc. (Midwest [SO) energy markets for unscheduled outages The KPSC issued an arder in March 2007 approving Duke Energy Kenlucky's back-up
power supply plan

Energy Efficiency. On November 15, 2007, Duke Energy Kentucky filed its annual application to continue existing energy efficiency programs, consisting
of nine residential and two commercial and industrial programs, and to true-up its gas and electric tracking mechanism for recovery of lost revenues, program
costs and shared savings On February 11, 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky filed a motion to amend is energy efficiency programs and applied to reinstitute a low
income Home Energy Assistance Program. The KPSC bifurcated the proposed Home Energy Assistance Program from the other energy efficiency programs
On May 14, 2008, the KPSC approved the energy efficiency programs. On September 25, 2008, the KPSC approved Duke Energy Kentucky's Home Energy
Assistance program, making it available for customers at or below 150% of the federal poverty level. On December 1, 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky filed an
appfication for a new save-a-watt Energy Efficiency Plan. The application seeks a new energy efficiency recovery mechanism similar to what was proposed in

Ohio. An evidentiary hearing with the KPSC is expected to occur in the third quarter of 2009
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Other Franchised Electric and Gas Matters

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc. (Midwest ISQ) Resource Adequacy Filing. On December 28, 2007, the Midwest 1SQ filed
its Electric Tariff Filing Regarding Resource Adequacy in compliance with the FERC's request of Midwest ISO to file Phase Il of its long-term Resource
Adequacy plan by December 2007. The proposal includes establishment of a resource adequacy requirement in the form of planning reserve margin. On
March 26, 2008, the FERC ruled on the Midwest ISO's Resource Adequacy filing and ordered that the new Module E tariff be effective March 27, 2008. This
action established a Midwest i1SO-wide resource adequacy requirement for the first Planning Year, which begins June 2009 . In the Order, the FERC, among
other things, clarified that States have the authority to set thelr own Planning Reserve Margins, as long as they are not inconsistent with any reliability standard

approved by the FERC.

Midwest ISO's Establishment of an Ancillary Services Market. On February 25, 2008, the FERC conditionally accepted the Midwest 1SO proposal to
implement a day-ahead and real-time anciliary services market (ASM), including a scarcity pricing proposal. By approving the ASM proposal, the FERC
essentially approved the transfer and consolidation of Balancing Authority for the entire Midwest 1ISO area. This will allow the Midwest ISO to determine
operating reserve requirements and procure operating reserves from all qualified resources from an organized market, in place of the current system of local
management and procurement of reserves by the 24 Balancing Authorities. The Midwest I1SO delayed the ASM launch date, previously scheduled for

September 9, 2008 to January 6, 2009

Other Matters.

Application for the Establishment of a Regulatory Asset. On November 14, 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky petitioned the KPSC for permission to create
a regulatory asset to defer, for fulure recovery, approximately $5 million for its expenses incurred to repair damage and restore service to its customers following
extensive storm-refated damage caused by Hurricane ke on September 14, 2008. The KPSC approved the requested accounting order on January 7. 2009

3. Joint Ownership of Generating Facilities
Duke Energy Kentucky and Dayton Power & Light jointly own an electric generating unit
Duke Energy Kentucky’s share in the jointly-owned plant included on the December 31, 2008 Balance Sheet was as follows:
Ownership Property, Plant, Accumuiated Construction Work
Share and Equipment Depreciation in Progress

(in thousands)

Duke Energy Kentucky

Production:

$ 422,532 % 4,652
East Bend Station 690 $ 219,411

Duke Energy Kentucky's share of revenues and operating costs of the above jointly owned generating facilities are included within the corresponding line

on the Statements of Operations. Each participant in the jointly owned facilities must provide its own financing
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4. Income Taxes

The following details the components of income tax expense:
income Tax Expense

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

(in thousands)

Current income taxes

Federal $ 10,889 11,387

State 2,217 2,364

Total current income

a
taxes(a) 13,106 13,751

Deferred income taxes
Federal 6,634 4,559
State

1,063 927

Total deferred income taxes

7,697 5,486

Investment tax credit amortization 777) (785)
Total income tax expense presented

in Statements of Operations $ 20,026 5 18.452

(a) Inciuded are FIN 48 benefits relating primarily to certain temporary differences of approximately $95 thousand for 2008 and no amount for 2007
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Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense at the U.S. Federal Statutory Tax Rate to the Actual Tax Expense (Statutory Rate Reconciliation)

Year Ended
December 31, 2008

Income fax expense, computed at $
the statutory rate of 35%

State income tax, net of
federai income tax effect

Depreciation and other PP&E
related differences

ITC amortization
Manufacturing Deduction
Other items, net

Total income tax expense
from

continuingoperations

Effective Tax Rates

Year Ended
December 31, 2007

(in thousands)

20,128
$ 18,173
2,132
2,139
51 173
(777) (785)
{1,305) @77
(203) 771y
$20,026
$ 18,452
34.8% 35.5%

The manufacturing deduction was created by the American Job Creation Act of 2004 (the Act). The Act provides a deduction for income from qualified
domestic production activities During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Act provided for a 6% deduction on qualified production activities
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Net Deferred Income Tax Liability Components

Deferred credits and other liabilities

Other

Totail deferred income tax assets

investments and other assets

Accelerated depreciation rates

Regulatory assels and deferred debits

Total deferred income fax liabilities

Total net deferred income tax liabilities

The above amounts have been classified in the Balance Sheets as follows:

Net Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

Current deferred tax assets/(liabilities), included in other current assets/(liabilities)

Non-current deferred tax liabilities

Total net deferred income tax liabilities

As of December 31,

2008 2007

(in thousands)

696| 3 6,273

8,741 3,250

9,437 9,523

9,178 6,164

164,930 159,444

(315) (1,144)

173,793 164,464

(164,356)| $ (154,941)

As of December 31,
2008 2007

{(in thousands)

7495 § 1,626

(171,851) (153,315)

(164,356)1 $ (154,941)
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Changes to Unrecognized Tax Benefits

2008 2007
Increasel/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
(in thousands) {in thousands)
Unrecognized Tax Benefits ~ January 1 $ 252 . $ 420 R
Unrecognized Tax Benefits Changes
Gross increases — tax positions in prior periods ] 0
Gross decreases—tax positions in prior periods {252) (10)
Gross increases - current period tax positions 0 0
Settlements 0 (158)
Total Changes (252) (168}
Unrecognized Tax Benefits ~ December 31 $ 9. $ __252

At December 31, 2008, and December 31, 2007, no portion of the total unrecognized tax benefits would, if recognized, affect the effective tax rate
During the years ended December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, Duke Energy Kentucky recognized net interest income of approximately $224 thousand
and net interest expense of approximately $215 thousand, respectively. At December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, Duke Energy Kentucky had
approximately $529 thousand and $305 thousand, respectively, of interest receivable which reflects all interest refated to income taxes, and no amount has been
accrued for the payment of penallies in the Balance Sheets.
Duke Energy Kentucky has the following tax years open.

Jurisdiction Tax Years
Federal 2000 and after
State Closed through 2001, with the exception of any adjustments related to open federal years

5. Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations, which represent legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain tangible long-lived assets, are computed as the
present value of the projected costs for the future retirement of specific assets and are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred, if a reasonable
estimate of fair value can be made. The present value of the liability is added to the carrying amount of the associated asset in the period the liability is incurred
This additional carrying amount is then depreciated over the life of the asset. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability is adjusted for any revisions to the
estimated future cash flows associated with the asset retirement obligation (with corresponding adjustments to property, plant and equipment), which can occur
due to a number of factors including, but not limited to, cost escalation, changes in technology applicable {o the assets to be retired and changes in federal, state
or local regulations, as well as for accretion of the liability due to the passage of time until the obligation is settled. Depreciation expense is adjusted

prospectively for any increases or decreases to the carrying amount of the associated asset.

Asset retirement obligations at Duke Energy Kentucky relate primarily to the retirement of gas mains, asbestos abatement at certain generating siations
and closure and post-closure activities of landfills. In accordance with SFAS No 143, Duke Energy Kentucky identified certain assets that have an indeterminate
life, and thus the fair value of the retirement obligation is not reasonably estimable. These assets include transmission pipelines. A liability for these asset

retirement obligations will be récorded when a fair value is determinable.

The following table presents the changes to liability associated with asset retirement obligations during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Reconciliation of Asset Retirement Obligation Liability

Years Ended
December 31,

2008 2007

{in thousands)
Balance as of January 1, $ 6,179 $ 8,266
Accretion expense 345 466
Liabilities settled(3) (134} (2.553)
Balance as of December 31, $ 6390 $ 6179

(a) Liabilities settled are related to the retirement of gas mains.

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 143, Duke Energy Kentucky's regufated eleciric and regulated natural gas operations classifies remaoval costs for properly that does
not have an associated legal retirement obligation as a regulatory liability, in accordance with regufatory treatment under SFAS No. 71, The total amount of
removal costs included in Regulatory Liabilities within Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities on the Balance Sheets was $33 million and $31 million as of

December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively
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6. Risk Management and Hedging Activities and Credit Risk

Duke Energy Kentucky has limited exposure to market price changes of fuel and emission allowance costs incurred for its retail customers due to the use
of cost tracking and recovery mechanisms in the state of Kentucky Duke Energy Kentucky does have exposure to the impact of market fluctuations in the prices
of electricity, fuel and emission allowances associated with its generation output not utilized to serve native load or committed load (off-system, wholesale power
sales). Exposure to interest rate risk exists as a resuit of the issuance of variable and fixed rate debt. Duke Energy Kentucky employs established policies and
procedures to manage its risks associated with these market fluctuations using various commodity and financial derivative instruments, including swaps, futures.
forwards and options

Interest Rate (Fair Value or Cash Flow) Hedges. Changes in interest rales expose Duke Energy Kentucky to risk as a result of its issuance of variable
and fixed rate debt Duke Energy Kentucky manages its interest rate exposure by limiting its variable-rate exposures to a percentage of total capitalization and
by monitoring the effects of market changes in interest rates. Duke Energy Kentucky also enters into financial derivative instruments, including, but not limited
to, interest rate swaps, swaptions and U S. Treasury lock agreements to manage and mitigate interest rale risk exposure. Duke Energy Kentucky’s existing
interest rate derivative instruments and related ineffectiveness were insignificant to its results of operations, cash flows and financial position in 2008 and 2007

Credit Risk. Where exposed to credit risk, Duke Energy Kentucky analyzes the counterparties’ financial condition prior to entering into an agreement,

establishes credit limits and monitors the appropriateness of those limits on an ongoing basis.

Duke Energy Kentucky's industry has historically operated under negotiated credit lines for physical delivery contracts Duke Energy Kentucky may use
master collateral agreements to mitigate certain credit exposures. The coliateral agreements provide for a counterparty to post cash or letters of credit to the
exposed party for exposure in excess of an established threshold. The threshold amount represents an unsecured credit limit, determined in accordance with the

carporate credit policy. Collateral agreements aiso provide that the inability to post collateral is sufficient cause to terminate contracts and liquidate all positions
Duke Energy Kentucky aiso obtains cash or letters of credit from customers to provide credit support outside of collateral agreements, where appropriate,

based on its financial analysis of the customer and the regulatory or contractual terms and conditions applicable to each transaction

7. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

On January 1, 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky adopted SFAS No. 157. Duke Energy Kentucky's adoption of SFAS No. 157 is currently limited to financial
instruments and to non-financial derivatives as, in February 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. 157-2, which delayed the effective date of SFAS No. 157 until
January 1, 2009 for non-financial assets and liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair vaiue in the financial statements on a recurring
basis. There was no cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings for Duke Energy Kentucky as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 157

SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP in the U.S. and expands disclosure requirements about fair
value measurements. Under SFAS No. 157, fair value is considered to be the exchange price in an orderly transaction between market participants to sell an
asset or transfer a liability at the measurement date. The fair value definition under SFAS No. 157 focuses on an exil price. which is the price that would he
received by Duke Energy Kentucky to sell an asset or paid {o transfer a liability versus an entry price, which would be the price paid to acquire an assel or
received to assume a liability. Although SFAS No. 157 does not require additional fair value measurements, it applies to other accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements. In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 157-3, which illustrated key considerations in determining the fair
value of a financial asset when the market for that asset is not active. The application of FSP FAS 157-3 did not change the way Duke Energy Kentucky
determined fair value of its financial assels and liabilities.

Duke Energy Kentucky determines fair vaiue of financial assets and liabilities based on the following fair vaiue hierarchy, as prescribed by SFAS No 157.
which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels.

Level 1 inputs — unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that Duke Energy Kentucky has
the ability to access. An active market for the asset or liability is one in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide ongoing pricing information Duke Energy Kentucky does not adjust quoted market
prices on Level 1 inputs for any blockage factor

Level 2 inputs -~ inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly,
for the asset or liability. Level 2 inputs include, but are not limited to, quoted prices for simifar assets or liabilities in an active market, quoted prices for identical
or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active and inputs other than quoted market prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as
interest rate curves and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, credit risk and defauit rates

Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities-including an amendment of FAS8B
Statement No. 115" (SFAS No. 159), which permits entities to elect to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. For Duke Energy
Kentucky, SFAS No. 159 was effective as of January 1, 2008 and had no impact on amounts presented for periods prior to the effective date Duke Energy
Kentucky does not currently have any financial assets or financial liabilities for which the provisions of SFAS No. 159 have been elected However, in the future,
Duke Energy Kentucky may elect io measure certain financial instruments at fair value in accordance with this standard

The foliowing tabie provides the fair value measurement amounts for assets and liabilities recorded in Other in both Current Assets and Current Liabilities
and Other within Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities on Duke Energy Kentucky's Balance Sheets at fair value at December 31, 2008
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Total Fair Value

Amounts at
December 31, 2008 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Description (in thousands)
Derivatives Assels 5 178 $ . s . $ 178
Derivatives Liabilities 5 (7.977) 5 . $ (7.977) $ .

The following table provides a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis where the
determination of fair value includes significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

Derivatives {net)
(in thousands}

Balance at January 1, 2008 $

0

Total gains inciuded on balance sheet 841
Net purchases, sales, issuances and

settlements (663)

Batiance at December 31, 2008 3 178

The valuation method of the primary fair value measurements disclosed above is as foliows:
Fair Value Disclosures Required Under SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments.” The fair value of financial

instruments, excluding financial assets included in the scope of SFAS No. 157 disclosed in the tables above, is summarized in the foliowing table. Judgment is
required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates determined as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, are not

necessarily indicative of the amounts Duke Energy Kentucky could have realized in current markets.

Financial Instruments
As of December 31

2008 2007
Approximate Approximate

Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Vaiue

(in thousands)
$ 338,629 $ 287,012 % 283,183

$ 327,228

Long-term debt, including current maturities

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payabte and notes payable are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the short-term nature of these instruments and/or because the stated rates approximate market rates
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8. Intangibles

The carrying amount of emission allowances in intangibie assets as of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 were $11 million and $7

million, respectively
The carrying values of emission allowances sold or consumed were $5 miliion and $6 million as of December 31, 2008 and

December 31, 2007, respectively.
The table below shows the expected amortization expense for the next five years for intangible assets as of December 31, 2007. The expected
amortization expense includes estimates of emission allowances consumption. The amortization amounts discussed below are estimates. Actual amounts may

differ from these estimates due to such factors as changes in consumption patterns, sales or impairments of emission allowances or other intangible assets.
additional intangibie acquisitions and other events.

2009 2010-2012

{in thousands)
$ 10,503 e
Expected Amortization expense

9. Related Party Transactions

Duke Energy Kentucky engages in related party fransactions. These transactions are generally performed at cost and in accordance with the applicable
state and federal commission regulations . Balances due to or due from related parties included in the Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007 are as follows:

December 31, 2008  December 31,2007

(in thousands)

Accounts Receivable $ 10,765 $ 3 660

Accounts Payable $ 13478 3 26.429

Duke Energy Kentucky is charged its proportionate share of corporate governance and other costs by a consolidated affiliate of Duke Energy. Duke Energy
Kentucky is also charged its proportionate share of other corporate governance costs from a consolidated affiliate of Cinergy. Corporate governance and other
shared services costs are primarily related to human resources, legal and accounting fees, as weli as other third party costs. The expenses associated with
certain allocated corporate governance and other service costs for Duke Energy Kentucky, which are recorded in Operation, Maintenance and Other within

Operating Expenses on the Statements of Operations were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

(in thousands)

Corporate governance and shared services expenses $ 56,979 3 47,495

Duke Energy Kentucky incurs expenses from Duke Energy Ohio related to purchasing network integration transmission service from the Midwest
Independent Transmission System Operator (MISO) and ancillary services. These expenses, which are recorded in Operation, maintenance and other within
Operating Expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations, were approximately $16 million and $17 miltion for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively

See Note 15 for detail on expense amounts allocated from Cinergy to Duke Energy Kentucky related to Duke Energy Kentucky's participation in Cinergy's
qualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension pians and post-retirement health care and insurance benefits. Additionally, Duke Energy Kentucky has been
allocated accrued pension and other post-retirement and post-employment benefit obligations from Cinergy of approximately $39 million at December 31, 2008
and approximately $23 million at December 31, 2007 The above amounts have been classified in the Balance Sheet as follows.

December 31, December 31,
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2008 2007

(in thousands)

$ 108 § 101
Other current liabilities

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefit costs $ 39,195 § 22,505

Additionally, certain trade receivables have been sold by Duke Energy Kentucky to Cinergy Receivables, an unconsolidated entity formed by Cinergy. The
proceeds obtained from the sales of receivables are largely cash but do include a subordinated note from Cinergy Receivables for a portion of the purchase
price. This subordinated note is classified by Duke Energy Kentucky as Receivables in the Balance Sheets and was approximately $29 million as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007. See Note 10 for additional information. See Note 12 for information on money pool

10. Sales of Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable Securitization. Duke Energy Kentucky sells, on a revolving basis, nearly all of its retail accounts receivable and related collections to
Cinergy Receivables, a bankruptcy remote, special purpose entity that is a whotly-owned limited liability company of Cinergy. The securitization transaction was
structured to meet the criteria for sale treatment under SFAS No. 140, and, accordingly, Cinergy does not consofidate Cinergy Receivables and the transfers of

receivables are accounted for as sales

The proceeds abfained from the sales of receivabies are largely cash but do include a subordinated note from Cinergy Receivables for a portion of the
purchase price (typically approximates 25 percent of the total proceeds). The note, which amounts to approximately $29 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
is subordinate to senior loans that Cinergy Receivables obtain from commercial paper conduits controlled by unrelated financial institutions which is the source
of funding for the subordinated note. This subordinated note is a retained interest (right to receive a specified portion of cash flows from the sold assets) under

SFAS No. 140 and is classified within Receivables in the accompanying Balance Sheets at December 31, 2008 and 2007.

The carrying values of the refained interests are determined by allocating the carrying value of the receivables between the assets sold and the interests
retained based on relative fair value. The key assumptions in estimating fair value are the anticipated credit losses, the selection of discount rates, and expected
receivables turnover rate. Because (a) the receivables generally turnover in less than two months, (b) credit iosses are reasonably predictable due to Duke
Energy Kentucky's broad customer base and lack of significant concentration, and (c} the purchased beneficial interest is subordinate to all retained interests
and thus would absorb losses first, the aflocated bases of the subordinated notes are not materially different than their face value. Interest accrues to Duke
Energy Kentucky on the retained interests using the accretable yield method, which generally approximates the stated rate on the notes since the allocated basis
and the face value are nearly equivalent. An impairment charge is recorded against the carrying value of both the retained interests and purchased beneficial
interest whenever it is determined that an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred {which is unlikely unless credit losses on the receivables far exceed the

anticipated level)

The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value are as follows.

Years Ended
December 31,

2008 2007
Anticipated credit loss rate 0.9% 0.9%
Discount rate on expected cash flows 5.3% 7 7%
Receivables turnover rate 12.1% 11.9%

The hypothetical effect on the fair value of the retained interests assuming both a 10% and a 20% unfavorable variation in credit losses or discount rates is

not material due to the short turover of receivables and historically fow credit {oss history.

Duke Energy Kentucky retains servicing responsibilities for its role as a collection agent on the amounts due on the sold receivables. However, Cinergy
Receivables assumes the risk of collection on the purchased receivables without recourse to Duke Energy Kentucky in the event of a loss. While no direct
recourse to Duke Energy Kentucky exists, it risks loss in the event collections are not sufficient to allow for full recovery of its refained interests. No servicing
asset or liability is recorded since the servicing fee paid to Duke Energy Kentucky approximates a market rate.
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The following table shows the gross and net receivables sold, retained interests, sales, and cash flows during the periods ending:

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

(in thousands)

Receivables sold as of period end $ 71,340 $ 83.936
Less: Retained interests 28,530 29.165
Net receivables sold as of period end s 42,810 $ 34,771

Sales during period

Receivables sold $ 486,988 5 468,617

toss recognized on sale 5,350 6.583

Cash fiows during period
Cash proceeds from receivables sold $ 484,916 3 453,052

Return received on retained interests 3,214 3.694
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment

Estimated December 31, December 31,
Useful Life 2008 2007
(Years) (in thousands)
Land — $ 17,755 $ 17.894
Plant
Efectric generation, distribution and transmission (@) 8- 100 1,083,826 1.085.286
Naturai gas transmission and distribution(a} 12 50 341,547 315,763
Other buildings and improvements(a) 15 - 100 29,063 29.064
Equipment 11— 25 7,599 7.097
Vehicles 9~ 15 314 314
Construction in process _ 36,504 24,572
Other 5- 10 20,177 19,367
Total property, plant and equipment 1,536,785 1,499,357
Total accumulated depreciation(b) (625.727) (617.530)
Total net property, plant and equipment $ 911,058 $ 881,827

(a) Includes capitalized leases, for which the totals were $28 million for 2008 and $24 million for 2007

(b) Includes accumulated amortization of capitalized leases: $3 million for 2008 and $2 million for 2007

Capitalized interest, which includes the interest expense component of AFUDC, was less than $500 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007
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12. Debt and Credit Facilities

Summary of Debt and Related Terms

Weighted
Avg Rate Year Due Dec 31, 2008 Dec 31, 2007
(in thousands)
Unsecured debt 6.0% 2009-2036 § 175000 §  195.000
Capital leases 5.6% 2009 - 2020 13,126 15.089
a
Other debt(?) 1.5% 2009 - 2027 77,572 77,571
Notes payable 2.3% 2012 73,817 -
Money Pool 5% 3,241 27,470
Unamortized debt discount and premium,
net (586) (648)

Total debt 341,870 314,482
Current maturities of long-term debt (22.461) (21.678)
Short-term notes payable (3,241) (27.470)
Totat long-term debt $ 316,168 5 265.334

(a) Includes $77 million of Duke Energy Kentucky pofiution control bonds as of December 31, 2008 and 2007

Unsecured and Other Debt. In December 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky refunded $50 million of tax-exempt auction rate bonds through the issuance of
$50 million of tax-exempt variable-rate demand bonds, which are supported by a direct-pay letter of credit The variable-rate demand bonds, which are due
August 1, 2027, had an initial interest rate of 0.65% which is reset on a weekly basis.

Money Pool. Duke Energy Kentucky receives support for its short-term horrowing needs through its participation with Duke Energy and other Duke Energy
subsidiaries in a money pool arrangement. Under this arrangement, those companies with short-term funds may provide short-term loans to affiliates
participating under this arrangement. The money pool is structured such that Duke Energy Kentucky separately manages its cash needs and working capital
requirements. Accordingly, there is no net settlement of receivables and payables of the participating subsidiaries, as each entity independently parlicipates in
the money pool. As of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, Duke Energy Kentucky had amounts outstanding of approximately $3 million and $27
million, respectively, classified within Notes payable in the Balance Sheets. During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the $24 million and $15
million decrease, respectively, in the money pool activity is reflected as a cash ou